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To the Members of

KOTAK MAHINDRA PRIME LIMITED

The Board of Directors has pleasure in presenting Twenty Fifth Annual Report together with audited Financial Statements of your Company for the year ended 
31st March 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Financial performance under Ind AS for FY 2020-21 with comparative numbers for FY 2019-20 is presented below:

` in Lakh

Particulars
Year ended  

31st March, 2021
Year ended  

31st March, 2020

Gross Income 2,59,202.70 3,20,152.23

Profit before Depreciation and Tax 70,739.35 82,122.90

Depreciation 748.62 802.19

Profit before Tax 69,990.73 81,320.71

Provision for Tax 18,063.37 22,799.19

Profit after Tax 51,927.36 58,521.52

Other Comprehensive Income 20,265.97 29,211.71

Total Comprehensive Income 72,193.33 87,733.23

Balance of Profit from previous years 4,33,853.18 3,89,106.36

Amount available for appropriation 4,85,855.48 4,47,378.46

Appropriations:

Dividend paid on Equity Shares 20.97 20.97

Corporate Dividend Tax 0.00 4.31

Transfer to Special Reserve u/s 45IC of the RBI Act, 1934 10,700.00 13,500.00

Surplus carried forward to the Balance Sheet 4,75,134.51 4,33,853.18

BUSINESS STRATEGY AND OBJECTIVES AND FUTURE GOALS:
In addition to the widespread public health implications, the COVID-19 pandemic has had an extraordinary impact on macroeconomic conditions in India and 
around the world. During the previous year, people and economies around the world, witnessed serious turbulence caused by the first wave of the pandemic, the 
consequent lockdowns and the emergence of new variants of the virus. Although government has started vaccination drive, COVID-19 cases have significantly 
increased in recent months due to second wave as compared to earlier levels in India. Various state governments have again announced strict measures 
including lockdowns to contain this spread. As COVID vaccines get administered to more and more people, businesses in sectors impacted by pandemic may 
pick up. However, the continuing and evolving nature of the virus has created uncertainty regarding estimated time required for businesses and lives to get 
back to normal. 

The Company continues to closely monitor the situation and in response to this health crisis has implemented protocols and processes to execute its business 
continuity plans and help protect its employees and support its clients. The Company, however, has not experienced any significant disruptions in the past one 
year and has considered the impact on carrying value of assets based on the external or internal information available up to the date of approval of financial 
statements. The direct and indirect impact of COVID-19 on Company future business, results of operations, financial position and cash flows remains uncertain.

The disruption caused by Covid-19 is likely to have its impact on Auto Industry at least in the near future. In this challenging environment the company will 
focus on to capitalize on its distribution strength with OEMs, Dealers, Channel partners and customers. Company will also continue to focus on distribution of 
the various financial products that provides greater value addition to the customer. Further company will have enhanced focus on portfolio quality to meet the 
challenges caused by Covid-19. 

Customer base, easy accessibility through its wide network of branches and a firm commitment to deliver superior customer service, has enabled the company 
to maintain its market position.

DIVIDEND
The Directors recommend Dividend on Equity Shares @ `40.00 per equity share (Previous Year: `0.60 per equity share). 

Directors’ Report
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DEBENTURES
Pursuant to various circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time to time, the Company 
continues to issue debentures on private placement basis and list all debentures issued, on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited under Information Memorandums 
issued by the Company from time to time. The Company has appointed IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as Debenture Trustees to the issues.

The Contact details of the Debenture Trustees are:

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited 
Asian Building, Ground Floor, 17 R. Kamani Marg Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400 001 
Contact Numbers: 022– 40807050; 40807021; 40807023 
Email: jimit@idbitrustee.com; paridhi@idbitrustee.com; itsl@idbitrustee.com 
Website: www.idbitrustee.com

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DEBENTURE REDEMPTION PROCEEDS TO THE “INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)” 
The below mentioned matured debenture has remained unclaimed and unpaid since April 25, 2013 as the investor has deceased and his legal heirs have yet to 
claim the same. The said amount has been transferred to ‘Investor Education and Protection Fund’ on April 28, 2020.

Debenture Sr. No. Folio Number Investor Name and Address
DP Id -Client Id-

Account Number

Amount for 
matured 

debentures

Interest on 
matured 

debentures

Amount 
Transferred to 

IEPF 

NCD/2009-10/1477 NIFTYSERIES13 Mr. Gangadhar Shripad Koppikar, 
1022 VANASHREE PLOT NO. 1 
& 2, SECTOR 58/A NERUL (W), 

Mumbai- 400706

IN302269-13260588 `5,00,000/- `2,60,000/- `7,60,000

CAPITAL ADEQUACY
The Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) of your Company as on 31st March 2021 was at 29.58% (Tier I – 28.35%). 

CREDIT RATING
The Company’s long-term borrowings rating continued to be “AAA” (with Stable Outlook) by CRISIL and ICRA. The Company’s Tier II Subordinated Debts 
continued to be dual rated by CRISIL and ICRA, with a rating of “AAA” (with Stable Outlook).

The Company’s short-term borrowing program rated by CRISIL and ICRA continued to enjoy the highest rating of “A1+”.

The assessment of your Company’s risk profile by the rating agencies strengthens the confidence placed by a large pool of investors in your Company.

AAA indicates highest degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations and carries a lowest credit risk.

FINANCE
Your Company continues to be a Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC - Investment and Credit Company (reclassified from Asset Finance Company (AFC) vide RBI 
circular dated February 22, 2019 on Harmonisation of NBFCs categories). It has a well diversified and large pool of lenders comprising of Public Sector Banks, 
Private and MNC Banks, Mutual Funds, Insurance Companies, Pension Funds, Financial Institutions, Foreign Institutional Investors (FII) and Corporates. Your 
Company continued to introduce new debt investors during the year. Further, prudent Asset Liability Management continues to be focus of your Company.

The RBI adjusted policy repo rate downwards, by 40 bps from 4.40% to 4.00%, during the financial year 2020-21. Further, the reverse repo rate was also 
reduced by cumulative 40 bps from 3.75% to 3.35% during the financial year. The RBI also continued with its open market operations to ensure ample liquidity 
and orderly market conditions. 

During the financial year 2020-21, the National Statistical Office estimates contraction in real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) at 7.3% for the Indian economy. 
Prospects for financial year 2021-22 have improved with the progress of the vaccination programme, with the real GDP growth projected at 9.5% for the 
Indian economy. The global economic growth is gradually recovering from the slowdown, but it remains uneven across countries and is supported by ongoing 
vaccination drives, sustained accommodative monetary policies and further sizeable fiscal stimulus. 

Despite continued challenges faced during the financial year, your Company continued to get regular access to funding from various sources and has continued 
to maintain adequate liquidity profile.

Your Company with its strong treasury and risk management philosophies and practices is well geared to meet the challenges of dynamic interest rate and 
liquidity environment.

Directors’ 
Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Company Business
Your Company is primarily into vehicle finance, engaged in financing of retail customers of passenger cars, multi-utility vehicles, two wheelers and inventory and 
term funding to dealers. Your Company finances new, used cars and two wheelers under retail loan, and lease contracts.

The main streams of income for your Company are income from retail car and two wheeler loans, dealer finance income and fee based income. Your Company also 
receives income from corporate loans, developer funding, loans against securities and personal loans. The major expenses for your Company are interest expense, 
business sourcing expense and cost of running operations.  

During the Financial Year 2020-21, your Company’s retail car disbursements were at `533,113 lakh as against `638,391 lakh in the previous year. During the year 
under review, gross advances stood at ` 20,92,661.37 lakh as against ` 25,39,472.03 lakh in the previous year.

Your Company continued to focus on cost control and credit losses, while improving its positioning in the car finance industry. 

As detailed in the ‘Financial Results’ section above, Gross Income of your Company decreased from ̀ 3,20,152.23 lakh in 2019-20 to ̀ 2,59,202.70 lakh in 2020-21. 
Profit before Tax was at `69,990.73 lakh in 2020-21 as compared to ` 81,320.71 lakh in 2019-20. 

Segment wise performance
The Company has identified segments as Vehicle Financing, Other Lending activities and Treasury and Investments.

Vehicle Finance includes Retail and Wholesale trade finance and the segment result is Profit before tax of ̀ 16,742.34 lakh. Other Lending activities include financing 
against securities, securitization, debenture investment / lending in commercial real estate and other loan / fee based services and the segment result is Profit before 
tax of `25,385.69 lakh. Treasury and Investment activities include proprietary trading in shares and the segment result is Profit before tax of `27,862.70 lakh.

Industry Scenario
The passenger car market in India saw a degrowth of 2% for the Financial Year 2020-21. Total unit sales of cars and MUV’s crossed 27.18 lakh units in 
financial year 2020-21.

The two wheeler market in India saw a degrowth of 13% for the Financial Year 2020-21 as compared to degrowth of 18% for 2019-20. Total unit sales of two 
wheeler crossed 151.19 lakh units in financial year 2020-21.

Prospects 
The disruption caused by Covid-19 is likely to have its impact on Auto Industry at least in the near future. In this challenging environment the company will focus 
on to capitalize on its distribution strength with OEMs, Dealers, Channel partners and customers. Company will also continue to focus on geographical expansion 
and also on distribution of various products that provides greater value addition to the customer. Further company will have enhanced focus on portfolio quality to 
meet the challenges caused by Covid-19.

Customer knowledge, easy accessibility through its wide network of branches and a firm commitment to deliver superior customer service are key drivers for your 
Company’s performance.

Internal Controls 
The Internal Audit department of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited regularly conducts a review to assess the financial and operating controls at various locations of 
your Company including Head Office functions and at branches. Reports of the audits conducted by the Internal Audit department are presented to the Audit 
Committee. Representatives of the statutory auditors are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee.

Human Resources
The Company is professionally managed with key management personnel having relatively long tenure with the Company. Your Company follows a policy of 
building strong teams of talented professionals. Your Company encourages and facilitates long term careers with your Company through carefully designated 
management development programs and performance management systems. The total number of on roll employees was 4,197 at end of 31st March, 2021.

Information Technology
Your Company uses “ORACLE” as its Financial system and the operating system ‘CORE’ which is owned and managed by Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited and is 
used for its retail assets division since 2003. The CORE system has the latest technology platform and also has capacity to scale based on business requirements. 
The modular nature of the system supports efficiency in operations coupled with strong systems and operational controls. The system is robust to cater to efficient 
customer service and support marketing initiatives at reasonable cost.  The Company continues to explore and test new system to improve efficiency for back office 
and database support
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Cautionary Note
Certain statements in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ section may be forward-looking and are stated as may be required by applicable laws and 
regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results, which could be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of future performance and outlook. Your 
Company does not undertake to update these statements.

DIRECTORS’ & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Change in Directors during the year

Appointment of Directors 

Mr. Devarajan Kannan (DIN: 00498935) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 12th November 2020, subject to the approval 
of the members at the General meeting. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 28th April 2021 has recommended the appointment 
of Mr. D. Kannan as a Director to the shareholders of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the approval of the Members is being 
sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Devarajan Kannan, is currently the Group President – Commercial Banking of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited. He is a Chartered Accountant and Cost 
Accountant by qualification and a rank holder at graduation level, became Group Head - Commercial Banking of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited in August 
2014.  Prior to this, was the Managing Director of Kotak Securities Limited from April 2010. Began career as a business accountant in a leading computer 
manufacturing company prior to joining the erstwhile Kotak Mahindra Finance Limited, now known as Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, in 1991. Since then moved 
on to being part of Ford Credit Kotak Mahindra Limited prior to joining Kotak Securities Limited in April 2000. He was responsible for setting up and building 
kotaksecurities.com, the online trading and stock market advisory platform for Kotak Securities Limited.

Mr. Ravi Venkatraman (DIN: 00307328) was appointed as an Additional Director (Independent) of the Company with effect from 4th August 2021, subject to the 
approval of the members at the General meeting.  The Nomination & Remuneration of the Company at its meeting held on 4th August 2021 has recommended 
the appointment of Mr. Ravi Venkatraman as an Independent Director of the Company to the shareholders of the Company at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting for a period of 5 years up to 3rd August 2026. Accordingly, the approval of the Members is being sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Mr. Ravi Venkatraman, aged 62 years, is a Chartered Accountant and Cost Accountant by qualification. He has about 40 years of varied experience as a senior 
finance professional, covering many facets of BFSI sector.

Resignation of Directors 

Mr. Narayan S.A. (DIN: 00007404) resigned as a Director of the Company with effect from 1st December 2020. Your Directors place on record their appreciation 
for the valuable advice and guidance rendered by Mr. Narayan S.A. during his tenure as a Director of the Company.

Prof. S. Mahendra Dev (DIN: 06519869) has resigned as an Independent Director of the Company effective end of working hours on June 2, 2021.  In 
accordance with the provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, he stepped down as an Independent Director of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (“KMBL”) 
on March 14, 2021, on the completion of the maximum permissible tenure of eight years. He continued as an Independent Director in Kotak Mahindra Prime 
Limited (“Kotak Prime”), an NBFC and a subsidiary of KMBL. 

Prof. Dev had recently been approached by another private sector bank to join their board as an Independent Director. Since the proposed appointment would 
result in a conflict of interest, he has resigned as an Independent Director from the Board of Kotak Prime, effective end of working hours on June 2, 2021. He 
has also confirmed in his resignation letter that there is no other reason other than what is stated herein.  Due to the resignation as an Independent Director, Prof 
Dev’s membership had ended as a member in the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

Directors retiring by rotation during the year

Mr. Arvind Kathpalia (DIN: 02630873), Director, retires by rotation at the Twenty Fifth Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for 
re-appointment.

Re-appointment of Managing Director

The Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the results of the performance evaluation,  
re-appointed Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi (DIN: 07665329) as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of two years with effect from 9th December, 2020 
until 8th December 2022, subject to the approval from the shareholders at the general meeting. Accordingly, the members of the Company at the Annual 
General meeting of the Company held on 11th August 2020 approved the re-appointment of Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi as the Managing Director.

Declaration from Independent Directors

The Board has received declarations from the Independent Directors as per the requirement of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is 
satisfied that the Independent Directors meet the criteria of independence as mentioned in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Directors’ 
Report
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Board Evaluation
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company’s Board has formulated the criteria for performance evaluation of the Directors and the Board 
as a whole. The Criteria formulated broadly covers the Board role, Board/Committee membership, practice & procedure and collaboration & style.

In line with the SEBI Guidance note on Board Evaluation, a Board effectiveness assessment questionnaire was designed for the performance evaluation of the 
Board, its Committees, Chairman and individual directors and in accordance with the criteria set and covering various aspects of performance including structure 
of the board, meetings of the board, functions of the board, role and responsibilities of the board, governance and compliance, evaluation of risks, grievance 
redressal for investors, conflict of interest, relationship among directors, director competency, board procedures, processes, functioning and effectiveness. The 
said questionnaire was circulated to all the directors of the Company for the annual performance evaluation.

Based on the assessment of the responses received to the questionnaire from the directors on the annual evaluation of the Board, its Committees, Chairman 
and the individual Directors, a summary of the Board Evaluation was placed before the Independent Directors for consideration. Similarly, the Board at its 
meeting assessed the performance of the Independent Directors. The Directors were satisfied with the results of the performance evaluation of the Board & its 
Committees, Chairman and individual directors.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

In terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi, Managing Director, Mr. Bharat C Thakkar, Chief Financial Officer 
and Mr. Kiran Tangudu, Company Secretary, are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Appointment & Remuneration of Directors and KMPs

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company has formulated criteria for appointment of Senior Management 
personnel and the Directors. Based on the criteria set it recommends to the Board the appointment of Directors and Senior Management personnel. The 
Committee considers the qualifications, experience fit & proper status, positive attributes as per the suitability of the role and independent status and various 
regulatory/statutory requirements as may be required of the candidate before such appointment.

The Board has adopted a Remuneration Policy for the Whole-time Directors, Chief Executive Officer and other employees of the Company. The Policy is in line 
with the Compensation Policy of Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd., its holding company (the compensation policy is available on the Company’s website hosted in 
https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/policies.htm), which is based on the Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India. The salient features of the Remuneration 
Policy are as follows:

•	 Objective	is	to	maintain	fair,	consistent	and	equitable	compensation	practices	in	alignment	with	Kotak’s	core	values	and	strategic	business	goals.

•	 Applicable	to	all	employees	of	the	Company.	Employees	classified	into	3	groups:

 o Whole-time Directors/Chief Executive Officer

 o Risk, Operations & Support Staff

 o Other categories of Staff

•	 Compensation	structure	broadly	divided	into	Fixed,	Variable	and	ESOPs

 o Fixed Pay – Total cost to the Company i.e. Salary, Retirals and Other Benefits.

 o Variable Pay – Linked to assessment of performance and potential based on Balanced Key Result Areas (KRAs), Standards of Performance and 
achievement of targets with overall linkage to Bank budgets and business objectives. The main form of incentive compensation includes – Cash, 
Deferred Cash/Incentive Plan and Stock Appreciation Rights.

 o ESOPs of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited – Granted on a discretionary basis to employee based on their performance and potential with the objective 
of retaining the employee.

•	 Compensation Composition – The ratio of Variable Pay to Fixed Pay and the ratio of Cash v/s Non Cash within Variable pay outlined for each category 
of employee classification.

•	 Any	variation	in	the	Policy	to	be	with	approval	of	the	Nomination	&	Remuneration	Committee.

•	 Malus	and	Clawback	clauses	applicable	on	Deferred	Variable	Pay.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors have adopted a compensation policy for the Independent 
Directors (IDs) of the Company. The salient features of the Compensation Policy are as follows:
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•	 Compensation	structure	broadly	divided	into:

 o Sitting fees   

 o Re-imbursement of expenses   

 o Commission (profit based)

•	 Amount	of	sitting	fees	and	commission	to	be	decided	by	the	Board	from	time	to	time,	subject	to	the	regulatory	limits.

•	 IDs	not	eligible	for	any	stock	options	of	Kotak	Mahindra	Bank	Ltd.,	the	Company’s	holding	company

Remuneration to the KMPs i.e. Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary, is as per the terms of their employment

Number of Board Meetings

During the year, 12 meetings of the Board of Directors were held. 

Disclosures pursuant to Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

1. Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees for the financial year: 

Name Title Ratio Ratio excluding SARs

Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi Managing Director 79.00x 71.09x

2. Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, 
in the financial year:

Director/KMP Title
% increase / (decrease)  

in remuneration
% increase / (decrease)  

in remuneration excluding SARs

Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi Managing Director (10.78%) (9.15%)

Mr. Bharat Thakkar CFO (10.15%) (10.09%)

Mr. Kiran Tangudu CS (7.57%) (7.57%)

3. Percentage increase / (decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 

 (11.9%) considering employees who were in employment for the whole of FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21.

4. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company at the end of the year: 4,197

5. Average percentile increase / (decrease) already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial 
year and its comparison with the percentile increase / (decrease) in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if 
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

 For employees other than managerial personnel who were in employment of FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 the average increase (decrease) is (4.96%) and 
(5.16%)  excluding SARs.

 Average increase / (decrease) for managerial personnel is (10.33%) and (9.31%) excluding SARs.

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Bank:

 The Company is in compliance with its Remuneration Policy.

 Notes:

 1) The Independent Directors of the Company receive remuneration in the form of sitting fees for attending the Board/Committee meetings and in the 
form of an annual profit based commission.

 2) Remuneration includes Fixed pay + Variable paid during the year + perquisite value as calculated under the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, it does 
not include value of Stock Options.

 3) Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) are awarded as variable pay. These are settled in cash and are linked to the average market price/closing market 
price of the stock of Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. on specified value dates. Cash paid out during the year is included for the purposes of remuneration.

Directors’ 
Report



8

Annual Report 2020-21

COMMITTEES

(a) AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The Audit Committee was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of Mr. Chandrashekhar Sathe (Chairman), Mr. Ravi Venkatraman,  
Mr. D. Kannan and Ms. Akila Urankar. The quorum comprises of any three members.

 During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, 12 meetings of the Committee were held.

 The First Tier Audit Committee was re-constituted during the year and presently comprises of Mr. D. Kannan, Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi and Mr. Bharat Thakkar. 
The quorum comprises of any two members. The Committee screens the matters entrusted to the Audit Committee and also the routine matters such as 
overseeing the programme of inspections and compliance of inspection reports.

(b) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee was re-constituted during the year and presently comprises of Mr. Chandrasekhar Sathe (Chairman),  
Mr. D. Kannan, Ms. Akila Urankar and Mr. Arvind Kathpalia. The quorum comprises of any three members.

 During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, 3 meetings of the Committee were held.

(c) COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 The Committee of the Board of Directors was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of Mr. D. Kannan, Ms. Shanti Ekambaram and 
Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi. The quorum comprises of three members. The Committee looks into the routine transactions of Company which inter alia include 
authorizing opening, operation & closure of bank accounts of the Company, authorizing officials of the Company to execute various documents/
agreements, issuing power of attorney for representing the Company in various Courts of Law and before various Statutory Authorities and borrowing of 
money within the delegated limit.

 During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, 4 meetings of the Committee were held.

(d) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 The Tier II level (supervisory level) Risk Management Committee was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of Mr. D. Kannan, 
Mr. Chandrashekhar Sathe (Chairman), Mr. Arvind Kathpalia and Ms. Akila Urankar. The quorum comprises of any three members. It reviews the adequacy 
of the risk management process and up-gradation thereof.  

 During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, 4 meetings of the Tier II level Committee were held.

(e) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

 The Corporate Social Responsibility committee was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of Ms. Akila Urankar (Chairperson),  
Mr. D. Kannan and Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi, with any three members forming the quorum. 

 During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, 2 meetings of the Committee were held.

(f)   CREDIT COMMITTEE

 The Credit Committee (Board) was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of Mr. D. Kannan, Ms. Shanti Ekambaram, Mr. Arvind Kathpalia 
and Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi, with any three members forming the quorum. The Committee scrutinizes and approves credit proposals above such limit as 
specified in the Approval Authorities from time to time. 

 During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, 3 meetings of the Committee were held.

(g)  IT STRATEGY COMMITTEE 

 IT Strategy Committee of the Board was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of Mr. Chandrashekhar Sathe (Chairman), Mr. D. Kannan, 
Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi and Mr. Arvind Kathpalia. The quorum comprises of any three members. The Committee reviews the IT strategy of the Company and 
other matters related to IT governance.

 During the financial year ended 31st March 2021, 3 meetings of the Committee was held.

AUDITORS
In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company’s Auditors, Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountant LLP (Firm Registration no. 012754N/
N500016) were appointed as statutory auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years at the 21st AGM of the Company held on 12th June 2017 to hold office 
from the conclusion of the Twenty First AGM until the conclusion of the Twenty Sixth AGM of the Company.
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M/s Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP is ineligible to continue as an Auditor as per the RBI Circular dated April 27, 2021 (Ref.No.DoS.CO.ARG/
SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22). One such condition of the said circular is that an audit firm, subject to its fulfilling the prescribed eligibility norms, will be allowed 
to continue as the statutory auditor for a particular NBFC for a period of three years and thereafter the said firm would not be eligible for reappointment in 
the same entity for a period of at least six years (two tenures). Accordingly the Company has received the resignation as an Auditor from M/s Price Waterhouse 
Chartered Accountants LLP, they have been the statutory auditors of the Company for the last four financial years i.e. from Financial Year ended March 31, 2018 
to March 31, 2021.

Further, in terms of the circular dated April 27, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) relating to guidelines for appointment of statutory auditors of 
Non-Banking Finance Companies (‘NBFCs’) and also in terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, Messrs. M M Nissim & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration no.FRN107122W/W100672) and Mukund M. Chitale & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration no. FRN106655W), are proposed to be 
appointed as Joint Statutory Auditors for a period of 3 years commencing from the conclusion of the Twenty Fifth Annual General Meeting until the conclusion 
of the Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting, in place of Messrs. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountant LLP, Chartered Accountants. 

M M Nissim & Co LLP have consented to the said appointment and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within limits specified under Section 
141(3)(g) of the Act. They have further confirmed that they are not disqualified to be appointed as Joint statutory Auditors in terms of the provisions of the 
proviso to Section 139(1), Section 141(2) and Section 141(3) of the Act and the provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and also confirmed 
with regard to the prescribed eligibility norms in terms of Reserve Bank of India’s circular No. DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated 27th April, 2021.

Mukund M. Chitale & Co have consented to the said appointment and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within limits specified under Section 
141(3)(g) of the Act. They have further confirmed that they are not disqualified to be appointed as Joint statutory auditors in terms of the provisions of the proviso 
to Section 139(1), Section 141(2) and Section 141(3) of the Act and the provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and also confirmed with 
regard to the prescribed eligibility norms in terms of Reserve Bank of India’s circular No. DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated 27th April, 2021.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors recommend the appointment of M M Nissim & Co LLP and Mukund M. Chitale & Co, as Joint statutory auditors 
of the Company from the conclusion of the Twenty Fifth Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting, to the 
shareholders. You are requested to appoint them and fix their remuneration.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Board of Directors confirms that your Company has laid down set of standards, processes and structure which enables to implement Internal Financial 
controls across the organization with reference to Financial Statements and that such controls are adequate and are operating effectively. During the year under 
review, no material or serious observation has been observed for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT
Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, are 
not applicable for the business activities carried out by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, there are no transactions to be reported under Section 188(1) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, in form AOC-2.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for its review and approval on a quarterly basis. An omnibus approval of the Audit 
Committee is obtained for the Related Party Transactions which are repetitive in nature.

All Related Party Transactions as required under Indian Accounting Standard Ind AS 24 are reported in Notes to Accounts under Note no.39 of the financial 
statements of your Company.

The Company’s Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions is available on the Company’s website www.primeloans.kotak.com.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
Pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company being 
a Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India, nothing contained in section 186 is applicable, except subsection(1) of that section.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY & VIGIL MECHANISM
Your Company has also put in place the Whistle Blower Policy to raise concerns internally and to disclose information, which the individual believes shows 
malpractice, serious irregularities, fraud, unethical business conduct, abuse or wrong doing or violation of any Indian law.

The Whistle Blower Policy is also put up on the Company’s website www.primeloans.kotak.com

Directors’ 
Report
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited (KMPL) further referred to as your Company, has constituted a Board Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee), 
was re-constituted during the year and presently consists of the following Directors:

•	 Ms.	Akila	Urankar,	Independent	Director,	Chairperson

•	 Mr.	D.	Kannan,	Non-Executive	Director

•	 Mr.	Vyomesh	Kapasi,	Managing	Director

Your Company recognises the immense opportunity it has to bring about a positive change in the lives of the communities through its business operations and 
corporate social responsibility (CSR) initiatives.

The Board approved CSR policy sets out your Company’s vision, mission, governance, and CSR focus areas to fulfill its inclusive agenda across many geographies 
of India.  Your company aspires to be a trusted partner and contributes significantly towards the economic, environmental and social growth of the nation and 
is also committed to contribute towards United Nation’s (UN) Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). 

It is the constant endeavour of your Company to enhance its CSR footprint by adopting a purpose driven CSR approach, focusing on sustainable and scalable 
programmes, spreading in focused geographies and aligning to SDGs and the national narrative. 

Your Company’s CSR Committee is responsible for reviewing and recommending to the Board on the Company’s various CSR initiatives including the progress 
of the Company’s CSR Projects.  Further, your Company’s CSR Committee made recommendations to the Board to review and approve the CSR - Policy, Design, 
Path, Projects, Project Expenditure, and related matters. Thereafter, with Board’s approval, the CSR Projects have been implemented by the Company.

The Company’s CSR policy is available on the Company’s website viz. https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/policies.htm.

Your Company’s CSR Projects and CSR Project Expenditure for FY 2020-21 are compliant with the CSR mandate as specified under section 134, section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (Amendment 2019) and (Amendment 2020), schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (CSR Policy) Amendment Rules, 
2021, FAQs 2014, and Government of India’s circulars and notifications issued from time-to-time.

The average net profit under section 198 of the Companies act for the last three financial years preceding 31st March, 2021 is `85,680 lakh.

The prescribed CSR expenditure required under section 135, of the Act for FY 2020-21 is ` 1,713.60 lakh.

Amount ` in lakh

Amount spent on ongoing projects 552.48

Amount spent on other than ongoing projects 642.00

Transfer to Unspent CSR account 519.32

Total 1,713.80

The CSR expenditure incurred for the period 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021 under Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 amounts to `1713.80 lakh as against 
`941 lakh CSR spend in the FY 2019-20.  

It’s the constant endeavour of the Company to enhance its CSR capabilities by adopting a purpose driven CSR approach, focusing on sustainable and scalable 
programmes, spreading in focused geographies and aligning to SDGs and the national narrative. 

The implementation of the CSR projects and programmes is done directly and /or through implementing partner organisations, having a proven track record 
to implement cost and process efficient CSR projects and/or programmes that are scalable, sustainable, outcome driven and are committed to make a positive 
societal impact. Also, the implementation is done through employee volunteering. The Company’s CSR footprint has been consistently increasing over the years. 
The Company is committed to stepping-up its CSR programmes and expenditure in the years ahead. Foremost reason for underutilisation of the Company’s CSR 
expenditure is the NGOs’ inability to utilise large CSR expenditure allocated under the Company’s CSR Programmes.

Your Company does not consider “administrative overheads” as a part of its CSR expenditure.

The CSR Committee of the Board confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

The details of CSR Programmes and Expenditure under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 for FY 2020-21, are annexed to this Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
Your Company manages risk, based on Risk Management framework, governance structure and policies which lays down guidelines in identifying, assessing 
and managing risks.

Further, to facilitate better enterprise wide risk management, a Risk management committee (RMC) has been constituted. The RMC meetings are conducted on 
quarterly basis and is responsible for review of risk management practices covering credit risk, operations risk, liquidity risk, market risk and other risks including 
capital adequacy with a view to align the same to the risk strategy & risk appetite of the company. 
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Your Company has qualified Credit officer’s at all major locations who appraise and approve retail car finance proposals that are generated at branches and 
representative offices. Credit officers have pre-approved approval authorities for each location, beyond which the proposal is forwarded to higher authority and 
to senior management for necessary approval. With a view to provide superior customer decision experience to preferred set of customer profiles, certain pre-
approved credit approval programs are also implemented by specialized central credit teams.

Your Company uses various tools like field investigations, credit score card, CIBIL score, asset tenure matrix to ensure high quality portfolio. All Retail proposals 
are scanned by Risk Containment Unit to verify the authenticity of the documents and customers.

Your Company’s Dealer finance & Other business division’s credit management are centralized and follow robust risk management policies for their evaluation. 
These credit proposals are approved at Senior levels as per Board approved authorities including credit committees, due to the nature and complexities of 
facilities offered. The Company follows stringent monitoring mechanism for the disbursed facilities which results in early detection of potential stress accounts 
and thus ensuring early action for resolution of such accounts. 

Your Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits and monitors the concentration of risk and also monitors the market value of the collaterals 
available on regular basis. 

Your Company maintains stringent policies and procedures to ensure controls over various functions of Head office & Branches. There are periodic independent 
reviews and monitoring of operating controls as defined in the company’s operating manual.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has appointed M/s. Parikh & Associates, Company Secretaries, a firm of Practising 
Company Secretaries, as its Secretarial Auditor. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March 2021 is annexed to this Report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
Your Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central 
Government under Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the FY 2020-21.

ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to section 134(3)(a) and section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) rules, 
2014, the annual return of the company as on 31st March, 2021 is placed on the Company’s website viz. Url: https://www.primeloans.kotak.com/policies.htm.

EMPLOYEES
The employee strength of your Company was 4,197 as of 31st March 2021.

Five employees employed throughout the year and Nil employees employed for part of the year were in receipt of remuneration of ̀ 102 lakh or more per annum.

As required by the Sexual Harrasment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has formulated a Policy on Sexual 
Harrassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal).  Following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off 
during the year 2020-21:

 No. of complaints received: Nil 

 No. of complaints disposed off:  Nil

Your Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

In accordance with the provisions of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the names and other 
particulars of employees are set out in the annexure to the Directors’ Report. In terms of the Proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors’ 
Report is being sent excluding the aforesaid annexure. The annexure is available for inspection at the Registered Office of your Company during the business 
hours on working days.

DEPOSITS
The Company did not accept any deposits from the public during the year. Also, there are no deposits due and outstanding as on 31st March 2021.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The provisions pertaining to the Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption are not applicable to your Company.

During the year, the Company had foreign exchange inflow of ` Nil (Previous Year: ` Nil) while the outgo of foreign exchange was `74.82 lakh (Previous 
Year:  `44.50 lakh).

Directors’ 
Report
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
The Directors, based on the representations received from the management, confirm in pursuance of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 that:

i)  the Company has, in the preparation of the annual accounts, followed the applicable accounting standards along with proper explanations relating to 
material departures, if any;

ii)  the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the  Company as at 31st March 2021 and of the profit of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2021;

iii)  the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv)  the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v)  the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively;

vi)  The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and 
operating effectively.

ANNEXURES
Following statements/documents/reports are set out as Annexures to the Directors’ Report:

I.  Secretarial Audit Report pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Annexure – I)

II.  Annual Report on CSR Activities for the Financial year 2020-21 (Annexure - II)
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 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Uday Kotak
 Chairman
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FORM NO. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report For the financial year ended 31st March, 2021

(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Kotak Mahindra 
Prime Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company, the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given 
to us and the representations made by the Management and considering the relaxations granted by The Ministry of Corporate Affairs and The Securities and 
Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to us and maintained by the Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the applicable provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 (b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

 (c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time;  
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

 (d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during 
the audit period)

 (e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

 (f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and 
dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

 (g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

 (h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(vi)  Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:-

 a. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and its circulars, Master Circulars, notifications and its Directions as prescribed for NBFCs;

 b.  Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;

 c. Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 and the rules made thereunder;

 d. IRDAI (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and general meetings.

(ii)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

Directors’ 
Report
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We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The 
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for 
meetings other than those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and 
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines etc.

We further report that during the audit period the following events occurred which had bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc:

I. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the company issued and allotted 4,650 (Four Thousand Six Hundred and fifty only) Secured Redeemable 
Non-Convertible Zero Coupon Bonds of ` 10 lakhs (Rupees Ten lakh only) each in various tranches on private placement which were duly listed 
on BSE Limited.

II. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the company issued and allotted 1,000 (One Thousand only) Secured Redeemable Non- Convertible 
Market Linked Debentures of ` 10 lakhs (Rupees Ten lakh only) each in various tranches on private placement which were duly listed on BSE Limited.

III. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the company issued and allotted 36,000 (Thirty Six Thousand only) Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of ` 10 lakhs (Rupees Ten lakh only) each in various tranches on private placement which were duly listed on BSE Limited.

IV. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the company has redeemed various series of Debentures in the nature of Non-convertible debentures, 
Zero Coupon Bonds, Tier-II and Market Linked Debentures, aggregating to 54,881 (Fifty-Four Thousand Eighty Hundred Eighty-One only) during the year 
and has complied with the applicable laws.

V. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the company issued and allotted 3,20,200 (Three lakh Twenty Thousand Two hundred only) commercial 
papers of ` 5 lakhs (Rupees Five Lakh only) each in various tranches.

VI. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the company has redeemed 3,42,740 (Three lakh Forty-Two Thousand Seven hundred and Forty only) 
Commercial Paper in various tranches during the year and has complied with the applicable laws.

For Parikh & Associates 
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Mitesh Dhabliwala 
Partner 

  FCS No: 8331 CP No:9511 
Place: Mumbai  UDIN: F008331C000733539 
Date : 04th August, 2021 

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms an integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure A’

To, 
The Members 
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial 
records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the 
secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process and 
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our 
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management 
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Parikh & Associates 
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Mitesh Dhabliwala 
Partner 

  FCS No: 8331 CP No:9511 
Place: Mumbai   UDIN: F008331C000733539
Date : 04th August, 2021

Directors’ 
Report
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1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
 Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. (Kotak Prime) recognises the immense opportunity it has to bring about a positive change in the lives of the communities 

through its business operations and corporate social responsibility (CSR) initiatives.

 Kotak Prime aspires to be a trusted partner and contributes significantly towards the economic, environmental and social growth of the nation and is 
also committed to contribute towards United Nation’s (UN) Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). This policy sets out Kotak Prime’s vision, mission, 
governance, and CSR focus areas to fulfill its inclusive growth agenda in India. 

 While ensuring that its CSR Policy, projects and programmes are compliant with the CSR mandate as specified under section 134, section 135 read with 
schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014  as amended from time to time and 
in line with the Government of India’s notifications issued from time-to-time, Kotak Prime also endeavours to align its CSR projects and programmes with 
government initiated social development programmes and interventions and last but not the least, United Nation’s Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director
Designation/

Nature of
Directorship

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during 

the year 

1. Ms. Akila Urankar  Independent Director, Chairperson 
of CSR Committee

  2   2

2. Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi Managing Director   2   2

3. Mr. Narayan S.A.* Director 1 1

4. Mr. D. Kannan** Director 1 1

5. Prof. S. Mahendra Dev *** Independent Director  -   -

 *  Mr. Narayan S.A. has resigned as Director of the Company with effect from 1st December, 2020. 

 **  Mr. Devarajan Kannan was appointed as a member of the CSR Committee with effect from 1st December, 2020.

 *** Prof. S. Mahendra Dev was added as a member of the CSR Committee with effect from 31st March, 2021.  Prof. S. Mahendra Dev (DIN: 06519869) 
has resigned as an Independent Director of the Company effective end of working hours on 2nd June, 2021.

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:  https://
www.primeloans.kotak.com

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8  of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility  Policy) 
Rules, 2014, if applicable

 Not Applicable for FY21

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance  of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and 
amount required for set off for the financial year,  if any: Not applicable   

Sl. 
No.

Financial Year
Amount available for set-off 

from preceding financial year 
(in `)

Amount required to be setoff for 
the financial year, if any (in `)

1. NA NA NA

2.

3.

Total

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):  ` 85,680.00 lakh

7. (a)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as  per section 135(5): ` 1713.60 lakh

 (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil

 (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

 (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): ` 1713.60 lakh

Annual Report on CSR Activities of the Company
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021

Annexure - II
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent for 
the Financial Year (in 
`) lakhs

Amount Unspent (in `) lakhs

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to section 135(5). 

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

1194.48 519.32 26th April 2021  - - -

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Sl. 
No.

Name of  
the
Project

Item from 
the list of 
activities in 
Schedule VII 
to the Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No). 

Location of the project

Project duration

 Amount 
allocated

for the 
project

(in `)

Amount 
spent in 

the current 
financial 

Year (in `)

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR
Account for the 

project as per 
Section 135(6) (in `)

Mode of
Implementation -

Direct
(Yes/No)

Mode of Implementation - 
Through Implementing Agency

State District Name
CSR

Registration 
number

1. CSR 
Programme 
On Healthcare 

Healthcare  Yes Gujarat, 
Punjab

Surat, 
Rajkot, 

Jalandhar

  Ongoing CSR 
Project over a period 

of two (2) financial 
years FY2020-21 and 

FY2021-22

  560.8  402.8 158  No Wockhardt 
Foundation

CSR00000161

2. CSR 
Programme 
On Education-  
Project Excel 

Education  
& Livelihood

 Yes Pan India Ongoing Multi-year 
Projects to be 

implemented over 
a period of three 

financial years FY’21, 
FY’22 and FY’23

461 133 328 No Kotak Education 
Foundation  

CSR00001785

3. Direct Relief & 
Rehabilitation 
– COVID 19

  Relief & 
Rehabilitation 

– COVID 19

Yes PAN India - Ongoing CSR Project 
over a period of two 

(2) financial years 
FY2020-21 and 

FY2021-22

  50 16.68 33.32   Yes - -

Total 1071.8 552.48 519.32

 (c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl.
No.

Name of
the Project

Item from the 
list of activities 
in schedule VII 
to the Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No). 

Location of the project Amount
spent for the 

project
(in `) lakh

Mode of 
implementati

on -  
Direct 

(Yes/No).  

Mode of implementation -  
Through implementing agency. 

State District Name
CSR

registration 
number

1. CSR 
Programme on 
Education

Education & 
Livelihood

 Yes Maharashtra Mumbai 197   No  Muktangan 
Education Trust

CSR00000732

2. CSR 
Programme on 
Education & 
Livelihood 

Education & 
Livelihood

 Yes PAN India - 303  No Pratham 
Education 

Foundation

CSR00000258

3. CSR 
Programme On 
Education And 
Livelihood 

Promoting 
education
and employment
enhancing 
vocation
skills

Yes Maharashtra Mumbai 142 No Kotak Education 
Foundation

CSR00001785

 Total 642

 (d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - NIL

 (e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - NIL

 (f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) – ` 1713.80 lakh

Directors’ 
Report
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 (g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. 
No.

Particular Amount (in `)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)  ` 1713.6 lakh

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ` 1713.8 lakh

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]  0.20

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any  -

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]  0.20

9. (a)  Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial  years: 

Sl.
No.

Preceding 
Financial Year. 

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6) 
(in `)

Amount spent in  
the reporting 
Financial Year  
(in `)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 
financial years 
(in `)

Name of 
the Fund Amount (in `) Date of transfer

1. NA

2.

3.

Total

  (b)  Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sl.
No.

Project ID
Name of
the
Project

Financial
Year in which 
the project was 
commenced

Project 
duration

Total 
amount
allocated
for the
project
(in `)

Amount
spent on the 
project in
the reporting 
Financial
Year (in `) 

Cumulative 
amount spent 
at the end of 
reporting
Financial
Year (in `)

Status of the
project -
Completed /
Ongoing

1. NA

2.

3.

Total

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the  asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year 
(asset-wise details). NA

 (a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

  Not applicable

 (b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

  Nil

 (c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.

  Not applicable

 (d) Details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset).

  Not applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5). NA

Sd/- 
 

Managing Director 

Sd/-

Chairperson, CSR Committee
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To the Members of Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

OPINION
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at  

31st March, 2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other 
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

BASIS FOR OPINION
3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
4. We draw attention to Note 2(A)(ii) to the financial statements, which describes the Management’s assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus 

(COVID-19) on the business operations of the Company. In view of the uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the 
subsequent periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATERS
5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current 

period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

I.  Assessment of impairment loss allowance basis expected credit 
losses (ECL) on Loans

 (Refer Notes 7, 8 and 30 of the financial statements)
 The loan balances towards vehicle finance, structured loans, personal 

loans, and other loans aggregating to ` 2,323,524 lakhs and the 
associated impairment allowances aggregating to ` 81,295 lakhs 
are significant to the financial statements and involves judgement 
around the determination of the impairment allowance in line with 
the requirements of the Ind AS 109.

 Impairment allowances represent management’s estimate of the 
losses incurred within the loan portfolios at the balance sheet date 
and are inherently judgmental. Impairment, based on ECL model, 
is calculated using two main variables viz. ‘Probability of Default’ 
and ‘Loss Given Default’ as specified under the related Accounting 
Standard (Ind AS 109).

 Quantitative factors like days past due, behaviour of the portfolio, 
historical losses incurred on defaults and macro-economic data 
points and qualitative factors like nature of the underlying loan, 
deterioration in credit quality, reduction in the value of security, 
correlation of macro-economic variables to determine expected 
losses, uncertainty over realisability of security, judgement in 
relation to management overlays and related Reserve Bank of India 
(RBI) guidelines, to the extent applicable, etc. have been taken into 
account in the ECL computation.

 Given the inherent judgmental nature and the complexity of audit 
procedures involved, we determined this to be a key audit matter.

The audit procedures performed by us to assess appropriateness of the 
impairment allowance basis ECL on loans included the following:

•	 We	 understood	 and	 evaluated	 the	 design	 and	 tested	 the	 operating	
effectiveness of the key controls put in place by the management over:

  i.   the assumptions used in the calculation of ECL and its various 
aspects such as determination of Probability of Default, Loss Given 
Default, Exposure At Default, Staging of Loans etc.;

 ii.   the completeness and accuracy of source data used by the 
Management in the ECL computation;

 iii.  ECL computations for their reasonableness.
•	 We,	 along	 with	 the	 assistance	 of	 the	 our	 experts,	 verified	 the	

appropriateness of methodology and models used by the Company and 
reasonableness of the assumptions used within the computation process 
to derive impairment provision.

•	 We	also	test-checked	the	completeness	and	accuracy	of	source	data	used.
•	 We	 recomputed	 the	 impairment	 provision	 for	 sample	 of	 loans	 across	

the portfolio, to ensure arithmetical accuracy and compliance with the 
requirements of related accounting standard (Ind AS 109) used in the 
ECL computation.

•	 We	 have	 evaluated,	 the	 reasonableness	 of	 the	 judgement	 involved	 in	
management overlays forming part of the impairment provision, and the 
related approvals.

•	 We	evaluated	the	adequacy	of	presentation	and	disclosures	in	relation	to	
impairment loss allowance in the financial statements.

 Based on the procedures performed above, we considered the 
management’s assessment of impairment loss allowance basis ECL on 
Loans to be reasonable.

Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent 
Auditor’s Report
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

II.  Assessment of fair valuation of equity and a debt investment
 (Refer Note 8 of the financial statements)
 Investments made by the Company in equity and debt instruments 

amounting to ` 230,155 lakhs are measured at fair value with the 
corresponding fair value changes recognised in either the statement 
of profit or loss or other comprehensive income in accordance with 
related Accounting Standard (Ind AS 109).

 The valuation of these investments are inherently subjective 
since these are valued using inputs other than quoted prices or 
unobservable inputs i.e., which may not be observable independently 
of the Company information and valued basis management 
assumptions/estimates using the services of a valuation expert 
engaged by the management.

 Significant inputs used in the valuation of above investments include 
comparable companies’ multiples, net asset value etc. The use of 
methodology for valuing these investments may also be subjective.

 Given the inherent subjectivity in the valuation of the above 
investments, relative significance of these investments to the 
financial statements and the nature and extent of audit procedures 
involved, we determined this to be a key audit matter.

The following procedures were performed by us, to test the valuation of certain 
types of investments:

•	 We	 understood	 and	 evaluated	 the	 design	 and	 tested	 the	 operating	
effectiveness of the relevant controls in the investment valuation process.

•	 We	 evaluated	 the	 competence,	 capabilities	 and	 objectivity	 of	
Management’s valuation expert.

•	 We	 involved	 our	 expert	 to	 assess	 the	 appropriateness	 of	 valuation	
methodology and reasonableness of significant assumptions used by the 
Company to estimate the fair value.

•	 We	verified	the	source	data	used	in	the	determination	of	fair	valuation	of	
investments on a sample basis.

•	 We	tested	the	arithmetical	accuracy	of	fair	value	computations.
•	 We	evaluated	the	adequacy	of	presentation	and	disclosures	in	relation	to	

these investments in the financial statements.
 Based on these procedures, we considered the management’s assessment 

of the fair valuation of certain investments in equity and debt instruments 
to be reasonable.

OTHER INFORMATION
6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s report, 

but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board’s report is expected to be made available to us after the date of 
this auditor’s report.

 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

  In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

  When we read the Board’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those 
charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
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considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	 •	 	Identify	and	assess	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	financial	statements,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error,	design	and	perform	audit	procedures	
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

	 •	 Obtain	an	understanding	of	internal	control	relevant	to	the	audit	in	order	to	design	audit	procedures	that	are	appropriate	in	the	circumstances.	
Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

	 •	 Evaluate	the	appropriateness	of	accounting	policies	used	and	the	reasonableness	of	accounting	estimates	and	related	disclosures	made	by	management.

	 •	 Conclude	on	the	appropriateness	of	management’s	use	of	 the	going	concern	basis	of	accounting	and,	based	on	the	audit	evidence	obtained,	
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

	 •	 Evaluate	the	overall	presentation,	structure	and	content	of	the	financial	statements,	including	the	disclosures,	and	whether	the	financial	statements	
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

13. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
14. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 

section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit.

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

 (c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

 (d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

 (e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 
the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 (f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

Independent 
Auditor’s Report
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 (g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

  i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements – Refer Note 36 to the 
financial statements;

  ii.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on 
long-term contracts including derivative contracts – Refer Notes 7, 8, 13, 29 and 30 to the financial statements;

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

  iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

16.  The Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N / N500016

Sharad Agarwal
Partner

Membership Number: 118522
UDIN: 21118522AAAACP1235

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th June, 2021
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REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF  
SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE ACT
1.  We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 

2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
2.  The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and 
the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4.  Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
6.  A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7.  Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 15(f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited on the financial statements 
as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Independent 
Auditor’s Report



24

Annual Report 2020-21

OPINION
8.  In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and 

such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2021, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Also refer paragraph 4 of the 
main audit report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N / N500016

Sharad Agarwal
Partner

Membership Number: 118522
UDIN: 21118522AAAACP1235

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th June, 2021
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i.  (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets.

 (b)  The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified partially by the Management during the year. In view of the lockdown consequent 
to the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19), the physical verification of fixed assets could not be completed by the Company as at the year end. 
Further, the Company has carried out the physical verification of remaining fixed assets subsequent to the year-end; consequently, in our opinion, 
the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

 (c)  The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 10 on property, plant and equipment to the financial statements, are held in the name 
of the Company.

ii.  The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii.  The Company has granted unsecured loans, to two companies covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

 a) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

 b)  In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated, and the parties are repaying 
the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest as applicable.

 c) In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

iv.   The Company has not granted any loan or provided any guarantee or security in connection with any loan taken by party covered under Section 
185 of the Act.

 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act 
in respect of the loans or investments made, or guarantees or security provided by it, to the extent applicable.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there 
under to the extent notified.

vi. The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products 
of the Company.

vii.  (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is 
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of employees’ state insurance, professional tax and labour welfare fund, though 
there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including income tax, provident fund and goods 
and service tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also refer Note 36(a) to the financial statements 
regarding management’s assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund.

   Further, for the period April 1, 2020 to May 31, 2020, the Company has paid Goods and Service Tax and filed Form GSTR-3B after the due date but 
within the timelines allowed by Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs under Notification No. 32/2020- Central Tax read with Notification No. 
36/2020- Central Tax, both notifications dated 03.04.2020, on fulfilment of conditions specified therein.

 (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, the particulars of dues of income tax, 
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs and duty of excise duty, value added tax or goods and service tax as at 31st March, 2021 which have not been 
deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of dues
Amount

(` In lakhs)
Period to which the 

 amount relates
Forum where the dispute is pending

Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 562.49 Assessment Year 2013-14 Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals)

Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 335.97 Assessment Year 2014-15 Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals)

Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 328.82 Assessment Year 2015-16 Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals)

Income Tax Act,1961 Income Tax 313.91 Assessment Year 2016-17 Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals)

The Delhi Value Added 
Tax Rules, 2005

Value Added Tax 0.69 Assessment Year 2009-10 Special Objection Hearing Authority – Delhi 
VAT Department

Maharashtra Value 
Added Tax, 2002

Value Added Tax 2.02* Assessment Year 2013-14 Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax - 
Maharashtra

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 14 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited on the financial statements 
as of and for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

Independent 
Auditor’s Report
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Name of the statute Nature of dues
Amount

(` In lakhs)
Period to which the 

 amount relates
Forum where the dispute is pending

Maharashtra Value 
Added Tax, 2002

Value Added Tax 4.32* Assessment Year 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax - 
Maharashtra

Maharashtra Value 
Added Tax, 2002

Value Added Tax 43.02* Assessment Year 2015-16 Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax - Maharashtra

Maharashtra Value 
Added Tax, 2002

Value Added Tax 108.97* Assessment Year 2016-17 Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax - Maharashtra

  * Details of amounts paid under protest –

Assessment year Name of the Statute Nature of dues
Amount paid 
under protest

(` In lakhs)

2013-14 Maharashtra Value Added Tax, 2002 Value Added Tax  0.20

2014-15 Maharashtra Value Added Tax, 2002 Value Added Tax  0.43

2015-16 Maharashtra Value Added Tax, 2002 Value Added Tax  4.30

2016-17 Maharashtra Value Added Tax, 2002 Value Added Tax  6.66

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment 
of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

ix. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt instruments). In our opinion, and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, the money raised by way of term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices 
in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or 
on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

xi. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read 
with Schedule V to the Act. Also refer paragraph 16 of our main audit report.

xii.   As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of 
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv.  The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 
3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  The Company is required to and has been registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as a Non-Banking Financial Company – 
Investment and Credit Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N / N500016

Sharad Agarwal
Partner

Membership Number: 118522
UDIN: 21118522AAAACP1235

Place: Mumbai
Date:  15th June, 2021



27
Overview

Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2021 

(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars
Note 
No.

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
31st March, 2020

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4  6,013.46  41,345.65 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 5  21.51  65,222.13 
Receivables
 Trade receivables 6  6.43  6.48 
Loans 7  2,092,661.37  2,539,472.03 
Investments 8  575,990.02  323,081.46 
Other financial assets 9  3,783.78  4,292.33 
Sub total  2,678,476.57  2,973,420.08 
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Net) 34(e)  3,493.90  2,521.04 
Deferred tax assets (Net) 34(d)  19,412.90  13,459.26 
Property, plant and equipment 10  3,423.38  3,857.48 
Other intangible assets 11  117.25  156.23 
Other non-financial assets 12  3,372.56  3,760.05 
Sub total  29,819.99  23,754.06 
Total Assets  2,708,296.56  2,997,174.14 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivatives financial instruments 13  4,738.99  8,135.24 
Payables
 Trade payables 14

 (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -  - 

 (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  38,462.19  15,823.21 
Debt securities 15  1,123,754.73  1,257,280.79 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16  620,309.31  875,033.69 
Deposits 17  160.21  165.84 
Subordinated liabilities 18  47,957.61  50,659.06 
Other financial liabilities 19  6,946.03  3,575.61 
Sub total  1,842,329.07  2,210,673.44 
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net) 34(e)  3,902.83  3,011.83
Provisions 20  721.72  882.99
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 34(d)  45,215.72  39,340.63
Other non-financial liabilities 21  1,576.81  925.15
Sub total  51,417.08  44,160.60
EQUITY
Equity share capital 22  349.52  349.52 
Other equity 23  814,200.89  741,990.58 
Sub total  814,550.41  742,340.10 

Total Liabilities and Equity  2,708,296.56  2,997,174.14 

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Vyomesh Kapasi 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07665329 

Devarajan Kannan 
Director 
DIN: 00498935 Sharad Agarwal

Partner
Membership No. 118522

Date and Place: 15th June, 2021, Mumbai Date and Place: 15th June, 2021, Mumbai

Balance Sheet 
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(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars
Note 
No.

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

Year ended
31st March, 2020

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(i) Interest Income on financial instruments measured at: 24

 - Amortised Cost  239,311.70  299,633.08
 - Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income  3,646.52  2,373.18

(ii) Dividend income  -  1,000.00
(iii) Rental income  538.01  589.53
(iv) Fees and commission income 25  8,779.16  11,012.07
(v) Net gain on fair value changes 26  4,475.84  5,476.71
(vi) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category  -  35.04
(I) Total revenue from operations  256,751.23  320,119.61
(II) Other income 27  2,451.47  32.62
(III) Total income (I + II)  259,202.70  320,152.23

EXPENSES
(i) Finance costs 28  124,258.18  180,179.90
(ii) Fees and commission expense  -  3.23
(iii) Net loss on fair value changes 29  1,548.61  258.19
(iv) Impairment on financial instruments 30  31,231.00  27,548.52
(v) Employee benefits expenses 31  14,867.51  14,269.55
(vi) Depreciation and amortisation 32  748.62  802.19
(vii) Other expenses 33  16,558.05  15,769.94
(IV) Total expenses  189,211.97  238,831.52
(V) Profit before tax (III - IV)  69,990.73  81,320.71
(VI) Tax expense 34

(1) Current tax  23,899.20  25,794.20
(2) Deferred tax  (5,835.83)  (2,995.01)
Total tax expense  18,063.37  22,799.19

(VII) Profit for the year (V-VI)  51,927.36  58,521.52
(VIII) Other comprehensive income
(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

  -  Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  100.15  (41.96)

  -  Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income  26,491.29  37,285.35
Sub-total  26,591.44  37,243.39
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
 - Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  (25.21)  7.18
 - Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income  (5,875.09)  (7,829.10)
Total (A)  20,691.14  29,421.47

(B)  (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
  -  Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income  (568.16)  (393.01)
Sub total  (568.16)  (393.01)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
  - Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income  142.99  183.25
Total (B)  (425.17)  (209.76)
Other comprehensive income (A + B)  20,265.97  29,211.71

(IX) Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII)  72,193.33  87,733.23
(X) Earnings per equity share 35

Earnings per share - Basic and Diluted  1,485.68  1,674.34

The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Profit And Loss Account
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Vyomesh Kapasi 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07665329 

Devarajan Kannan 
Director 
DIN: 00498935 Sharad Agarwal

Partner
Membership No. 118522

Date and Place: 15th June, 2021, Mumbai Date and Place: 15th June, 2021, Mumbai
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Statement Of Cash Flows
 for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the Year ended 

31st March, 2020
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax  69,990.73  81,320.71
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash generated from / (used in) operating 
activities
Depreciation and amortization expense  748.62  802.19
Net gain on fair value changes  (4,475.84)  (5,476.71)
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category  -  (35.04)
MTM on embedded option liability  (445.38)  258.19
MTM on Derivative (Cross currency swap)  1,993.99  -
Dividend on investments  -  (1,000.00)
Discount income on certificate of deposits  -  (25.40)
Interest accured on Investments  (1,053.38)  -
Unrealised gain on foreign currency translation of liability  (2,143.43)  -
Rent Concession  (13.39)  -
Discount income on commercial paper  (55.29)  (74.45)
Interest on Lease Liability  88.83  118.87
Unwinding of discount on security deposits  (21.45)  (11.12)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment  (13.59)  (21.47)
Provision for contingencies no longer required  (719.76)  (544.34)
Share-based payments  37.95  78.32
Provision for employee benefits - gratuity  173.11  225.05
Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost  2,395.49  319.05
Provision for employee benefits - compensated absences  42.89  79.45
Impairment loss allowance  30,266.87  27,548.52
Operating profit before working capital changes  96,796.97  103,561.82
Working capital adjustments
(Increase) / decrease in loans  416,975.90  251,228.66
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables  0.04  9.19
(Increase) / decrease in bank balance other than cash and cash equivalent  65,213.34  77,086.35
(Increase) / decrease in debentures  (50,229.35)  (68,221.47)
(Increase) / decrease in interest accrued on investments  (914.02)  -
(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets  556.74  (3,205.64)
(Increase) / decrease in other non-financial assets  385.44  178.11
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables  22,638.98  (14,240.48)
Increase / (decrease) in deposits  (5.63)  (43.09)
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities  3,583.82  (303.45)
Increase / (decrease) in debt securities, borrowings other than debt securities and subordinated liabilities 
due to interest accrued

 (20,728.87)  252.06

Increase / (decrease) in provisions  442.63  424.59
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities  651.66  (662.88)

 438,570.68  242,501.95
Cash generated from / (used in) operations  535,367.65  346,063.77
Income tax paid (net)  (23,981.06)  (27,655.90)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities  511,386.59  318,407.87
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (213.92)  (372.09)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  18.80  30.64
Dividend on investments  -  1,000.00
Discount income on certificate of deposits  -  21.51
Interest received on PTC
Purchase of investments  (2,561,014.63)  (4,504,116.87)
Proceeds from sale of investments  2,390,283.60  4,503,985.53
Net cash generated from investing activities  (170,926.15)  548.72

Profit and Loss Account

Statement of Cash Flows 
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(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars
For the Year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the Year ended 

31st March, 2020
Cash flow from financing activities
Increase in debt securities (Net)  (115,460.70)  (293,980.35)
Increase / (decrease) in borrowings other than debt securities (Net)  (252,514.38)  (3,740.81)
Increase / (decrease) in subordinated liabilities  (2,500.00)  (0.00)
Increase / (decrease) in derivative financial instruments  (4,944.87)  (1,347.86)
Loss on sale of commercial paper  -  -
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) on equity shares  (20.97)  (25.28)
Payment of lease liability  (353.62)  (400.81)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities  (375,794.54)  (299,495.11)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (35,334.10)  19,461.48
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  41,364.08  21,902.60
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note a below)  6,029.98  41,364.08

Notes:
a. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the balance sheet
 Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet (refer note 4)
 Cash on hand  905.82  426.28
 Balances with banks in current account  4,056.37  14,126.72
 Cheques, drafts on hand  1,067.79  986.29
 Less: Impairment loss allowance  -
 Balances with banks in deposits (less than 3 months maturity)  -  25,824.80
 Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet*  6,029.98  41,364.08
* Cash and cash equivalents shown in Balance Sheet is net of ECL provision of ` 16.52 lakhs as at 31st March, 2021, ` 18.44 lakhs as at 31st March, 2020

b. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7 - ‘Cash Flow Statements’.

c. Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars
 As at 

1st April, 2020 
 Cash flows  Non-cash 

changes* 
As at 

31st March, 2021
Debt securities  1,257,280.79  (115,460.70)  (18,065.36)  1,123,754.73
Borrowings (other than debt securities)  875,033.69  (252,514.38)  (2,210.00)  620,309.31
Subordinated liabilities  50,659.06  (2,500.00)  (201.45)  47,957.61
Total liabilities from financing activities  2,182,973.55  (370,475.08)  (20,476.81)  1,792,021.65

Particulars
As at  

1st April, 2019
 Cash flows  Non-cash  

changes* 
As at 

31st March, 2020
Debt securities  1,547,961.85  (293,980.35)  3,299.28  1,257,280.79 
Borrowings (other than debt securities)  881,503.68  (3,740.81)  (2,729.17)  875,033.69 
Subordinated liabilities  50,658.06  0.00  1.00  50,659.06 
Total liabilities from financing activities  2,480,123.59  (297,721.16)  571.11  2,182,973.54 

* Non-cash changes includes the effect of recording financial liability at amortized cost, amortization of transaction costs etc.

The above statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement Of Cash Flows
 for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Vyomesh Kapasi 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07665329 

Devarajan Kannan 
Director 
DIN: 00498935 Sharad Agarwal

Partner
Membership No. 118522

Date and Place: 15th June, 2021, Mumbai Date and Place: 15th June, 2021, Mumbai
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Statement Of Changes In Equity 
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  349.52  349.52 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -  - 

Balance at the end of the reporting period  349.52  349.52 

B. OTHER EQUITY
(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus Debt 
instruments 
through OCI

Equity 
instruments 
through OCI

Total

Special 
reserve

Securities 
premium

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

General 
reserve

Capital 
contribution 
from parent

Retained 
earnings

Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2019 97,862.94  53,075.16  100.00  182.54  281.65  389,106.37  561.26  113,249.05  654,418.97

Transition impact of Ind AS 116, net of taxes  -  -  -  -  -  (214.65)  -  -  (214.65)

Restated opening balance as at April 1, 2019 97,862.94  53,075.16  100.00  182.54  281.65  388,891.72  561.26  113,249.05  654,204.32

Profit for the year  -  -  -  -  -  58,521.52  -  -  58,521.52

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)  -  -  -  -  -  (34.78)  (209.76)  29,456.25  29,211.71

Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 
31st March, 2020

 -  -  -  -  -  58,486.74  (209.76)  29,456.25  87,733.23

Transfer/utilisations

Transfer to special reserve u/s 45 IC of the RBI Act, 1934  13,500.00  -  -  -  -  (13,500.00)  -  -  -

Share based payment (refer note 42)  -  -  -  - 78.32  -  -  -  78.32

Dividend on equity shares (refer note 22(h))  -  -  -  -  -  (20.97)  -  -  (20.97)

Dividend distribution tax on equity shares  -  -  -  -  -  (4.31)  -  -  (4.31)

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 111,362.94  53,075.16  100.00  182.54  359.97  433,853.18  351.50  142,705.30  741,990.58

Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2020 111,362.94  53,075.16  100.00  182.54  359.97  433,853.18  351.50  142,705.30  741,990.58

Profit for the year  51,927.36  51,927.36

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)  74.94  (425.17)  20,616.20  20,265.97

Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 
31st March, 2021

111,362.94  53,075.16  100.00  182.54  359.97  485,855.48  (73.67)  163,321.50  814,183.91

Transfer/utilisations

Transfer to special reserve u/s 45 IC of the RBI Act, 1934  10,700.00  -  -  -  -  (10,700.00)  -  -  -

Share based payment (refer note 42)  -  -  -  -  37.95  -  -  -  37.95

Dividend on equity shares (refer note 22(h))  -  -  -  -  -  (20.97)  -  -  (20.97)

Balance as at 31st March, 2021 122,062.94  53,075.16  100.00  182.54  397.92  475,134.51  (73.67)  163,321.50  814,200.89

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Vyomesh Kapasi 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07665329 

Devarajan Kannan 
Director 
DIN: 00498935 Sharad Agarwal

Partner
Membership No. 118522

Date and Place: 15th June, 2021, Mumbai Date and Place: 15th June, 2021, Mumbai

Statement Of Cash Flows  
Statement Of Changes In Equity
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NOTE 1 – CORPORATE INFORMATION
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited (the Company) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The 
Company is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company with Reserve Bank of India. The Company is primarily engaged in financing of passenger cars and 
multi-utility vehicles for retail customers and inventory and term funding to car dealers. The Company also provides finance for loans against securities, personal 
loans, corporate loans and developer funding.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently 
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

A. Basis of preparation

 (i) Statement of compliance

  The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein after referred as  
‘Ind AS’) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended 
by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016] and other relevant provisions of the Act. Any application guidance/clarification/
directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued/applicable.

  The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods 
presented in the financial statements. These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 15th June, 2021.

 (ii) COVID-19 pandemic

  In addition to the widespread public health implications, the COVID-19 pandemic has had an extraordinary impact on macroeconomic conditions 
in India and around the world. During the previous year, people and economies around the world, witnessed serious turbulence caused by the first 
wave of the pandemic, the consequent lockdowns, the gradual easing of restrictions and the emergence of new variants of the virus. Although 
government has started vaccination drive, COVID-19 cases have significantly increased in recent months due to second wave as compared to earlier 
levels in India. Various state governments have again announced strict measures which include lockdowns to contain this spread. As COVID vaccines 
get administered to more and more people, businesses in sectors impacted by pandemic may pick up. However, the continuing and evolving nature 
of the virus has created uncertainty regarding estimated time required for businesses and lives to get back to normal.

  The Company continues to closely monitor the situation and in response to this health crisis has implemented protocols and processes to execute its 
business continuity plans and help protect its employees and support its clients. The pandemic has impacted lending business, fee income, collection 
efficiency etc. resulting in increase in customer defaults and consequently increase in provisions. The Company, however, has not experienced any 
significant disruptions in the past one year and has considered the impact on carrying value of assets based on the external or internal information 
available up to the date of approval of financial statements. The future direct and indirect impact of COVID-19 on Company’s business, results of 
operations, financial position and cash flows remains uncertain.

 (iii) Historical cost convention

  The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following items:

	 	 •	 Certain	financial	assets	and	liabilities	-	Measured	at	fair	value	(refer	accounting	policy	regarding	financial	instruments);

	 	 •	 Defined	benefit	plans	-	Plan	assets	are	measured	at	fair	value;

	 	 •	 Share-based	payments	-	Measured	at	fair	value

B. Property, plant and equipment

 i. Recognition and measurement

  Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

  The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

  a. its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

  b. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management.

  Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Notes
forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
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Schedules

  If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted and depreciated for as separate 
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

  Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/(losses).

 ii. Subsequent expenditure

  Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the 
Company. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

 iii. Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

  Deprecation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a Straight Line Method over the estimated useful life of the assets at rates which are equal to or 
higher than the rates prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets and based on 
technical evaluation done by the management’s expert. Estimated useful lives over which assets are depreciated / amortised are as follows

Computers 3 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Furniture and Fixtures 6 years

Vehicles 4 years

Premises 58 years

Leasehold Improvements Over the period of lease subject to a maximum of 6 years

  Assets costing less than 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

  Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

C. Intangible assets

 i. Recognition and measurement

  Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset 
comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), 
and any directly attributable expenditure on making ‘the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Subsequent 
expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase/completion is recognised as an expense when incurred unless it is probable that such expenditure 
will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can 
be measured and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

 ii. Subsequent expenditure

  Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

 iii. Amortisation

  The intangible assets are amortised over the estimated useful lives as given below:

Software (including development) expenditure 3 years

  Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

D. Foreign currency

 Functional and presentation currency

 The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the functional currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded off to 
the nearest lakhs with two decimals, unless otherwise indicated.

 Transactions and balances

 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains 
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Notes
forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021
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 Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All 
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

 Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was 
determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the gain or loss on fair value changes.

E. Financial instrument
 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

 Financial assets

 The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value 
through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

 Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction fees 
or costs that are directly attributable and incremental to the origination/acquisition of the financial asset unless otherwise specifically mentioned in the 
accounting policies.

 Business model assessment

 The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held such that it best reflects the way the business is managed 
and is consistent with information provided to management. The information considered includes:

 - the objectives for the portfolio, in particular, management’s strategy of focusing on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular 
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows 
through the sale of the assets;

 - the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about future sales activity. However, 
information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated objective for 
managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

 - the risks that affect the performance of the business model, the financial assets held within that business model and how those risks are managed

 Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

 For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration 
for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic 
lending risks and costs, as well as profit margin.

 In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the 
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash 
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Company considers:

	 •	 reset	terms

	 •	 contingent	events	that	would	change	the	amount	and	timing	of	cash	flows;

	 •	 prepayment	and	extension	terms;	and

	 •	 features	that	modify	consideration	of	the	time	value	of	money	–	e.g.	periodical	reset	of	interest	rates.

 Subsequent measurement

 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

 (i) Amortised cost (AC)

  A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

	 	 •	 the	asset	is	held	within	a	business	model	whose	objective	is	to	hold	assets	to	collect	contractual	cash	flows;	and

	 	 •	 the	contractual	terms	of	the	financial	asset	represent	contractual	cash	flows	that	are	solely	payments	of	principal	and	interest	on	the	principal	
amount outstanding.
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  After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest (EIR) method. Amortised 
cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR and reported as part 
of interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses if any, arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 (ii) Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – debt investment

  A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions:

	 	 •	 the	asset	is	held	within	a	business	model	whose	objective	is	achieved	by	both	collecting	contractual	cash	flows	and	selling	financial	assets;	and

	 	 •	 	the	contractual	terms	of	the	financial	asset	represent	contractual	cash	flows	that	are	solely	payments	of	principal	and	interest	on	the	principal	
amount outstanding

  After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income is recognised using the effective interest 
(EIR) method. The loss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying value of the financial asset. On 
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

 (iii) Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – equity investment

  On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the 
investment’s fair value in Other Comprehensive Income. This election is made on an investment- by- investment basis.

  After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in Statement of Profit 
and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI 
and are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

 (iv) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

  This is a residual category for classification. Any asset which does not meet the criteria for classification as at amortised cost or FVOCI, is classified 
as FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, and changes in fair value therein are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost except when designated to be measured at FVTPL.

F. Impairment of financial assets

 Methodology for computation of Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

 The financial instruments covered within the scope of ECL include financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI, such as trade receivables, 
loans, debentures, preference shares, certificate of deposit, balances and deposits with banks and other financial assets. ECL has not been determined on 
financial assets measured at FVTPL.

 The loss allowance has been measured using lifetime ECL except for financial assets on which there has been no significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition. In such cases, loss allowance has been measured at 12 month ECL.

 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit- 
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred since initial 
recognition. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the observable data such as Days Past Due (‘DPD’) or default event.

 ECL are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses, measured as follows:

	 •	 Financial	assets	that	are	not	credit	impaired	at	the	reporting	date:

  ECL has been estimated by determining the probability of default (‘PD’), Exposure at Default (‘EAD’) and loss given default (‘LGD’). PD has been 
computed using observed history of default and converted into forward looking PD’s using suitable macro-economic variable data.

	 •	 Financial	assets	that	are	credit	impaired	at	the	reporting	date:

  For loans, ECL has been estimated as the difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.

 For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach. It recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, 
right from its initial recognition. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime 
ECLs at each reporting date.
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 If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of the 
borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial asset should be derecognised:

	 •	 If	the	expected	restructuring	will	not	result	in	derecognition	of	the	existing	asset,	expected	cash	flows	arising	from	the	modified	financial	asset	are	
included in calculating cash shortfalls from the existing asset

	 •	 If	the	expected	restructuring	will	result	in	derecognition	of	the	existing	asset	and	the	recognition	of	modified	asset,	the	modified	asset	is	considered	
as a new financial asset. The date of the modification is treated as the date of initial recognition of that financial asset when applying the impairment 
requirements to the modified financial asset. The impairment loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses 
until there is a significant increase in credit risk. If modified financial asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition, the financial asset is recognized as 
originated credit impaired asset.

 Criteria used for determination of movement from stage 1 (12 month ECL) to stage 2 (lifetime ECL) and stage 3 (Lifetime ECL)

 The Company applies a three-stage approach to measure ECL on financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI. The assets migrate through the 
following three stages based on an assessment of qualitative and quantitative considerations:

 - Stage 1: 12 month ECL

  For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit impaired upon origination, 
the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognised. Interest income 
is accrued using the effective interest rate on the gross carrying amount.

 - Stage 2: Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired):

  At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for financial assets since initial recognition. 
In determining whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company uses days past due (DPD) information and other 
qualitative factors to assess deterioration in credit quality of a financial asset.

  For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL 
is recognised. Interest income is accrued using the effective interest rate on the gross carrying amount.

 - Stage 3: Lifetime ECL (credit impaired):

  Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 
asset have occurred. For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying 
the effective interest rate to the amortized cost (net of loss allowance).

 If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination, then the Expected 
Credit Loss reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-months ECL

 Method used to compute lifetime ECL:

 The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the 
EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the present value of cash flows 
that the entity expects to receive. The Company applies statistical techniques to estimate lifetime ECL.

 Manner in which forward looking assumptions has been incorporated in ECL estimates:

 The Company considers its historical loss experience and adjusts it for current observable data. In addition, the Company uses reasonable forecasts of 
future economic conditions including expert judgement to estimate the amount of expected credit losses. The methodology and assumptions including 
any forecasts of future economic conditions are periodically reviewed and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

G. Write-offs
 Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the 

Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts. If 
the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then 
applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instruments in Statement of Profit and 
Loss. However, financial assets that are written off may be subject to enforcement activities to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery 
of amounts due.
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H. Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:

	 •	 The	rights	to	receive	cash	flows	from	the	asset	have	expired,	or

	 •	 The	Company	has	transferred	its	rights	to	receive	cash	flows	from	the	asset	or	has	assumed	an	obligation	to	pay	the	received	cash	flows	in	full	
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset

 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to 
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing 
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis 
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset 
and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

 On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the 
asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative 
gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

 The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

I. Modification of financial assets and financial liabilities

 Financial assets

 If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash 
flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the 
original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value.

 If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not result in derecognition of 
the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of the renegotiated or 
modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate and recognises the amount arising from adjusting 
the gross carrying amount as modification gain or loss in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the 
modified financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. If such a modification is carried out because of financial 
difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income.

 Financial liabilities

 The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different. In this 
case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

J. Measurement of fair values
 The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial instruments such as unquoted equity instruments, 

debentures, preference shares etc.

 The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management regularly reviews significant 
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then 
the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, 
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

 When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are 
categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:-

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. 
derived from prices).

 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is 
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

 The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

K. Offsetting financial instruments
 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right 
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy 
of the group or the counterparty.

L. Derivative financial instruments
 Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as a speculative investments. However, where derivatives do not meet the hedge 

accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for accounting purposes and are accounted for at FVTPL.

 Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently  
re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss immediately.

 The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value 
through profit or loss and are shown as gains/(losses) on fair value changes.

 Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are 
considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

 Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely 
related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to 
the host contracts are not separated.

M. Revenue recognition

 Interest income

 Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets 
and financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL.

 The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed

 a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a 
financial asset.

 b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows.

 c. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other 
premiums or discounts.

 Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying 
amount of the assets.

 Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost (net of loss allowance) of the 
financial asset.

 Dividend income

 Dividend income is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis when the right to receive the dividend is established.

 Fees and commission income

 Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at fair value of the consideration received or receivable 
based on a five-step model as set out in Ind AS 115, unless included in the effective interest calculation:

 Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and 
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.
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 Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service 
to the customer.

 Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

 Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the 
Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

 Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

N. Employee benefits

 (i) Short-term obligations

  Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and 
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as employee benefit obligations in 
the Balance Sheet.

 (ii) Compensated Absences - Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

  The Company accrues the liability for compensated absences based on the actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date conducted by an 
independent actuary. The net present value of the Company’s obligation is determined based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance 
Sheet date. Remeasurement gains or losses on long term compensated absences are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

 (iii) Post-employment obligations

  The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

  a. Gratuity – Defined Benefit Plan

   The Company accounts for the liability for future gratuity benefits based on an actuarial valuation. The Company contributes to a Gratuity 
Fund administered by trustees and managed by Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited, fellow subsidiary.

   The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries 
using the projected unit credit method.

   The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market 
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

   The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan 
assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in 
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and 
in the Balance Sheet.

   Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately 
in Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost.

  b. Provident Fund/Employee State Insurance Scheme - Defined Contribution Plan

   The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are 
charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

 (iv) Other Employee Benefits

  The undiscounted amount of employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised during the 
period when the employee renders the service. These benefits include performance incentives.
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  As per the Company policy, employees of the Company are eligible for an award after completion of a specified number of years of service with the 
Company. The obligation is measured at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. This 
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 (v) Share based payment

  Employees Stock Options Plans (“ESOPs”) - Equity settled

  The ultimate holding company of the company operates share option schemes for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible 
participants who contribute to the success of the Company’s operations. Employees (including directors) of the Company receive remuneration in 
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity settled transactions”).

  The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees and directors for grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which 
they are granted:

  a. including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share price)

  b. excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. remaining an employee of the entity over a 
specified time period)

  The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, together with a corresponding increase in reserves, representing 
contribution received from the ultimate holding company, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The 
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which 
the vesting period has expired and the company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to 
Statement of Profit and Loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

  Stock Appreciation Rights (“SARs”) - Cash Settled

  The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation rights, which are settled in cash, is recognised as an expense 
with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period the employees unconditionally become entitled to payment. The liability is measured at 
the end of each reporting date up to and including settlement date, with changes in the fair value recognised under employee benefit expense in 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

 (vi) Bonus

  The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is 
a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

O. Income tax
 Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive 

income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

 Current tax

 The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each 
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

 The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries 
where the company and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

 Deferred tax

 Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred 
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected 
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be 
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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 Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates 
and interest in joint arrangements where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

 Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and 
interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available 
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax 
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and 
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

P. Earnings per share
 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends 

and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for events such as bonus issue, 
bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares), if any, that have changed the number of equity shares 
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are 
entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period.

 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Q. Leases

 Upto 31st March, 2019

 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as operating 
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over 
the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected 
inflationary cost increases

 With effect from 1st April, 2019

 Company as lessee

 The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a 
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term 
of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these 
leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic 
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the 
rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

 Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

	 •	 Fixed	lease	payments	(including	in-substance	fixed	payments),	less	any	lease	incentives	receivable;

	 •	 Variable	lease	payments	that	depend	on	an	index	or	rate,	initially	measured	using	the	index	or	rate	at	the	commencement	date;

	 •	 The	amount	expected	to	be	payable	by	the	lessee	under	residual	value	guarantees;

	 •	 The	exercise	price	of	purchase	options,	if	the	lessee	is	reasonably	certain	to	exercise	the	options;	and

	 •	 Payments	of	penalties	for	terminating	the	lease,	if	the	lease	term	reflects	the	exercise	of	an	option	to	terminate	the	lease.

 The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) 
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

 The Company re-measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

	 •	 the	 lease	term	has	changed	or	there	 is	a	significant	event	or	change	 in	circumstances	resulting	 in	a	change	 in	the	assessment	of	exercise	of	a	
purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
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	 •	 the	lease	payments	change	due	to	changes	in	an	index	or	rate	or	a	change	in	expected	payment	under	a	guaranteed	residual	value,	in	which	cases	
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is 
due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

	 •	 a	 lease	contract	 is	modified	and	the	 lease	modification	 is	not	accounted	for	as	a	separate	 lease,	 in	which	case	the	 lease	 liability	 is	 remeasured	
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of 
the modification.

 The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day, 
less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

 Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement 
date of the lease.

 Company as lessor

 Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

 Accounting for Finance leases as a Lessor

 Agreements are classified as finance leases, if substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the lessee.

 Assets given under finance leases are recognised as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Finance income is allocated over 
the lease term on a systematic and rational basis. This income allocation is based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic return on the net investment 
in the finance lease.

R. Provisions and contingent liabilities
 Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow 

of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

 Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date and are not discounted 
to its present value.

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements

S. Impairment of non-financial assets
 Assets/cash generating units (CGU) are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not 

be recoverable.

 An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value 
based on an appropriate discount factor.

 Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

T. Segment reporting
 An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose 

operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions for which discrete financial 
information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates 
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. Refer note 46 for segment information presented.

U. Cash and cash equivalents
 For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial 

institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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V. Borrowings
 Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference 

between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the 
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the 
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent 
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and 
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

W. Trade and other payables
 These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are 

unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method.

X. Borrowing cost
 General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised 

during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take 
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Y. Trade receivable
 Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at 

the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.

 The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

Z. Contributed equity
 Equity shares are classified as equity.

 Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

AA. Rounding of amounts
 All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless 

otherwise stated.

BB. Transition to Ind AS 116: Leases:
 On 30th March, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and  

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard,  
Ind AS 17 Leases and other interpretations.

 Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a 
single, on-Balance Sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

 Effective from 1st April, 2019 (‘the date of transition’), the Company applied Ind AS 116 retrospectively to all leases previously classified as operating 
leases with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognised at the date of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of 
retained earnings at 1st April, 2019 (‘the modified retrospective approach’). Accordingly, the comparative information is not restated – i.e. it is presented, as 
previously reported, under Ind AS 17. Additionally, the disclosure requirements in Ind AS 116 have not generally been applied to comparative information.

 Company as a lessee

 The Company has recognised a lease liability at the date of initial application for leases previously classified as an operating lease applying Ind AS 17. The 
Company has measured lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate 
at the date of initial application.

 The Company has recognised a right-of-use asset at the date of initial application for leases previously classified as an operating lease applying Ind AS 17. 
The Company has chosen to measure that right-of-use asset at its carrying amount as if the Ind AS 116 had been applied since the commencement date 
on a lease by lease basis, but discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application and adjusted for prepaid or accrued 
lease payments.
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 Rent equalisation liability created on account of straight-lining of rent escalations has been reversed through retained earnings. The Company has tested 
its right-of-use assets for impairment on the date of transition and has concluded that there is no indication that the right-of-use assets are impaired.

 Refer note 2(Q-R) – Significant accounting policies – Leases in the Financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019, for the policy 
as per Ind AS 17.

 Applying Ind AS 116, for all operating leases (except as indicated below), the Company:

 a) Recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the Balance Sheet;

 b) Recognises depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the Statement of Profit and Loss;

 c) Separates the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing activities) and interest (presented within financing 
activities) in the statement of cash flows

 The Company used a number of practical expedients when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17. In 
particular, the Company:

	 •	 Excluded	initial	direct	costs	from	measuring	the	right-of-use	asset	at	the	date	of	initial	application.

	 •	 Elected	not	to	apply	the	requirements	of	Ind	AS	116	to	leases	which	are	expiring	within	12	months	from	the	date	of	transition	by	class	of	assets	and	
leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis.

 The difference between the future minimum lease rental commitments towards non-cancellable operating leases reported as at 31st March, 2019 
compared to the lease liability as accounted as at 1st April, 2019 is primarily due to inclusion of present value of the lease payments for the cancellable 
term of the leases, reduction due to discounting of the lease liabilities as per the requirement of Ind AS 116 and exclusion of the commitments for the 
leases to which the Company has chosen to apply the practical expedient as per the standard.

 Company as a lessor

 The Company is not required to make any adjustments on transition to Ind AS 116 for leases in which it acts as a lessor. The Company accounted for its 
leases in accordance with Ind AS 116 from the date of initial application.

CC. Amendments to existing Ind AS
 The amendments listed below do not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current 

or future periods

	 •	 Definition	of	Material	–	amendments	to	Ind	AS	1	and	Ind	AS	8

	 •	 Definition	of	a	Business	–	amendments	to	Ind	AS	103

	 •	 COVID-19	related	concessions	–	amendments	to	Ind	AS	116

	 •	 Interest	Rate	Benchmark	Reform	–	amendments	to	Ind	AS	109	and	Ind	AS	107

 Note -3 Use of estimates and judgements

 The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management 
also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies.

 This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be 
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of 
these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the 
financial statements.

 The areas involving estimates or judgements are:

 (i) Estimation of defined benefit obligations

 (ii) Recognition of deferred tax assets, estimation of current tax expense and current tax payable

 (iii) Estimation of provisions and contingencies

 (iv) Fair value of employee share options

 (v) Fair value of financial instruments including unlisted equity instruments
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 (vi) Business model assessment

 (vii) Impairment of financial instruments

 Estimation uncertainty relating to Covid-19 in assessing the Impairment of Loans:

 Accounting estimates and associated assumptions applied in preparing these financial statements, especially for determining the impairment allowance 
for the Company’s loan receivables, are based on historical experience and other emerging / forward looking macro-economic variables considering the 
current impact of the pandemic. The Company has used estimation of potential stress on probability of default and exposure at default due to Covid-19 
situation in developing the estimates, assumptions and management overlays to assess the impairment loss allowance on loans. Based on the sensitivity 
analysis of the assumptions used, the Company believes that the factors considered are reasonable under the current circumstances. Given the dynamic 
nature of pandemic situation, these accounting estimates are subject to uncertainty and may be affected by the severity and duration of the pandemic. 
In the event the impacts are more severe or prolonged than anticipated, it will have a corresponding impact on the carrying value of financial assets, the 
financial position and performance of the Company.

NOTE 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars
As at

 31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Cash on hand  905.82  426.28

Balances with banks in current account  4,056.37  14,126.72

Cheques, drafts on hand  1,067.79  986.29

Balances with banks in deposits (less than 3 months maturity)  -  25,824.80

 6,029.98  41,364.09

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (16.52)  (18.44)

 6,013.46  41,345.65

NOTE 5 BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars
As at

 31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Earmarked balances with banks

Unclaimed matured debentures  -  7.60

Fixed deposit with banks  21.51  65,227.25

 21.51  65,234.85

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (0.00)  (12.72)

 21.51  65,222.13

NOTE 6 RECEIVABLES

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Amortised Cost

Trade receivables

Secured, considered good  -  -

Unsecured, considered good  6.52  6.56

 6.52  6.56

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (0.09)  (0.08)

 6.43  6.48
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NOTE 7 LOANS

Particulars

Amortised 
Cost

At Fair Value Sub total Total

Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Through 
profit or 

loss

Designated at fair 
value through 

profit or loss

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5=2+3+4) (6=1+5)

As at 31st March, 2021

(A) (i) Loans

 -  Vehicle finance 1,554,764.22  -  -  -  - 1,554,764.22

 -  Structured loans *  453,458.92  -  -  -  -  453,458.92

 -  Personal loans  85,445.78  -  -  -  -  85,445.78

(ii) CBLO lending  73,483.52  -  -  -  -  73,483.52

(iii) Inter corporate deposits  4,000.37  -  -  -  -  4,000.37

(iv) Loan to employees  57.97  -  -  -  -  57.97

(v) Lending through Pass Through Certificates (PTC)  1,494.06  -  -  -  -  1,494.06

Total Gross (A)  2,172,704.84  -  -  -  -  2,172,704.84

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (80,043.47)  -  -  -  -  (80,043.47)

Total Net (A) 2,092,661.37  -  -  -  - 2,092,661.37

(B) (i) Secured by tangible assets 1,866,391.67  -  -  -  - 1,866,391.67

(ii) Unsecured  306,313.17  -  -  -  -  306,313.17

Total Gross (B) 2,172,704.84  -  -  -  - 2,172,704.84

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (80,043.47)  -  -  -  -  (80,043.47)

Total Net (B) 2,092,661.37  -  -  -  - 2,092,661.37

(C) Loans in India

(i) Public Sector  -  -  -  -  -  -

(ii) Others 2,172,704.84  -  -  -  - 2,172,704.84

Total Gross (C) 2,172,704.84  -  -  -  - 2,172,704.84

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (80,043.47)  -  -  -  -  (80,043.47)

Total Net (C) 2,092,661.37  -  -  -  - 2,092,661.37

As at 31st March, 2020

(A) (i) Loans

 -  Vehicle finance 1,658,007.00  -  -  -  - 1,658,007.00

 -  Structured loans *  611,397.08  -  -  -  -  611,397.08

 -  Personal loans  129,774.11  -  -  -  -  129,774.11

(ii) CBLO lending  174,874.64  -  -  -  -  174,874.64

(iii) Inter corporate deposits  15,116.01  -  -  -  -  15,116.01

(iv) Loan to employees  74.82  -  -  -  -  74.82

(v) Lending through Pass Through Certificates (PTC)  4,049.01  -  -  -  -  4,049.01

Total Gross (A) 2,593,292.67  -  -  -  - 2,593,292.67

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (53,820.64)  -  -  -  -  (53,820.64)

Total Net (A) 2,539,472.03  -  -  -  - 2,539,472.03

(B) (i) Secured by tangible assets 21,24,464.05  -  -  -  - 21,24,464.05

(ii) Unsecured  4,68,828.62  -  -  -  -  4,68,828.62

Total Gross (B) 2,593,292.67  -  -  -  - 2,593,292.67

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (53,820.64)  -  -  -  -  (53,820.64)

Total Net (B) 2,539,472.03  -  -  -  - 2,539,472.03
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Particulars

Amortised 
Cost

At Fair Value Sub total Total

Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Through 
profit or 

loss

Designated at fair 
value through 

profit or loss

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5=2+3+4) (6=1+5)

(C) Loans in India

(i) Public Sector  -  -  -  -  -  -

(ii) Others 2,593,292.67  -  -  -  - 2,593,292.67

Total Gross (C) 2,593,292.67  -  -  -  - 2,593,292.67

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (53,820.64)  -  -  -  -  (53,820.64)

Total Net (C) 2,539,472.03  -  -  -  - 2,539,472.03

*Structured loan includes loan against securities, commercial real estate loans and other structured loans.

NOTE 8 INVESTMENTS

Particulars

Amortised 
Cost

At Fair Value Sub total Others Total

Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Through 
profit or 

loss

Designated at fair 
value through 

profit or loss

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5=2+3+4) (6) (7=1+5+6)

As at 31st March, 2021

(A) Mutual funds  -  -  4,900.20  -  4,900.20  -  4,900.20

Government securities & Treasury Bills  191,122.25  - 191,122.25  -  191,122.25

Debentures 128,266.28  22,553.45  -  -  22,553.45  -  150,819.73

Equity instruments*  -  217,954.62  -  - 217,954.62  -  217,954.62

Preference Share  -  -  12,200.13  -  12,200.13  -  12,200.13

Total Gross (A) 128,266.28  431,630.32  17,100.33  - 448,730.65  -  576,996.93

(B) (i) Investments outside India  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

(ii) Investments in India 128,266.28  431,630.32  17,100.33  - 448,730.65  -  576,996.93

Total (B) 128,266.28  431,630.32  17,100.33  - 448,730.65  -  576,996.93

Less: Impairment allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (1,006.91)  -  -  -  -  -  (1,006.91)

Total Net 127,259.37  431,630.32  17,100.33  - 448,730.65  -  575,990.02

As at 31st March, 2020

(A) Mutual funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Debentures 79,804.10  21,276.00  -  -  21,276.00  - 101,080.10

Equity instruments*  -  191,463.33  -  - 191,463.33  -  191,463.33

Preference Share  -  - 11,104.34  -  11,104.34  - 11,104.34

Certificate of Deposits  -  - 19,992.23  -  19,992.23  - 19,992.23

Total Gross (A)  79,804.10  212,739.33 31,096.57  -  243,835.90  - 323,640.00

(B) (i) Investments outside India  -  -  -  -  -  -

(ii) Investments in India  79,804.10  212,739.33 31,096.57  -  243,835.90  -  3,23,640.00

Total (B)  79,804.10  212,739.33 31,096.57  -  243,835.90  -  323,640.00

Less: Impairment allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (558.54)  -  -  -  -  -  (558.54)

Total Net  79,245.56  212,739.33 31,096.57  -  243,835.90  -  323,081.46

*Note - Equity shares designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income
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Investment in equity shares of
Fair value at 

31st March, 2021
Dividend income 

recognised 
 during 2020-21

Fair value at 
31st March, 2020

Phoenix ARC Private Limited  12,321.10  -  10,443.15

Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited  205,633.52  -  181,020.18

 217,954.62  -  191,463.33

No strategic investments were disposed off during the year.

NOTE 9 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Lease deposits  190.62  167.03

Other deposits  875.40  1,893.02

Other receivables  2,742.35  2,283.61

 3,808.37  4,343.66

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 43(ii))  (24.59)  (51.33)

 3,783.78  4,292.33

NOTE 10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Particulars

Buildings Furniture 
and fixtures

Vehicles Office 
equipment

Computers Leasehold 
improvements

Building 
given under 

operating 
lease

Right-of-
use Assets

Total

Year ended 31st March, 2020

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  10.60  22.90  345.76  128.79  221.21  339.57  2,280.36  2,322.04 5,671.23

Additions  -  2.81  135.01  22.56  88.16  17.64  -  3.15  269.33

Disposals  -  (3.48)  (75.48)  (13.73)  (17.90)  -  -  (5.03) (115.62)

Closing gross carrying amount  10.60  22.23  405.29  137.62  291.47  357.21  2,280.36  2,320.16 5,824.94

Accumulated depreciation  0.58  12.27  79.26  38.64  93.30  132.00  90.66  941.89  1,388.60

Depreciation charge during the year  0.29  4.11  119.19  35.68  93.33  71.15  45.33  312.19  681.27

Disposals  -  (3.32)  (66.23)  (13.74)  (17.86)  -  -  (1.26)  (102.41)

Closing accumulated depreciation  0.87  13.06  132.22  60.58  168.77  203.15  135.99  1,252.82  1,967.46

Net carrying amount  9.73  9.17  273.07  77.04  122.70  154.06  2,144.37  1,067.34  3,857.48 
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Particulars

Buildings Furniture 
and fixtures

Vehicles Office 
equipment

Computers Leasehold 
improvements

Building 
given under 

operating 
lease

Right-of-
use Assets

Total

Year ended 31st March, 2021

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  10.60  22.23  405.29  137.62  291.47  357.21  2,280.36  2,320.16  5,824.94

Additions  -  2.68  17.01  5.22  105.66  -  -  175.95  306.52

Disposals  -  (0.30)  (38.58)  (0.41)  (4.52)  -  -  (365.69)  (409.50)

Closing gross carrying amount  10.60  24.61  383.72  142.43  392.61  357.21  2,280.36  2,130.42  5,721.96

Accumulated depreciation  0.87  13.06  132.22  60.58  168.77  203.15  135.99  1,252.82  1,967.46

Depreciation charge during the year  0.29  5.07  117.30  29.36  94.69  60.87  45.33  273.38  626.29

Disposals  -  (0.30)  (28.00)  (0.41)  (4.52)  -  -  (261.94)  (295.17)

Closing accumulated depreciation  1.16  17.83  221.52  89.53  258.94  264.02  181.32  1,264.26  2,298.58

Net carrying amount  9.44  6.78  162.20  52.90  133.67  93.19  2,099.04  866.16  3,423.38

Note: Impairment loss and reversal of impairment loss

There is no impairment loss recognised for property, plant and equipment.

NOTE 11 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Particulars Computer Software Total

Year ended 31st March, 2020

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  326.39  326.39

Additions  105.92  105.92

Disposals  -  -

Closing gross carrying amount  432.31  432.31

Accumulated amortisation  155.16  155.16

Amortisation recognised for the year  120.92  120.92

Disposals  -

Closing accumulated amortisation  276.08  276.08

Net carrying amount  156.23  156.23

Year ended 31st March, 2021

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount  432.31  432.31

Additions  83.35  83.35

Disposals  -  -

Closing gross carrying amount  515.66  515.66

Accumulated amortisation  276.08  276.08

Amortisation recognised for the year  122.33  122.33

Disposals  -

Closing accumulated amortisation  398.41  398.41

Net carrying amount  117.25  117.25

Note: Impairment loss and reversal of impairment loss

There is no impairment loss for intangible assets.



Notes
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

50

Annual Report 2020-21

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 12 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Capital advances  164.63  37.73

Prepaid expenses  214.49  266.52

Balances with government authorities

(i) VAT credit receivable  174.81  174.81

(ii) GST input receivable  2,350.00  2,967.63

Advances to suppliers  200.93  189.19

Advances to employees  131.54  86.37

Gratuity (refer note 41 (ii) A)  34.77  -

Others  101.39  37.80

Total  3,372.56  3,760.05

NOTE 13 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company enters into derivatives for risk management purposes. Derivatives held for risk management purposes include hedges that either meet the 
hedge accounting requirements or hedges that are economic hedges, but the Company has elected not to apply hedge accounting requirements. 
The company also has embedded option liability in the form of embedded derivative in Nifty linked debentures.

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as liabilities together with their notional amounts. The notional amounts 
indicate the value of transactions outstanding at the year end and are not indicative of either the market risk or credit risk.

Particulars
Notional Amounts Fair Value- 

Liabilities

As at 31st March, 2021

Part I

-Embedded option on Nifty linked debentures  NA  2,745.00

-Cross Currency Swaps  55,000.00  1,993.99

Total Derivative financial instruments  55,000.00  4,738.99

Part II

Included in above (Part I) are derivatives held for hedging and risk management purposes as follows:

Undesignated derivatives  NA  4,738.99

Total derivative financial instruments  -  4,738.99

As at 31st March, 2020

Part I

Embedded option on Nifty linked debentures  NA  8,135.24

Total Derivative financial instruments  -  8,135.24

Part II

Included in above (Part I) are derivatives held for hedging and risk management purposes as follows:

Undesignated derivatives  NA  8,135.24

Total derivative financial instruments  -  8,135.24

*NA- Not applicable



Notes
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

51
Overview

Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

Schedules

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 14 TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Trade payables (Refer Note (i) below) :  -  -

(i) Payable to dealers towards financing activities  20,385.07  1,671.75

(ii) Other Payables  18,077.12  14,151.46

 38,462.19  15,823.21

Note (i)
There are no dues payable to micro and small enterprises based on the information available with the Company and therefore disclosures under The Micro, Small And Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are not applicable.

NOTE 15 DEBT SECURITIES

Particulars

At Amortised 
Cost

At Fair Value 
Through 

profit or loss

Designated 
at fair value 

through 
profit or loss

Total

(1) (2) (3) (4 = 1+2+3)

As at 31st March, 2021

Deep discount debentures (Secured)  238,423.90  -  -  238,423.90

Non convertible debentures (Secured)  867,042.08  -  -  867,042.08

Nifty linked debentures (Secured)  18,288.75  -  -  18,288.75

Total (A)  1,123,754.73  -  -  1,123,754.73

Debt securities in India  1,123,754.73  -  -  1,123,754.73

Debt securities outside India  -  -  -  -

Total (B)  1,123,754.73  -  -  1,123,754.73

As at 31st March, 2020

Deep discount debentures (Secured)  308,742.48  -  -  308,742.48

Non convertible debentures (Secured)  901,431.86  -  -  901,431.86

Nifty linked debentures (Secured)  47,106.45  -  -  47,106.45

Total (A)  1,257,280.79  -  -  1,257,280.79

Debt securities in India  1,257,280.79  -  -  1,257,280.79

Debt securities outside India  -  -  -  -

Total (B)  1,257,280.79  -  -  1,257,280.79

Note:-

The Debentures are redeemable at par / premium. All debt securities as stated above are secured by way of a first and pari passu mortgage in favour of the Debenture Trustee on the 
Company’s immovable property of ̀  18.07 lakhs and further secured by way of hypothecation / mortgage of charged assets such as receivables arising out of loan and lease, book debts, 
current assets and investments (excluding strategic investments of the Company).
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The carrying amount of assets (other than immovable property) on which charge is created are as follows:-

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Loans  2,079,129.27  2,546,584.17

Investments (excluding strategic investments & preference shares)  150,819.73  121,072.33

Cash and cash equivalents  6,029.98  41,364.09

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  0.11  65,206.93

 2,235,979.09  2,774,227.52

Terms of repayment schedule of debt securities:-

Instrument with repayment terms
Maturity 

Date
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face Value Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face Value

Deep discount debentures

Repayable at Maturity

Jan-24 5.8  7,255.03  8,500.00  -  -  -

Mar-23 7.65  1,726.89  2,000.00 7.65  1,604.17  2,000.00

Aug-22 5.25  5,123.90  5,500.00  -  -  -

May-22 4.30 to 8.70  10,152.31  10,690.00 8.70  576.54  690.00

Mar-22 7.43 to 8.60  30,109.08  32,440.00  8.60  8,431.85  9,940.00

Aug-21 8.82  5,796.41  6,000.00 8.82  5,326.36  6,000.00

May-21 8.08 to 8.83  92,817.65  94,000.00 8.08 to 8.83  85,591.54  94,000.00

Apr-21 7.80 to 8.83  85,442.61  85,920.00 7.80 to 8.83  79,014.34  85,920.00

Feb-21  -  -  - 7.63 to 8.48  18,205.14  19,470.00

Jan-21  -  -  - 7.80  686.02  730.00

Oct-20  -  -  - 7.80  613.44  640.00

Sep-20  -  -  - 7.30 to 8.77  47,538.75  49,230.00

Aug-20  -  -  - 7.80  3,945.52  4,060.00

Jul-20  -  -  - 7.50 to 7.80  6,842.82  6,980.00

Jun-20  -  -  - 7.80  1,423.10  1,450.00

May-20  -  -  - 7.45 to 7.85  15,446.83  15,580.00

Apr-20  -  -  - 7.80 to 8.80  33,496.06  33,600.00

Mar-19  -  - -  -  -

Jan-19  -  - -  -  -

Dec-18  -  - -  -  -

Nov-18  -  - -  -  -

Aug-18  -  - -  -  -

Jul-18  -  - -  -  -

Jun-18  -  - -  -  -

May-18  -  - -  -  -

Apr-18  -  - -  -  -

Feb-18  -  - -  -  -

Nov-17  -  - -  -  -

Sep-17  -  - -  -  -

Aug-17  -  - -  -  -

Jul-17  -  - -  -  -

Jun-17  -  - -  -  -

May-17  -  - -  -  -

Apr-17  -  - -  -  -
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Terms of repayment schedule of debt securities:-

Instrument with repayment terms
Maturity 

Date
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face Value Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face Value

 238,423.90 245,050.00  308,742.48 330,290.00

Non convertible debentures

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at 
Maturity; Issued at premium/discount 
under same ISIN

Related parties:

Jan-23 7.56  2,027.54  2,000.00 7.56  2,033.19  2,000.00

Dec-20  -  - 9.54  410.97  350.00

Nov-20  -  - 7.5  5,137.21  5,000.00

Oct-20  -  - 7.3  6,195.96  6,000.00

Jun-20  -  - 7.48  317.06  300.00

Others:

Aug-23 5.5  41,354.43  40,000.00

Feb-23 7.64  22,721.33  22,500.00 7.64  22,743.78  22,500.00

Jan-23 7.56  30,993.84  30,500.00 7.56  31,115.56  30,500.00

Dec-22 8.08  25,727.03  25,000.00 8.08  25,834.82  25,000.00

Sep-22 5.15  20,482.08  20,000.00

Nov-22 7.4  20,426.60  20,000.00 7.4  20,432.39  20,000.00

Dec-21 8.8  2,122.06  2,000.00 8.8  2,113.55  2,000.00

Oct-21 8.37  62,037.23  60,000.00 8.37  61,876.43  60,000.00

Sep-21 8.75  22,119.40  21,000.00 8.75  22,058.59  21,000.00

Jul-21 9.30 to 9.65  58,162.15  45,940.00 9.30 to 9.65  53,469.32  45,940.00

Jun-21 8.43  17,022.74  16,000.00 8.43  17,019.49  16,000.00

Mar-21  -  - 8.05 to 8.15  15,789.84  13,350.00

Jan-21  -  - 7.54  51,966.85  51,500.00

Dec-20  -  - 9.12 to 9.62  47,460.69  40,350.00

Nov-20  -  - 7.5  24,217.15  23,500.00

Oct-20  -  - 7.3  33,268.96  32,200.00

Jun-20  -  - 7.48  56,260.97  53,200.00

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at Maturity;

Related parties: Mar-24 6  20,051.62  20,000.00

Dec-23 5  20,270.32  20,000.00

Oct-23 5.5  31,046.97  30,000.00

Sep-23 5.5  515.30  500.00

Jul-23 5.37  25,936.95  25,000.00

Sep-22 5.15  3,591.23  3,500.00

Sep-21 8.75  2,636.58  2,500.00 8.75  2,636.68  2,500.00

Jul-20 7.79  3,205.00  3,000.00

Feb-19 -  -  -

Oct-18 -  -  -

Aug-18 -  -  -

Apr-18 -  -  -

Dec-17 -  -  -
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Terms of repayment schedule of debt securities:-

Instrument with repayment terms
Maturity 

Date
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face Value Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face Value

Others: Mar-24 6  30,077.42  30,000.00

Feb-24 5.8  10,048.77  10,000.00

Dec-23 5.00  35,473.06  35,000.00

Oct-23 5.5  30,817.62  30,000.00

Sep-23 5.5  30,402.87  29,500.00

Aug-23 5.5  10,340.15  10,000.00

Jul-23 5.37  5,187.39  5,000.00

Feb-23 7.64  22,873.53  22,700.00 7.64  22,876.65  22,700.00

Jan-23 7.56  21,276.50  21,000.00 7.56  21,335.43  21,000.00

Dec-22 8.08  25,513.02  25,000.00 8.08  25,512.92  25,000.00

Nov-22 7.4  5,125.30  5,000.00 7.4  5,138.86  5,000.00

Sep-22 5.15  22,058.80  21,500.00

Aug-22 5.23  30,174.99  30,000.00

Dec-21 8.80  66,492.36  62,500.00 8.8  66,493.35  62,500.00

Oct-21 8.37  5,177.77  5,000.00 8.37  5,178.43  5,000.00

Sep-21 8.75  18,878.14  17,900.00 8.75  18,879.30  17,900.00

Jul-21 9.65  20,000.78  15,800.00 9.65  18,377.49  15,800.00

Jun-21 8.43  47,878.19  45,000.00 8.43  47,878.43  45,000.00

Mar-21 7.79 to 7.95  16,850.54  14,300.00

Jan-21 7.54  10,173.14  10,000.00

Dec-20 7.79 to 8.42  36,069.62  30,500.00

Nov-20 7.5 to 7.79  21,231.99  20,500.00

Oct-20 7.3  2,604.28  2,500.00

Sep-20 7.79  533.51  500.00

Aug-20 7.5  15,786.89  15,000.00

Jul-20 7.79  7,478.34  7,000.00

Jun-20 7.48 to 7.8  9,019.32  8,500.00

May-20 7.81 to 8.42  28,182.42  24,000.00

Apr-20 7.76 to 7.86  16,266.49  13,500.00

 867,042.08 827,340.00  901,431.86 842,390.00

Nifty linked debentures

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at Maturity;

Related parties:

Jul-20  -  - 8.87 877.29 900

Others:

Feb-23 5.49  9,060.74  9,061.22

Dec-22 7.62  4,454.39  4,454.39 7.62  4,159.16  5,000.00

Dec-21 7.25  4,773.62  4,773.62 7.26  4,461.39  5,000.00

Aug-20 8.17  4,847.00  5,000.00

Jul-20 8.87  32,761.61  33,620.00

 18,288.75  18,289.23  47,106.45  49,520.00
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NOTE 16 BORROWINGS (OTHER THAN DEBT SECURITIES)

Particulars

At Amortised 
Cost

At Fair Value 
Through 

profit or loss

Designated 
at fair value 

through 
profit or loss

Total

(1) (2) (3) (4 = 1+2+3)

As at 31st March, 2021

(a) Term loans (Secured)

 (i) from banks  54,115.98  -  -  54,115.98

 (ii) from other parties  -  -  -  -

(b) Inter corporate deposits (Unsecured)  12,101.61  -  -  12,101.61

(c) Cash credit from banks (Secured)  34,773.44  -  -  34,773.44

(d) Commercial paper (Unsecured)  435,294.77  -  -  435,294.77

(d) Book overdraft balance (Secured)  23.51  -  -  23.51

(e) Loans repayable on demand

 (i) from banks (Secured)  79,000.00  -  -  79,000.00

 (ii) from banks (Unsecured)  5,000.00  -  -  5,000.00

Total (A)  620,309.31  -  -  620,309.31

Borrowings in India  620,309.31  -  -  620,309.31

Borrowings outside India  -  -  -  -

Total (B)  620,309.31  -  -  620,309.31

Secured Borrowings  167,912.93  -  -  167,912.93

Unsecured Borrowings  452,396.38  -  -  452,396.38

Total (C)  620,309.31  -  -  620,309.31

As at 31st March, 2020

(a) Term loans (Secured)

 (i) from banks  2,500.00  -  -  2,500.00

 (ii) from other parties  -  -  -  -

(b) Inter corporate deposits (Unsecured)  10,299.57  -  -  10,299.57

(c) Cash credit from banks (Secured)  22,968.53  -  -  22,968.53

(d) Commercial paper (Unsecured)  541,934.51  -  -  541,934.51

(e) Book overdraft balance (Secured)  331.08  -  -  331.08

(f) Loans repayable on demand

 (i) from banks (Secured)  137,000.00  -  -  137,000.00

 (ii) from banks (Unsecured)  160,000.00  -  -  160,000.00

Total (A)  875,033.69  -  -  875,033.69

Borrowings in India  875,033.69  -  -  875,033.69

Borrowings outside India  -  -  -  -

Total (B)  875,033.69  -  -  875,033.69

Secured Borrowings  162,468.53  -  -  162,468.53

Unsecured Borrowings  712,565.16  -  -  712,565.16

Total (C)  875,033.69  -  -  875,033.69

Note:

The term loans from banks are secured by first and pari-passu and non-exclusive charge by way of hypothecation / mortgage of charged assets such as receivables arising out of loans and 
lease, book debts, current assets and investments (excluding strategic investments of the Company) and / or mortgage on the Company’s immovable property of ` 18.07 lakh ranking 
pari-passu with charge created in favour of Security Trustee.
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The carrying amount of assets on which charge is created are as follows:-

Particulars
As at

 31st March, 2021
As at

 31st March, 2020

Loans  2,079,129.27  2,546,584.17

Investments (excluding strategic investments)  150,819.73  121,072.33

Cash and cash equivalents  6,029.98  41,364.09

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  0.11  65,206.93

 2,235,979.09  2,774,227.52

Terms of repayment schedule of borrowings other than debt securities:- 

Instrument with repayment terms

Maturity 
Date

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face 
Value

Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face 
Value

Term loan from banks

Related parties:

Floating Interest Rate; Repayable in a Single Instalment May-23 5.98  11,998.31 -  -  -

May-22 6.45  14,460.79 -  -  -

Apr-22 6.25  26,406.88 -  -  -

Others

Floating Interest Rate; Repayable in a Single Instalment Feb-22 MCLR  1,250.00 MCLR  2,500.00  -

 54,115.98  -  2,500.00  -

Inter corporate deposits

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at Maturity

Dec-21 4.00  7,074.08  -

Apr-21 3.88  5,027.53  -

Oct-20  -  - 6.35  5,009.57  -

May-20  -  - 8.05  5,290.00  -

 12,101.61  -  10,299.57  -

Cash credit from banks

Floating Interest Rate; Repayable in a Single Instalment

Dec-21 7.55  7,900.00  -

Apr-20  -  - MCLR  19,468.53  -

(A)  7,900.00  -  19,468.53  -

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable in a 
Single Instalment

Feb-22 7.40  23,000.00  -  -  -

Mar-22 7.30  3,873.44  -  -  -

Mar-21  -  - 8.7  3,500.00  -

(B)  26,873.44  -  3,500.00  -

Total Cash credit from banks [(A) + (B)]  34,773.44  -  22,968.53  -

Commercial paper

Repayable at Maturity

Feb-22 4.55  62,548.00  -

Jan-22 4.10  82,379.99  -

Dec-21 4.00  8,763.24  -

Nov-21 3.95 to 4.40  82,836.97  -

Sep-21 4.25  29,460.78  -

Aug-21 3.80 to 4.45  76,298.77  -
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Instrument with repayment terms

Maturity 
Date

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face 
Value

Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face 
Value

Jul-21 3.70 to 3.80  28,155.69  -

May-21 3.80  27,895.41  -

Apr-21 3.95  36,955.93  -

Feb-21  -  - 6.22 to 6.27  71,160.55  -

Jan-21  -  - 6.75  37,939.37  -

Dec-20  -  - 6.6  28,707.53  -

Nov-20  -  - 6.6  55,150.73  -

Oct-20  -  - 6.85  38,671.27  -

Sep-20  -  - 6.15 to 6.69  34,004.29  -

Aug-20  -  - 5.95 to 7.30  53,678.72  -

Jul-20  -  - 6.10 to 6.85  41,902.31  -

Jun-20  -  - 5.69 to 7.85  55,196.06  -

May-20  -  - 5.69 to 8.55  92,668.88  -

Apr-20  -  - 6.55 to 7.95  32,854.80  -

 435,294.77  -  541,934.51  -

Loans repayable on demand from banks (WCDL)

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable in a Single Instalment

Jun-21 6.85 to 7.55  32,000.00  -

May-21 4.6  47,000.00  -

Sep-20  -  - 7.85  37,000.00  -

Aug-20  -  - 7.00 to 7.80  1,10,000.00  -

Jul-20  -  - 7  15,000.00  -

Jun-20  -  - 7.60 to 8.35  1,23,000.00  -

(A)  79,000.00  -  285,000.00  -

Floating Interest Rate; Repayable in a Single Instalment

May-21 RBI REPO RATE  5,000.00  -  -

May-20  -  - MCLR  2,000.00  -

Apr-20  -  -
MCLR + spread 
25 basis points

 10,000.00  -

(B)  5,000.00  - 12,000.00  -

Total Loans repayable on demand from banks [(A)+(B)]  84,000.00  -  297,000.00  -

NOTE 17 DEPOSITS

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

At Amortised Cost

Lease deposit  160.21  165.84

Total  160.21  165.84
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NOTE 18 SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

At Amortised Cost

Subordinated debt (Unsecured)  47,957.61  50,659.06 

Total (A)  47,957.61  50,659.06 

Subordinated liabilities in India  47,957.61  50,659.06 

Subordinated liabilities outside India -  - 

Total (B)  47,957.61  50,659.06

Note:

Terms of repayment schedule of subordinated liabilities:-

Instrument with repayment terms

Maturity 
Date

As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face 
Value

Interest Rate 
Range (%)

Carrying 
amount

Face 
Value

Subordinated debt

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at Maturity

Related parties:

Dec-27 8.25  10,259.93 10,000.00 8.25  10,261.48  10,000.00

Jun-23 10.5  4,116.22  4,000.00 10.5  4,114.75  4,000.00

Sep-22 10.4  2,633.92  2,500.00 10.4  2,634.26  2,500.00

Sep-21 11.0 to 11.25  9,514.38  9,000.00 11 to 11.25  9,513.25  9,000.00

Apr-21 10.5  15,030.21 15,000.00 10.5  15,025.89  15,000.00

Others:

Jan-23 9.9  2,549.30  2,500.00 9.9  2,548.58  2,500.00

Jun-21 10.8  3,853.66  3,560.00 10.8  3,850.53  3,560.00

Nov-20  -  - 10.1  2,710.31  2,500.00

 47,957.61 46,560.00  50,659.06  49,060.00

NOTE 19 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

(a) Employee benefits payable  309.23  275.01 

(b) Unclaimed matured deposits and interest accrued thereon  -  0.01 

(c) Unclaimed matured debentures  -  7.60 

(d) Advances received against loan/lease agreements  5,530.61  1,973.40 

(e) Lease Liability  1,106.19  1,319.59 

Total  6,946.03  3,575.61 
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NOTE 20 PROVISIONS

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

(a) Provision for employee benefits

 (i) Gratuity (refer note 41 (ii) A)  -  232.90

 (ii) Compensated absences (refer note 41 I)  498.45  455.56

 (iii) Stock appreciation rights (SARs) (refer note 42 (ii))  150.70  134.50

 (iv) Long Service Award (refer note 41 J)  70.57  49.85

(b) Others

 (i) Contingencies (refer note below)  2.00  10.18

Total  721.72  882.99

Note : Details of provisions for contingencies

The Company has made provision for disputed liabilities relating to customer claims with respect to repossessed vehicles and other matters based on its 
assessment of the amount it estimates to incur to meet such obligations.

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Opening balance  10.18  10.18

Additional provision recognised during the year  -  -

Reversals during the year  (8.18)  -

Closing balance  2.00  10.18

NOTE 21 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Statutory dues payable  1,576.81  925.15

Total  1,576.81  925.15

NOTE 22 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Authorised

35,00,000 (31st March, 2020: 35,00,000) equity shares of ` 10 each with voting rights  350.00  350.00

30,00,000 (31st March, 2020: 30,00,000) redeemable preference shares of ` 10 each  300.00  300.00

 650.00  650.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up

34,95,200 (31st March, 2020: 34,95,200) equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up with voting rights  349.52  349.52
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a. Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :

Particulars No. of shares Amount

Equity shares of ` 10 each, fully paid-up

As at 1st April, 2019  34,95,200  349.52

Add/(less) : Movement during the year  -  -

As at 31st March, 2020  34,95,200  349.52

Add/(less) : Movement during the year  -  -

As at 31st March, 2021  34,95,200  349.52

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

(i) The Equity shares of ` 10 each, fully paid up have equal voting rights.

(ii) Right to receive dividend as may be approved by the Board / Annual General Meeting.

(iii) The equity shares are not repayable except in the case of a buy back, reduction of capital or winding up in terms of the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) Every member of the Company holding equity shares has a right to attend the General Meeting of the Company and has a right to speak and 
on a show of hands, has one vote if he is present in person and on a poll shall have the right to vote in proportion to his share of the paid-up 
capital of the Company.

(v) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders.

c. Details of shares held by holding company and its subsidiaries

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

 Number of shares  % Holding  Number of shares  % Holding

Equity shares with voting rights

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, the holding company  1,782,600 51.00%  1,782,600 51.00%

Kotak Securities Limited, subsidiary of the holding company  1,712,600 49.00%  1,712,600 49.00%

 3,495,200 100.00%  3,495,200 100.00%

d. Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the company

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

 Number of shares  % Holding  Number of shares  % Holding

Equity shares with voting rights

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited  1,782,600 51.00%  1,782,600 51.00%

Kotak Securities Limited  1,712,600 49.00%  1,712,600 49.00%

 3,495,200 100.00%  3,495,200 100.00%

e. Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment, including the terms and amounts : NIL

f. Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, Aggregate number and 
class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares, and aggregate number and class of shares bought back during the period of five years 
immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared: NIL

g. Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital - Refer Note 44.
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h. Dividend on equity shares:

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Dividend paid for the year ended 31st March, 2021 of ` 0.60 (31st March, 2020: ` 0.60) per share  20.97  20.97 

Dividend distribution tax (DDT)  -  4.31 

 20.97  25.28 

Proposed dividend on equity shares

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of ` 40/- per equity share for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. The payment is subject to 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, and if approved would result in a cash outflow of approximately  
` 1,398.08 lakhs. Final dividends on equity shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders.

NOTE 23 OTHER EQUITY

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

Special Reserve u/s 45 IC of the RBI Act, 1934  122,062.94  111,362.94

Securities premium  53,075.16  53,075.16

Capital redemption reserve  100.00  100.00

General reserve  182.54  182.54

Capital contribution from parent  397.92  359.97

Retained earnings  475,134.50  433,853.17

Debt instruments through OCI  (73.67)  351.50

Equity instruments through OCI  163,321.50  142,705.30

Total  814,200.89  741,990.58

Note 23.1 Nature and purpose of reserve

Special Reserve u/s 45 IC of the RBI Act, 1934

This is a Statutory reserve created in accordance with section 45 IC(1) of the RBI Act, 1934 which requires the Company to transfer a specified sum (not less than 
20% of its profit after tax) to Reserve Fund based on its net profit as per the profit and loss account.

As per Section 45 IC(2) of the RBI Act, 1934, no appropriation of any sum from this reserve fund shall be made by the NBFC except for the purpose as may be 
specified by RBI.

Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the provisions of 
section 52 of Companies Act, 2013.

Capital redemption reserve

As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum 
equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve.

General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from Retained Earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer 
from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss.

Capital contribution from parent

Capital contribution from parent represents fair value of the employee stock option plan. These option are issued by parent company “Kotak Mahindra Bank 
Limited” to the employee of the company.
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Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribution to shareholders.

Debt instruments through OCI

This comprises changes in the fair value of debt instruments recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated within equity. The Company transfers 
amounts from such component of equity to retained earnings when the relevant debt instruments are derecognised.

Equity instruments through OCI

The company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These changes are 
accumulated within the Equity investments through OCI reserve.

NOTE 23.2 Other equity movement

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

(i) Special reserve

 Opening balance  111,362.94  97,862.94

 Transfer from retained earnings  10,700.00  13,500.00

 Closing balance  122,062.94  111,362.94

(ii) Securities premium

 Opening balance  53,075.16  53,075.16

 Addition during the year  -  -

 Closing balance  53,075.16  53,075.16

(iii) Capital redemption reserve

 Opening balance  100.00  100.00

 Addition during the year  -  -

 Closing balance  100.00  100.00

(iv) General reserve

 Opening balance  182.54  182.54

 Addition during the year  -  -

 Closing balance  182.54  182.54

(v) Capital contribution from parent

 Opening balance  359.97  281.65

 Addition/Deletion during the year  37.95  78.32

 Closing balance  397.92  359.97

(vi) Retained earnings

 Opening balance  433,853.17  389,106.36

 Add: Net profit for the year  51,927.36  58,521.52

 Less: Transition impact of Ind AS 116, net of taxes (Refer note 40)  -  (214.65)

 Less: Remeasurment (gain)/loss on defined benefit plans  74.94  (34.78)

 Less: Transfer to special reserve  (10,700.00)  (13,500.00)

 Less: Proposed dividend (including tax) on equity shares  (20.97)  (25.28)

 Closing balance  475,134.50  433,853.17
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Particulars
As at

31st March, 2021
As at

31st March, 2020

(vii) Debt instruments through OCI

 Opening balance  351.50  561.26

 Additions/(deletions) during the year  (425.17)  (209.76)

 Closing balance  (73.67)  351.50

(viii) Equity instruments through OCI

 Opening balance  142,705.30  113,249.05

 Addition during the year  20,616.20  29,456.25

 Closing balance  163,321.50  142,705.30

NOTE 24 INTEREST INCOME

Particulars

For the year ended 31st March, 2021 For the year ended 31st March, 2020

On 
Financial 

Assets 
measured 

at 
Amortised 

Cost

On 
Financial 

Assets 
measured 

at fair 
value 

through 
OCI

On 
Financial 

Assets 
classified at 

fair value 
through 
profit or 

loss

Total 
Interest 
Income

On 
Financial 

Assets 
measured 

at 
Amortised 

Cost

On 
Financial 

Assets 
measured 

at fair 
value 

through 
OCI

On 
Financial 

Assets 
classified at 

fair value 
through 
profit or 

loss

Total 
Interest 
Income

(i) Interest on loans 229,077.94  -  - 229,077.94 286,958.92  -  - 286,958.92

(ii) Interest income from investments  7,210.65  3,646.52  -  10,857.17  1,385.56  2,373.18  -  3,758.74

(iii) Interest on deposits with banks  1,775.10  -  -  1,775.10  9,183.18  -  -  9,183.18

(iv) Other interest income

 - On Inter-corporate deposits  126.82  -  -  126.82  1,108.71  -  -  1,108.71

 - On Lending through Pass 
through Certificates (PTC)

 324.08  -  -  324.08  361.68  -  -  361.68

 - On Staff loans  5.65  -  -  5.65  5.63  -  -  5.63

 - On CBLO deposits  1.48  -  -  1.48  3.73  -  -  3.73

 - On CBLO lending  789.98  -  -  789.98  600.28  -  -  600.28

 - On Certificate of deposits  -  -  -  -  25.40  -  -  25.40

Total 239,311.70  3,646.52  - 242,958.22 299,633.08  2,373.18  - 302,006.26

NOTE 25 FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

Foreclosure charges  3,617.50  4,730.23

Dishonour fees  3,130.91  3,134.94

Stamping charges  779.97  888.69

Others  1,250.78  2,258.20

Total  8,779.16  11,012.07
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NOTE 26 NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

(A) Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

 On trading portfolio

 - Investments  4,475.52  5,451.86

 - Derivatives  -  -

 - Others  -  -

(B) Others

 - Net gain on financial assets at FVOCI  0.32  24.85

Total Net gain on fair value changes (C)  4,475.84  5,476.71

Fair value changes:

- Realised  3,379.60  5,860.60

- Unrealised  1,096.24  (383.89)

Total Net gain on fair value changes (D)  4,475.84  5,476.71

Note: Fair value changes in this schedule are other than those arising on account of accrued interest income/expense.

NOTE 27 OTHER INCOME

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

Net gain on derecognition of property, plant and equipment  13.59  21.47

Provision for contingencies no longer required  8.18  -

Unwinding of discount on security deposits  21.45  11.12

Exchange Gain on translation of foreign currency loan  2,143.43  -

Rent incentive  13.39  -

Interest on income tax refund  206.11  -

Miscellaneous income  45.32  0.03

Total  2,451.47  32.62

NOTE 28 FINANCE COSTS

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Interest on borrowings (other than debt securities)

- Term loans and working capital demand loans  5,513.97  11,488.87

- Inter corporate deposits  395.78  7,497.34

- Cash credit and overdraft  56.91  400.81

- Commercial papers  25,727.44  44,728.27

Interest on debt securities

- Non convertible debentures  64,558.96  78,353.91

- Deep discount debentures  20,255.91  27,397.97

- Nifty linked debentures  2,411.41  4,969.07

Interest on subordinated liabilities  4,879.65  4,973.66

Interest expense on lease liability - Ind AS 116  88.83  118.87

Other interest expense  0.91  0.57

Other borrowing costs  368.41  250.56

Total  1,24,258.18  1,80,179.90
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NOTE 29 NET LOSS ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

(A) Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

 On trading portfolio

 - Investments  -  -

 - Derivatives*  1,548.61  258.19

 - Others  -  -

(B) Others

 Net loss on financial assets at FVOCI  -  -

Total Net gain on fair value changes (C)  1,548.61  258.19

Fair value changes:

- Realised  -  -

- Unrealised  1,548.61  258.19

Total Net gain on fair value changes (D)  1,548.61  258.19

* includes MTM loss on Embedded Derivative of ` 445.38 lakhs and MTM Gain on Cross Currency swaps of ` 1,993.99 lakhs

Note: Fair value changes in this schedule are other than those arising on account of accrued interest income/expense.

NOTE 30 IMPAIRMENT ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020
On Financial instruments measured at fair value through OCI
(i) Investments  25.09  120.41
On Financial instruments measured at Amortised Cost
(i) Loans  30,798.89  26,825.64
(ii) Investments  448.38  556.61
(iii) Other financial assets  (41.36)  45.86
Total  31,231.00  27,548.52

NOTE 31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

Salaries and wages  13,266.89  12,663.83

Contribution to provident and other funds  867.13  767.42

Share based payment to employees (refer note 42 (ii))  187.80  196.36

Staff welfare expenses  372.58  416.89

Gratuity (refer note 41 (ii) C)  173.11  225.05

Total  14,867.51  14,269.55

NOTE 32 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  626.29  681.27

Amortisation of intangible assets  122.33  120.92

Total  748.62  802.19
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NOTE 33 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020
Rent including lease rentals  3.88  24.47
Power and fuel  227.48  324.90
Rates and taxes  2,538.55  2,941.87
Repairs and maintenance  873.12  757.01
Insurance  13.57  21.91
Communication costs  309.09  390.00
Travelling and conveyance  359.18  741.70
Legal and Professional charges  5,351.27  5,410.81
Printing and stationery  268.63  388.20
Office expenses  306.69  261.19
Common establishment expenses - Reimbursements  1,281.12  1,412.95
Advertisement and publicity  6.34  136.62
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note 38)  1,713.80  941.00
Director’s fees, allowances and expenses  52.20  35.20
Auditor’s fees and expenses (refer note 37)  164.00  156.43
Data processing  82.00  148.08
Expenses relating to short-term leases  668.57  690.35
Miscellaneous expenses  1,538.44  987.25
Royalty Expenses  800.12  -
Total  16,558.05  15,769.94

NOTE 34 TAX EXPENSE

(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

Current tax expense

Current year  23,899.20  25,794.20

Changes in estimated related to prior years  -  -

Total current tax expense (A)  23,899.20  25,794.20

Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net  -

Origination and reversal of temporary differences  (5,835.83)  (2,995.01)

Deferred tax expense (B)  (5,835.83)  (2,995.01)

Total tax expense for the year (A) + (B)  18,063.37  22,799.19

(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars
For the year ended 31st March, 2021 For the year ended 31st March, 2020

 Before tax  Tax (expense)
benefit

 Net of 
tax

 Before tax  Tax (expense)
benefit

 Net of 
tax

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset)  100.15  (25.21)  74.94  (41.96)  7.18  (34.78)

(b) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income  26,491.29  (5,875.09) 20,616.20  37,285.35  (7,829.10) 29,456.25 

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Debt instruments through other comprehensive income  (568.16)  142.99  (425.17)  (393.01)  183.25  (209.76)

Total  26,023.28  (5,757.31) 20,265.97  36,850.38  (7,638.66) 29,211.72 
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NOTE 34 TAX EXPENSE

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars
For the year ended  

31st March, 2021
For the year ended  

31st March, 2020

 Amount  %age  Amount  %age

Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss  69,990.73  81,320.71 

Statutory tax rate 25.17% 25.17% 25.17% 25.17%

Tax using the Company's statutory tax rate (B)  17,615.27  20,466.80 

Tax effect of:

Effect of incomes which are taxed at different rates  (25.71) -0.04%  (157.78) -0.19%

Effect of incomes which are exempt from tax  - 0.00%  (251.68) -0.31%

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible for taxable income  442.56 0.63%  189.04 0.23%

Losses on account of fair valuation of investment for which no deferred tax is 
recognised

 - 0.00%  -  - 

(Short) / Excess provision for tax  31.25 0.04%  6.53 0.01%

Effect on deferred tax balances due to the changes in income tax rate  - 0.00%  3,101.64 3.81%

Others  - 0.00%  (555.36) -0.68%

Total tax expense  18,063.37 25.81%  22,799.19 28.04%

Current tax  23,899.20  25,794.20 

Deferred tax  (5,835.83)  (2,995.01)

Total tax liability  18,063.37  22,799.19 

(d) Movement in deferred tax balances

Particulars

As at  31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Balance 
as at 

1st April, 
2020

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Recognised 
directly in 

equity

Balance 
as at 

31st March, 
2021

Balance 
as at 

1st April, 
2019

Recognised 
directly in 

equity

 Restated 
balance as 
at 1st April, 

2019

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Balance 
as at 

31st March, 
2020

Deferred tax assets (Net)

On difference between 
book balance and tax 
balance of Property, plant 
and equipment

 3,595.93  113.80  -  -  3,709.73  4,830.96  -  4,830.96  (1,235.03)  -  3,595.93

Fair valuation of 
investments

 (339.26)  (326.99)  149.31  -  (516.94)  (265.12)  -  (265.12)  (277.37)  203.23  (339.26)

Impairment loss allowance  11,745.08  6,252.80  (6.31)  -  17,991.57  8,933.32  -  8,933.32  2,831.73  (19.98)  11,745.08

EIR impact on financial 
assets measured at 
amortised cost

 (1,202.14)  (630.05)  -  -  (1,832.19)  (2,090.47)  -  (2,090.47)  888.33  -  (1,202.14)

EIR impact on financial 
liabilities measured at 
amortised cost

 (779.16)  602.90  -  -  (176.26)  (1,193.30)  -  (1,193.30)  414.14  -  (779.16)

Employee benefits  -  25.21  (25.21)  -  -  -  -  -  (7.18)  7.18  -

Provision for compensated 
absences, gratuity and 
other employee benefits

 216.01  (60.07)  -  -  155.94  228.71  -  228.71  (12.70)  -  216.01

Fair valuation of derivative 
financial instrument

 161.42  (112.09)  -  -  49.33  133.90  -  133.90  27.52  -  161.42
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Particulars

As at  31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Balance 
as at 

1st April, 
2020

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Recognised 
directly in 

equity

Balance 
as at 

31st March, 
2021

Balance 
as at 

1st April, 
2019

Recognised 
directly in 

equity

 Restated 
balance as 
at 1st April, 

2019

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Balance 
as at 

31st March, 
2020

Impact of Ind AS 116  34.29  (2.56)  -  31.73  -  34.29  34.29  -  -  34.29

Other temporary 
differences

 27.10  (27.10)  -  -  (0.00)  9.42  -  9.42  17.68  -  27.10

Total 13,459.26  5,835.85  117.79  -  19,412.90 10,587.42  34.29 10,621.71  2,647.12  190.43 13,459.26

Deferred tax liabilities 
(Net)

Fair valuation of 
investments

 39,340.63  -  5,875.09  -  45,215.72  31,859.43  -  31,859.43  (347.90)  7,829.10  39,340.63 

Total  39,340.63  -  5,875.09  -  45,215.72  31,859.43  -  31,859.43  (347.90)  7,829.10  39,340.63 

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred 
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Significant management judgment is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and recoverability of deferred 
income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income in which the relevant entity operates and the period 
over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered.

(e) Tax Balance

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

Current tax assets (Net)  3,493.90  2,521.04

(Net of provision of 31st March, 2021: ` 1,56,526.23 lakhs, 31st March, 2020: ` 1,19,017.98 lakhs)

Current tax liabilities (Net)  3,902.83  3,011.83

(Net of advance tax of 31st March, 2021: ` 1,20,554.75 lakhs, 31st March, 2021: ` 1,35,067.02 lakhs)

NOTE 35 EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

 

Sr 
No

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

A) Net Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (` Lakhs)  51,927.36  58,521.52

B) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year  3,495,200  3,495,200

Effect of shares issued for cash  -  -

Weighted average number of shares at the end of the year for basic and diluted EPS  3,495,200  3,495,200

C) Face value per share (`)  10  10

D) Basic and Diluted earnings per share (`)  1,485.68  1,674.34



Notes
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

69
Overview

Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

Schedules

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
Sr 
No Particulars

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

Contingent liabilities:

a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt in case of suits filed by customer/s with 
respect to release of repossessed vehicles and related matters. The Company had preferred an 
appeal against the same with State / National Consumer Dispute Redressal Forum.

 657.94  574.35

b) The Company has received a demand (net of provision) on completion of income tax assessment. 
The said amount is disputed and the Company has preferred an appeal against the same

 298.44  298.44

Assessment Year As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

2013-14  190.49  190.49

2014-15  53.72  53.72

2015-16  49.02  49.02

2016-17  5.21  5.21

c) The Company has received VAT assessment orders for financial years 2008-09 to 2016-17. The 
Company has preferred an appeal against the same.

 530.28  421.55

The Company is confident of successfully defending the demands and does not expect any outflow 
on these counts.

Total  1,486.67  1,294.34

36 (a) Provident Fund
 The Honourable Supreme Court has provided a judgment in case of “Vivekananda Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner 

(II) West Bengal” and the related circular (Circular No. C-I/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated 20th March, 2019 issued by the Employees’ 
Provident Fund Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of “basic wages” of the relevant employees for the 
purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees’ Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. With regard to 
above Supreme Court (SC) judgement there are various interpretative issues including applicability and the impact thereof cannot be quantified. However, 
the Company has obtained a legal advice in this matter that this judgement should be applicable from March 2019.

36  (b)  In accordance with the board approved moratorium policy read with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines dated 27th March, 2020, 17th April, 
2020 and 23rd May, 2020 relating to ‘COVID-19 - Regulatory Package’, the Company has granted moratorium on the payment of installments 
falling due between 1st March, 2020 and 31st August, 2020 to all eligible borrowers. In respect of accounts where moratorium benefit has been 
granted, days past due (DPD) status of those accounts as at 31st March, 2020 is based on the days past due status as on 29th February, 2020.

   The granting of moratorium does not result in accounts becoming past due and automatically triggering forward movement to Stage 2 or Stage 
3. However Company made a qualitative analysis of such accounts and wherever Company assessed, there may have been significant increase in 
credit Risk, financial assets have been classified to Stage II and accordingly impairment allowance for lifetime expected loss is provided.

   Further in accordance with Resolution Framework for COVID-19 announced by RBI on 6th August, 2020, the Company has implemented one-time 
restructuring for certain eligible borrowers in accordance with the above framework.

NOTE 37 PAYMENT TO AUDITORS

Sr 
No Particulars

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Payment to the auditor as:

a) Audit fees  85.00  85.00

b) For other services (Limited Reviews and Certification Work)  79.00  65.50

c) For reimbursement of expenses  -  5.93

Total  164.00  156.43
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NOTE 38 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company’s CSR program is associated with the CSR initiatives of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (KMBL), its holding company. KMBL is building its CSR 
capabilities on a sustainable basis and the Company is committed to gradually increase its CSR spend in the coming years. As per the provisions of the Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend ` 1,713.80 lakhs during the year on CSR activities.

Details of CSR expenditure

Sr 
No Particulars

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

a) Amount required to be spent during the year  1,713.80  1,726.06

b) Amount spent during the year

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset  -  -

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above  1,194.48  941.00

(i) Contribution to Wockhardt Foundation 402.80  274.00

(ii) Contribution to Pratham Education Foundation 303.00  420.00

(iii) Contribution to Kotak Education Foundation 275.00  242.00

(iv) Contribution to Muktugan Education Trust  197.00  -

(v) Contribution to Boston Ivy Healthcare  14.90  -

(vi) Contribution to Wow Ecarts Private Limited  1.78  -

(vii) Contribution to Ratna Nidhi Charitable Trust  -  5.00

Accural towards unspent obligations in relation to:  -  -

 - Ongoing project  -  -

 - Other than ongoing project  -  -

Total  1,194.48  941.00

Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act  1,713.80  1,726.06

Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year  1,713.80  1,726.06

Amount spent during the year on

(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset  -  -

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above  1,713.80  1,726.06

Details of ongoing CSR projects under Section 135(6) of the Act

Balance as at April 1, 2020 Amount required 
to be spent 

during the year

Amount spent during the year Balance as at 31st March, 2021

With the Company In Separate CSR 
Unspent account

From the Company’s 
Bank account

From Separate CSR 
Unspent account

With Company In Separate CSR 
Unspent account

 -  -  1,713.80  1,194.48  -  519.32*

*The same has been deposited subsequent to the Balance Sheet date on 26th April, 2021

Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects

Balance unspent as at 
April 1, 2020

Amount deposited in Specified 
Fund of Schedule VII of the Act 

within 6 months

Amount required to 
be spent during the 

year

Amount spent during 
the year

Balance unspent as at  
31st March, 2021

 -  -  -  -  -

Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act

Balance excess spent as at 
April 1, 2020

Amount required to be spent 
during the year

Amount spent during the year Balance excess as at  
31st March, 2021

 -  -  -  -
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NOTE 39 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Related party disclosures, as required by notified Ind AS 24 - ‘Related Party Disclosures’ are given below:

A. Names of Related Parties

Sr 
No Particulars

Proportion of 
ownership interest

(a) Control exists: 
Holding Company
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 51.00%
Mr. Uday S. Kotak along with his relatives and enterprises in which he has beneficial interest holds 26.02% (Previous Year 
29.99%) of the equity share capital and 17.29% of the paid-up share capital of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited as on  
31st March, 2021

(b) Fellow subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Kotak Securities Limited 
Kotak Mahindra Asset Management Company Limited
Kotak Mahindra Investments Limited
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited 
Kotak Mahindra General Insurance Limited
Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited
Kotak Investment Advisors Limited
BSS Microfinance Limited

(d) Other related parties
Associate of a member of Kotak group 
Phoenix ARC Private Limited
Entity controlled or jointly controlled by relatives of individual having significant influence over the company
Aero Agencies Limited
Employee Benefit Trusts
Employees Gratuity fund

(e) Key Management Personnel and Directors
Mr. Vyomesh Kapasi - Managing director
Mr. Narayan S.A. - Director
Prof. Mahendra Dev - Independent director
Mr. Chandrashekhar Sathe - Independent director
Ms. Akila Urankar - Independent director

(f) Relative of Key Management Personnel and Directors
Mrs. Rekha Narayan (Spouse of Director)

B. Transactions with related parties

Transactions with key management personnel

The table below describes the compensation to key management personnel which comprise directors and executive officers under Ind AS 24:

(a) Key Management Personnel compensation*

Sr 
No Particulars

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

i. Short-term employee benefits  156.54  173.79 

ii. Other Contribution to funds  6.70  7.44 

iii. Shared-based payments**  69.16  94.65 

iv. Sitting fees  52.20  35.20 

* The above figures do not include provisions for encashable leave and gratuity, as separate actuarial valuation are not available.

** SARS considered based on actual payout during the year



Notes
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

72

Annual Report 2020-21

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

NOTE 39 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties

Nature of Transaction
Year ended 
31st March

 Holding 
Company

 Fellow 
Subsidiaries

Other related 
parties

Key Management 
Personnel / Relative

 Total

Non Convertible Debentures Redeemed 2021  20,500.00  1,738.00  -  -  22,238.00

2020  1,000.00  -  -  -  1,000.00

Non Convertible Debentures issued 2021  99,508.56  2,000.00  -  -  101,508.56

2020  -  2,000.00  -  -  2,000.00

Investment in Inter Corporate Deposit 2021  -  39,000.00  39,000.00

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Redemption of Investment in Inter Corporate Deposit 2021  -  35,000.00  -  -  35,000.00

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Borrowed by way of Inter Corporate Deposit 2021  -  52,000.00  -  -  52,000.00

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Repayment by way of Inter Corporate Deposit 2021  -  52,000.00  -  -  52,000.00

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Term loan repaid 2021  197,000.00  -  -  -  197,000.00

2020  6,629.04  -  -  -  6,629.04

Term loan taken 2021  252,000.00  -  252,000.00

2020  6,629.04  -  -  -  6,629.04

Commission received in advance 2021  -  0.24  -  -  0.24

2020  -  0.21  -  -  0.21

Dividend on Equity Shares 2021  10.70  10.27  -  -  20.97

2020  10.70  10.27  -  -  20.97

Interest received on Term Deposits 2021  617.12  -  -  -  617.12

2020  54.02  -  -  -  54.02

Referral fees received 2021  0.04  -  -  -  0.04

2020  200.49  -  -  -  200.49

Fee based income 2021  -  110.35  -  -  110.35

2020  -  99.05  -  -  99.05

Rent received 2021  533.72  4.29  -  -  538.01

2020  581.65  7.88  -  -  589.53

Servicer fees on Securitisation transaction 2021  0.33  -  -  -  0.33

2020  (3.09)  -  -  -  (3.09)

Interest on Cash Credit 2021  16.10  -  -  -  16.10

2020  31.43  -  -  -  31.43

Interest Expense on Inter-Corporate Deposit 2021  -  34.25  -  -  34.25

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Interest income on Inter-Corporate Deposit 2021  25.72  25.72

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Forex Profit/ Loss Derivatives 2021  (149.45)  -  -  -  (149.45)

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Brokerage paid 2021  -  6.24  -  -  6.24

2020  -  3.23  -  -  3.23

Interest on debentures paid 2021  2,467.13  4,905.31  -  -  7,372.44

2020  437.21  5,448.00  -  -  5,885.21

Royalty paid 2021  800.12  800.12

2020  -  -

CMS service charges & Bank charges 2021  82.02  82.02

2020  -  -
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Nature of Transaction
Year ended 
31st March

 Holding 
Company

 Fellow 
Subsidiaries

Other related 
parties

Key Management 
Personnel / Relative

 Total

Data Processing Expenses 2021  82.00  -  -  -  82.00

2020  148.08  -  -  -  148.08

Common Establishment Expenses - Reimbursed 2021  1,152.72  128.40  -  -  1,281.12

2020  1,382.75  128.40  -  -  1,511.15

IPA Fees paid 2021  2.00  -  -  -  2.00

2020  2.00  -  -  -  2.00

Term loan interest 2021  2,989.22  -  -  -  2,989.22

2020  17.34  -  -  -  17.34

Gym Charges paid 2021  -  -  -  -  -

2020  0.66  -  -  -  0.66

Rent paid 2021  656.69  0.36  657.05

2020  690.01  0.34  -  -  690.35

Referral fees paid 2021  408.33  -  -  -  408.33

2020  472.09  -  -  -  472.09

Insurance Premium paid 2021  -  35.79  -  -  35.79

2020  -  47.10  -  -  47.10

Demat Charges paid 2021  0.43  0.44  -  -  0.87

2020  1.15  0.01  -  -  1.16

Travelling expense 2021  -  -  1.75  -  1.75

2020  -  -  2.87  -  2.87

Expense reimbursements by other company 2021  15.79  3.69  -  -  19.48

2020  9.86  5.45  -  -  15.31

Expense reimbursements to other company 2021  738.07  0.36  -  -  738.43

2020  695.88  0.40  -  -  696.28

Reimbursement to Other Company - Employee transfer 2021  1.16  -  -  -  1.16

2020  4.22  -  -  -  4.22

Reimbursement by Other Company - Employee transfer 2021  2.38  4.24  -  -  6.62

2020  9.94  0.15  -  -  10.09

Reimbursement to Other Company - Purchase of Assets 2021  17.15  17.68  -  -  34.83

2020  0.23  1.37  -  -  1.60

Reimbursement by Other Company - Sale of Assets 2021  0.05  -  -  -  0.05

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Professional charges 2021  -  -  20.73  -  20.73

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Recruitment expenses 2021  -  -  -  -  -

2020  -  -  0.23  -  0.23

Contribution towards gratuity fund 2021  -  -  332.90  -  332.90

2020  -  -  221.45  -  221.45

Interest income on debentures 2021  485.37  -  -  485.37

2020  -  30.32  -  -  30.32

Share based payment 2021  187.80  -  -  -  187.80

2020  196.36  -  -  -  196.36

Non Convertible Debentures Investment 2021  -  11,800.00  -  -  11,800.00

2020  -  3,400.00  -  -  3,400.00

Guest House Charges expense 2021  -  -  -  -  -

2020  0.13  -  -  -  0.13

Term Deposits Placed 2021  716,300.13  -  -  -  716,300.13

2020  60,800.00  -  -  -  60,800.00



Notes
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

74

Annual Report 2020-21

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Nature of Transaction
Year ended 
31st March

 Holding 
Company

 Fellow 
Subsidiaries

Other related 
parties

Key Management 
Personnel / Relative

 Total

Term Deposits Redeemed 2021  742,695.50  -  -  -  742,695.50

2020  35,033.29  -  -  -  35,033.29

Sale of investment 2021  -  -  -  -  -

2020  -  -  226.70  -  226.70

Outstanding balances

Unamortised Brokerage 2021  585.58  -  -  -  585.58

2020  645.15  -  -  -  645.15

Term loan from banks 2021  52,865.97  -  -  -  52,865.97

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Non Convertible Debentures 2021  101,412.39  4,664.12  -  -  106,076.51

2020  3,205.00  16,731.06  -  -  19,936.07

Subordinated debt 2021  -  47,957.61  -  -  47,957.61

2020  -  41,549.63  -  -  41,549.63

Nifty Linked Debentures 2021  -  -  -  -  -

2020  -  -  -  877.29  877.29

Derivative financial instruments 2021  -  -  -  -  -

2020  -  -  -  157.05  157.05

Payable on account of Securitisation 2021  9.46  -  -  -  9.46

2020  84.38  -  -  -  84.38

Trade payables 2021  364.06  11.87  -  -  375.93

2020  391.05  11.61  -  -  402.67

Demat charges payable 2021  0.17  0.44  -  -  0.61

2020  0.31  0.02  -  -  0.33

Forward Unrealised payable on Cross curency swap 2021  1,993.99  -  -  -  1,993.99

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Term Deposits / Margin Deposits Outstanding 2021  6.15  -  -  -  6.15

2020  25,801.03  -  -  -  25,801.03

Deposits 2021  0.10  37.68  -  -  37.78

2020  0.10  50.14  -  -  50.24

Bank Balance in Current/OD Account 2021  3,609.89  -  -  -  3,609.89

2020  13,049.11  -  -  -  13,049.11

Prepaid expense / Advances 2021  -  -  -  -  -

2020  -  22.68  -  -  22.68

Receivables 2021  66.40  515.70  -  -  582.10

2020  60.55  2,183.08  -  -  2,243.63

Investment in equity instruments 2021  - 205,633.52  12,321.10  -  217,954.62

2020  - 181,020.18  10,443.15  -  191,463.33

Intercoporate Deposit Balance 2021  -  4,000.37  -  -  4,000.37

2020  -  -  -  -  -

Investment in debentures 2021  -  15,220.47  -  -  15,220.47

2020  -  3,409.64  -  -  3,409.64

Capital contribution from parent 2021  397.92  -  -  -  397.92

2020  359.97  -  -  -  359.97

Off Balance Sheet items

Derivatives (IRS) Pay - Cirs Trading Contingent 2021  55,000.00  -  -  -  55,000.00

2020  -  -  -  -  -
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(c) Employee gratuity fund - Refer note 40(ii)

(d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

 The transactions with related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. 
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

(e) The impairment loss allowance provided on receivables from related parties is ` 8.26 lakhs (31st March, 2020: ` 26.83 lakhs)

NOTE 40 LEASES

Operating lease as lessee:
1 The Company leases office premises/branches. The average lease term is 6.33 years. The lease terms include renewal option after expiry of primary lease 

period. There are no restrictions imposed by the lease arrangements. There are escalation clauses in the lease agreements.

2 As a lessee

 Property, plant and equipment’ comprise owned and leased assets that do not meet the definition of investment property.

Particulars
Note As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

Property, plant and equipment owned 10  2,557.22 2790.14

Right-of-use assets, except for investment property 10  866.16 1067.34

 The Company leases assets including premises. Information about the leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:

 

Right-of-use assets
Office Premises Total

Balance as at 1st April, 2019  1,380.15  1,380.15

Additions / (Disposals) for the year  (0.63)  (0.63)

Depreciation charge for the year  (312.19)  (312.19)

Balance as at 31st March, 2020  1,067.33  1,067.33

Balance as at 1st April, 2020  1,067.33  1,067.33

Additions / (Disposals) for the year  72.20  72.20

Depreciation charge for the year  (273.38)  (273.38)

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  866.15  866.15

 Additions to the right to use assets during the year 2020-21 is INR 175.95 Lakhs (2019-20: INR 3.15)

 Lease liabilities

 The Company has presented lease liabilities within ‘Other financials liabilities’.

3 Amounts recognised in profit and loss

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Interest expense on lease liabilities  88.83  118.87

Expense relating to short-term leases  668.57  690.35

Expense relating to leases of low value assets, excluding short term leases of low value assets  -  -

Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability  -  -

Income from subleasing right-of-use assets  -  -

Gains or losses arising from sale and leaseback transactions  -  -

4 At 31st March, 2021, the Company is committed to INR 0.27 Lakhs for short-term leases.

5 Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows

 The total cash outflow for leases amount to INR 353.61 Lakhs.
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6 Maturity analysis

As at 
31st March, 2021

 As at 
 31st March, 2020

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

Not later than 1 year  354.09  392.33 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  826.73  1,027.48 

Later than 5 years  115.96  168.00 

Total undiscounted lease liabilities  1,296.78  1,587.81 

Lease liabilities included in the Balance Sheet  1,106.19  1,319.59 

Current  282.19 301.00

Non-current  824.00 1018.59

 The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the Company’s treasury function.

7 Short term leases and Leases of low value assets

 The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of office premises/branches that have a lease term 
of 12 months or less. The company does not have any leases of low value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases 
as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

 Finance Lease as lessor:

 The Company is in the business of vehicle financing. The Company enters into finance lease agreements ranging between one to five years.

 The reconciliation between the total gross investment in the lease at the Balance Sheet date and the present value of minimum lease payments receivable 
at the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
 As at 

31st March, 2020

Minimum lease payment  15,504.64  18,620.92

Unearned finance income  2,594.49  3,273.39

Unearned maintenance and insurance income  -  -

Present value of minimum lease payments  12,910.15  15,347.53

 Gross investment in lease and present value of minimum lease payments for each of the following periods are as follows:

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Gross investment 
in lease

Net present 
value of MLP

Gross investment 
in lease

Net present 
value of MLP

Less than one year  6,074.04  4,765.46  7,125.25  5,524.34

Between one and five years  9,430.60  8,144.69  11,495.67  9,823.19

More than five years  -  -  -  -

Present value of minimum lease payments  15,504.64  12,910.15  18,620.92  15,347.53

 The following table contains other relevant disclosures for finance leases as lessor:

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
 As at 

31st March, 2020

Accumulated allowance for uncollectible minimum lease payments receivable  202.99  424.09

Unguaranteed residual values accruing to the benefit of the lessor  -  -

Contingent Rent recognised as income during the period  -  -
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NOTE 41 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

(i) Defined Contribution Plans:
 The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to Recognized Provident Fund for employees. The Company is required to contribute a specified 

percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised ` 867.13 lakh (31st March, 2020 : ` 767.42 lakh) for Provident Fund 
contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan:

 Gratuity :-

 The Company accounts for the liability for future gratuity benefits based on an actuarial valuation. The Company contributes to a Gratuity Fund 
administered by trustees and managed by Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited, fellow subsidiary. The net present value of the Company’s 
obligation towards the same is actuarially determined based on the projected unit credit method as at Balance Sheet date.

A.  Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the 
amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements as at Balance Sheet date:

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
 As at 

31st March, 2020

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (A)  1,179.11  1,004.85

Fair value of plan assets (B)  (1,213.88)  (771.95)

Net (asset) / liability recognised in the Balance Sheet (A-B)  (34.77)  232.90

B. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

 The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined (asset)/liability and it’s components:-

Particulars

Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets Net defined benefit
(asset) liability

As at  
31st March, 2021

As at  
31st March, 2020

As at  
31st March, 2021

As at  
31st March, 2020

As at  
31st March, 2021

As at  
31st March, 2020

Opening balance  1,004.85  894.31  771.95  812.68  232.90  81.63 

Included in profit or loss

Current service cost  159.80  221.01  -  -  159.80  221.01 

Past service cost  -  -  -  - 

Interest cost (income)  59.45  58.19  46.14  54.14  13.31  4.05 

 1,224.10  1,173.51  818.10  866.82  406.01  306.68 

Included in OCI

Remeasurement loss / (gain):

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from:

Demographic assumptions  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Financial assumptions  16.34  (0.56)  -  -  16.34  (0.56)

Experience adjustment  (13.55)  (55.70)  -  -  (13.55)  (55.70)

Actual return on plan assets less 
interest on plan assets 

 -  -  102.93  (98.22)  (102.93)  98.22 

 2.78  (56.27)  102.93  (98.22)  (100.15)  41.96 

Other

Contributions paid by the employer  -  -  344.51  119.26  (344.51)  (119.26)

Benefits paid  (51.66)  (115.91)  (51.66)  (115.91)  -  - 

Liabilities assumed / (settled)*  3.89  3.51  -  -  3.89  3.51 

Closing balance  1,179.11  1,004.85  1,213.88  771.95  (34.77)  232.90 
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Particulars

Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets Net defined benefit
(asset) liability

As at  
31st March, 2021

As at  
31st March, 2020

As at  
31st March, 2021

As at  
31st March, 2020

As at  
31st March, 2021

As at  
31st March, 2020

Represented by

Net defined benefit asset  -  - 

Net defined benefit liability  (34.77)  232.90 

 (34.77)  232.90 

 * On account of inter group transfer

C. Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

Current service cost  159.80  221.01

Past service cost  -  -

Administration expenses  -  -

Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset)  13.31  4.05

(Gains) / losses on settlement  -  -

Total employee benefit liabilities  173.11  225.05

D. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from:

Financial assumptions  16.34  (0.56)

Demographic assumptions  -  -

Experience adjustments  (13.55)  (55.70)

Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets  (102.93)  98.22

Adjustment to recognise the effect of asset ceiling  -  -

 (100.15)  41.96

E. Disaggregation of Plan assets

 A split of plans asset between various asset classes as well as segregation between quoted and unquoted values is presented below:-

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Quoted value Unquoted value Quoted value Unquoted value

Insurer managed funds  -  1,213.88  -  771.96

 -  1,213.88  -  771.96

F. Defined benefit obligations 

 i. Actuarial assumptions

  The key actuarial assumptions adopted for the purposes of this valuation are given below:-

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

Discount rate (p.a.) 6.20% 6.40%

Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 7.00% 0.00% until year 1 
inclusive, then 7.00%
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 ii. Sensitivity analysis

  Gratuity is a lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive to small changes in demographic assumptions. The 
key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation rate. 
The following table summarizes the change in defined benefit obligation compared with the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the 
reporting period arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points.

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (50 bps movement)  (40.10)  42.68  (34.80)  37.09 

Salary escalation rate (50 bps movement)  32.17  (31.18)  28.34  (27.35)

  These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes 
in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in 
preparing the sensitivity analyses.

G. Risk Exposure

 The defined benefit plans expose the company to risk which are discussed below:

 Asset Volatility - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will 
create a deficit. Most of the plan asset investments is in fixed income securities with high grades and in government securities. These are subject to interest 
rate risk and the fund manages interest rate risk with derivatives to minimise risk to an acceptable level.

 Changes in bond yields - A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the 
plans’ bond holdings.

H. Funding arrangements and policy

 The money contributed by the Company to the fund to finance the liabilities of the plan has to be invested. The trustees of the plan have outsourced the 
investment management of the fund to an insurance company. The insurance company in turn manages these funds as per the mandate provided to them 
by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits prescribed in the insurance regulations. Due to the restrictions in the type of 
investments that can be held by the fund, it is not possible to explicitly follow an asset-liability matching strategy to manage risk actively.

 There is no compulsion on the part of the Company to fully pre fund the liability of the Plan. The Company’s philosophy is to fund the benefits based on 
its own liquidity and tax position as well as level of under funding of the plan.

 The expected contribution payable to the plan next year is INR 150 lakhs.

 Projected Plan cash flow:

 The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service of the 
employees as at the valuation date.

Maturity profile
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

Expected benefits for year 1  189.87  149.90 

Expected benefits for year 2  132.76  119.31 

Expected benefits for year 3  115.66  103.27 

Expected benefits for year 4  132.09  91.58 

Expected benefits for year 5 and above  1,414.08  1,277.44 

 The weighted average duration to the payment of these cash flows is 7.23 years (31st March, 2020: 7.16 years).

I. Accumulated Compensated Absences

 The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation. The Company 
recognized ` 54.09 lakhs (Previous year : ` 112.63 lakhs) for Compensated Absences in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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J. Long Service Award

 The Company provides for long service awards as at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method 
conducted by actuary of Life Insurance of its fellow subsidiary.

NOTE 42 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS:

A. Description of share-based payment arrangements

 i. Share option plans (equity-settled)

  At the General Meetings of the holding company, Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, (“the Bank”), the shareholders of the Bank had unanimously passed 
Special Resolutions on 5th July, 2007, 21st August, 2007 and 29th June, 2015, to grant options to the eligible employees of the Bank and its subsidiaries 
and associate companies. Pursuant to these resolutions, the following Employees Stock Option Schemes had been formulated and adopted:

  (a) Kotak Mahindra Equity Option Scheme 2007; and

  (b) Kotak Mahindra Equity Option Scheme 2015

 Further, pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation of ING Vysya Bank (IVBL) with the Bank, the Bank has renamed and adopted the ESOP Schemes of the 
erstwhile IVBL, as given below:

 (a) Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. (IVBL) Employees Stock Option Scheme 2007

 (b) Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. (IVBL) Employee Stock Option Scheme 2010; and

 (c) Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. (IVBL) Employees Stock Option Scheme 2013

 The fair value of the option is determined using a Black-Scholes options pricing model. During the year, ` 37.95 lakhs (31st March, 2020: ` 78.32 lakhs) 
was charged to the Company’s statement of profit or loss in respect of equity-settled share-based payments transactions with a corresponding increase 
being made to the capital contribution to the Company by the Parent.

 Consequent to the above, the Bank has granted stock options to employees of the Company.

 As at 31st March, 2021

Scheme Reference 
Grant Date  Method of 

Settlement 
Accounting

No of Share Options 
outstanding

Vesting conditions / 
Dates

Contractual life of the 
options 

(Yrs)

ESOP 2015-07 15-May-17 Equity settled  2,030 30% - 1 yr service

30% - 2 yr service

20% - 3 yr service

20% - 4 yr service

 3.88

ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18 Equity settled  9,983 30% - 1 yr service

30% - 2 yr service

20% - 3 yr service

20% - 4 yr service 

 3.87

ESOP 2015-19 20-May-19 Equity settled  6,083 30% - 1 yr service
30% - 2 yr service
20% - 3 yr service
20% - 4 yr service

 3.87

ESOP 2015-25 07-Aug-20 Equity settled  2,960 30% - 1 yr service
30% - 2 yr service
20% - 3 yr service
20% - 4 yr service

 3.65
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NOTE 42 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS:
 As at 31st March, 2020

Scheme Reference 
Grant Date  Method of 

Settlement 
Accounting

No of Share Options 
outstanding

Vesting conditions / 
Dates

Contractual life of the 
options 

(Yrs)

ESOP 2015-05 10-Aug-16 Equity settled  24,000  50% - 3 yr service

50% - 4 yr service 

 4.21 

ESOP 2015-07 15-May-17 Equity settled  8,269 30% - 1 yr service
30% - 2 yr service
20% - 3 yr service
20% - 4 yr service

 3.88 

ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18 Equity settled  13,664 30% - 1 yr service
30% - 2 yr service
20% - 3 yr service
20% - 4 yr service 

 3.87 

ESOP 2015-19 20-May-19 Equity settled  8,690 30% - 1 yr service
30% - 2 yr service
20% - 3 yr service
20% - 4 yr service

 3.87 

B. Measurement of fair values
i. Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements

 The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes formula. Service and non-market performance conditions 
attached to the arrangements were not taken into account in measuring fair value.

 As at 31st March, 2021

Scheme
Grant Date Vesting 

period
Exercise 

period
Expected 

life 
(Years)

Exercise 
Price (`)

Market 
price (`)

Risk free 
rate

Annual 
Dividend 

yield

Volatility Fair value per 
share options 

(`)

ESOP 2015-07 15-May-17  1.30 0.50  1.54  955.00  954.65 6.64% 0.06% 20.74%  145.98

ESOP 2015-07 15-May-17  2.46 0.50  2.71  955.00  954.65 6.77% 0.06% 35.44%  289.06

ESOP 2015-07 15-May-17  3.13 0.50  3.38  955.00  954.65 6.88% 0.06% 33.81%  320.11

ESOP 2015-07 15-May-17  3.63 0.50  3.88  955.00  954.65 6.95% 0.06% 34.20%  349.84

ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18  1.20 0.50  1.45  1,271.00 1,270.70 7.44% 0.06% 18.68%  184.60

ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18  2.46 0.50  2.71 1,271.00 1,270.70 7.83% 0.06% 32.95%  383.29

ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18  3.12 0.50  3.37  1,271.00 1,270.70 7.97% 0.06% 32.13%  433.45

ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18  3.62 0.50  3.87  1,271.00  1,270.70 7.99% 0.06% 31.43%  465.70

ESOP 2015-19 20-May-19  1.20 0.50  1.45  1,460.00  1,460.00 6.63% 0.05% 23.24%  230.35

ESOP 2015-19 20-May-19  2.45 0.50  2.70  1,460.00  1,460.00 6.83% 0.05% 21.16%  330.89

ESOP 2015-19 20-May-19  3.12 0.50  3.37  1,460.00  1,460.00 6.94% 0.05% 21.32%  387.19

ESOP 2015-19 20-May-19  3.62 0.50  3.87  1,460.00  1,460.00 7.03% 0.05% 31.00%  508.28

ESOP 2015-25 07-Aug-20  1.07 0.50  1.31  1,341.00  1,340.10 3.61% 0.06% 39.75%  267.12

ESOP 2015-25 07-Aug-20  2.32 0.50  2.56  1,341.00  1,340.10 4.40% 0.06% 33.09%  340.57

ESOP 2015-25 07-Aug-20  2.90 0.50  3.15  1,341.00  1,340.10 4.85% 0.06% 30.71%  370.15

ESOP 2015-25 07-Aug-20  3.40 0.50  3.65  1,341.00  1,340.10 5.06% 0.06% 29.29%  395.03
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 As at 31st March, 2020

Scheme
Grant Date Vesting 

period
Exercise 

period
Expected 

life 
(Years)

Exercise 
Price (`)

Market 
price (`)

Risk free 
rate

Annual 
Dividend 

yield

Volatility Fair value per 
share options 

(`)

ESOP 2015-05 10-Aug-16  3.01 0.38  3.20  765.00  764.75 7.04% 0.07% 28.05%  225.33

ESOP 2015-05 10-Aug-16  4.02 0.38  4.21  765.00  764.75 7.13% 0.07% 26.75%  261.42

ESOP 2015-07 15-May-17  1.30 0.50  1.54  955.00  954.65 6.64% 0.06% 20.74%  145.98

ESOP 2015-07 15-May-17  2.46 0.50  2.71  955.00  954.65 6.77% 0.06% 35.44%  289.06

ESOP 2015-07 15-May-17  3.13 0.50  3.38  955.00  954.65 6.88% 0.06% 33.81%  320.11

ESOP 2015-07 15-May-17  3.63 0.50  3.88  955.00  954.65 6.95% 0.06% 34.20%  349.84

ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18  1.20 0.50  1.45  1,271.00  1,270.70 7.44% 0.06% 18.68%  184.60

ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18  2.46 0.50  2.71  1,271.00  1,270.70 7.83% 0.06% 32.95%  383.29

ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18  3.12 0.50  3.37  1,271.00  1,270.70 7.97% 0.06% 32.13%  433.45

ESOP 2015-14 18-May-18  3.62 0.50  3.87  1,271.00  1,270.70 7.99% 0.06% 31.43%  465.70

ESOP 2015-19 20-May-19  1.20 0.50  1.45  1,460.00  1,460.00 6.63% 0.05% 23.24%  230.35

ESOP 2015-19 20-May-19  2.45 0.50  2.70  1,460.00  1,460.00 6.83% 0.05% 21.16%  330.89

ESOP 2015-19 20-May-19  3.12 0.50  3.37  1,460.00  1,460.00 6.94% 0.05% 21.32%  387.19

ESOP 2015-19 20-May-19  3.62 0.50  3.87  1,460.00  1,460.00 7.03% 0.05% 31.00%  508.28

 The following table lists the average inputs to the models used for the plans for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

Particulars  Description of the inputs used

Expected volatility (weighted-average) Expected volatility of the option is based on historical volatility, during a period equivalent 
to the option life, of the observed market prices of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited's 
publicly traded equity shares 

Expected dividends Dividend yield of the options is based on recent dividend activity. 

Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) Risk-free interest rates are based on the government securities yield in effect at the 
time of the grant 



Notes
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

83
Overview

Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

Schedules

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

C
. 

R
ec

o
n

ci
lia

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 s

h
ar

e 
o

p
ti

o
n

s

A
ct

iv
it

y 
in

 t
h

e 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 u

n
d

er
 t

h
e 

em
p

lo
ye

e’
s 

st
o

ck
 o

p
ti

o
n

 S
ch

em
e 

as
 a

t 
31

st
 M

ar
ch

, 2
02

1

Sc
he

m
e

Gr
an

t 
Da

te

A
s 

at
 3

1st
 M

ar
ch

, 2
02

1
A

s 
at

 3
1st

 M
ar

ch
, 2

02
0

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 
at

 th
e 

st
ar

t 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

Gr
an

te
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar

Ex
er

cis
ed

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

Ne
t 

Tr
an

sf
er

 
In

/ 
(O

ut
)*

La
ps

ed
  

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar

Fo
rf

ei
te

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
ye

ar

Ex
er

cis
ab

le
 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 
at

 th
e 

st
ar

t 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

Gr
an

te
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar

Ex
er

cis
ed

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

Ne
t 

Tr
an

sf
er

 
In

/ 
(O

ut
)*

 

La
ps

ed
  

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar

Fo
rf

ei
te

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 

th
e 

ye
ar

Ex
er

cis
ab

le
 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

ES
OP

 2
00

7-
44

09
-M

ay
-1

4
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 

ES
OP

 2
00

7-
47

09
-M

ay
-1

5
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 2

,9
80

 
 - 

 (2
,9

80
)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 

ES
OP

 2
01

5-
02

19
-M

ay
-1

6
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 6

,9
32

 
 - 

 (6
,9

32
)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 

ES
OP

 2
01

5-
03

19
-M

ay
-1

6
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 2

0,
00

0 
 - 

(2
0,

00
0)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 

ES
OP

 2
01

5-
05

10
-A

ug
-1

6
 2

4,
00

0 
 - 

 (2
4,

00
0)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 4

8,
00

0 
 - 

(2
4,

00
0)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 2

4,
00

0 
 - 

ES
OP

 2
01

5-
07

15
-M

ay
-1

7
 8

,2
69

 
 - 

 (6
,2

39
)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 2

,0
30

 
 2

,0
30

 
 1

1,
80

9 
 - 

 (3
,5

40
)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 8

,2
69

 
 1

,5
21

 

ES
OP

 2
01

5-
14

18
-M

ay
-1

8
 1

3,
66

4 
 - 

 (3
,6

81
)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 9

,9
83

 
 9

,9
83

 
 1

9,
52

0 
 - 

 (5
,8

56
)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 1

3,
66

4 
 - 

ES
OP

 2
01

5-
19

20
-M

ay
-1

9
 8

,6
90

 
 - 

 (2
,6

07
)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 6

,0
83

 
 6

,0
83

 
 - 

 8
,6

90
 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 8
,6

90
 

 - 

ES
OP

 2
01

5-
25

07
-A

ug
-2

0
 - 

 2
,9

60
 

 2
,9

60
 

 5
4,

62
3 

 2
,9

60
 

 (3
6,

52
7)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 2

1,
05

6 
 1

8,
09

6 
 1

,0
9,

24
1 

 8
,6

90
 

(6
3,

30
8)

 - 
 - 

 - 
 5

4,
62

3 
 1

,5
21

 

* 
Th

is
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ith

in
 B

an
k 

an
d 

its
 s

ub
si

di
ar

ie
s

Th
e 

w
ei

gh
te

d 
av

er
ag

e 
sh

ar
e 

pr
ic

e 
at

 t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
fo

r 
st

oc
k 

op
tio

ns
 e

xe
rc

is
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 w
as

 `
 1

,7
61

.7
2 

(P
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
: `

 1
,6

04
.1

7)
.

Th
e 

d
et

ai
ls

 o
f 

ex
er

ci
se

 p
ri

ce
 f

o
r 

st
o

ck
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

t 
th

e 
en

d
 o

f 
th

e 
ye

ar
 a

re
:

ES
O

P 
Sc

h
em

e

R
an

g
e 

o
f 

ex
er

ci
se

 
p

ri
ce

s 
(`

)

31
st
 M

ar
ch

, 2
02

1
31

st
 M

ar
ch

, 2
02

0

N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

W
ei

g
h

te
d

 a
ve

ra
g

e 
re

m
ai

n
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
ac

tu
al

 
lif

e 
o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
(i

n
 y

ea
rs

)

W
ei

g
h

te
d

 
av

er
ag

e 
ex

er
ci

se
 

p
ri

ce
 (
`)

N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

W
ei

g
h

te
d

 a
ve

ra
g

e 
re

m
ai

n
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
ac

tu
al

 
lif

e 
o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
(i

n
 y

ea
rs

)

W
ei

g
h

te
d

 
av

er
ag

e 
ex

er
ci

se
 

p
ri

ce
 (
`)

ES
O

P 
20

15
-0

5
70

1-
80

0
 -

 
 -

 
 -

 
 2

4,
00

0 
 0

.7
5 

 7
65

.0
0 

ES
O

P 
20

15
-0

7
90

1-
10

00
 2

,0
30

 
 0

.2
5 

 9
55

.0
0 

 8
,2

69
 

 0
.8

3 
 9

55
.0

0 

ES
O

P 
20

15
-1

4
12

01
-1

30
0

 9
,9

83
 

 0
.8

0 
 1

,2
71

.0
0 

 1
3,

66
4 

 1
.6

1 
1,

27
1.

00

ES
O

P 
20

15
-2

5
13

01
-1

40
0

 2
,9

60
 

 2
.1

3 
 1

,3
41

.0
0 

 -
 

 -
 

 -
 

ES
O

P 
20

15
-1

9
14

01
-1

50
0

 6
,0

83
 

 1
.6

1 
 1

,4
60

.0
0 

 8
,6

90
 

 2
.0

8 
 1

,4
60

.0
0 



Notes
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

84

Annual Report 2020-21

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 ii. Stock Appreciation Rights (cash-settled)

  During the year, the management had approved SARs to be granted to eligible employees as and when deemed fit. The SARs are to be settled 
in cash and will vest in the manner as provided in the scheme / grant letters to employees. The Company under its various plans / series has 
granted 12,870 SARs during FY 2020-21. The contractual life (which is equivalent to the vesting period) of the SARs outstanding ranges from  
1.07 years to 4.11 years.

 As at 31st March, 2021

Scheme Reference
Grant Date  Method of 

Settlement 
Accounting

No of SARs 
outstanding

Vesting conditions / 
Dates

Contractual life of the 
options 

(Yrs)

2015-14 (Series 14) 24-Oct-17 Cash settled  942 40% - 31 Oct 19

40% - 31 Oct 20

20% - 31 Oct 21

 4.02

2015-17 (Series 17) 18-May-18 Cash settled  2,468 30% - 2019-20

30% - 2020-21

40% - 2021-22

 3.66

2015-19 (Series 19) 07-Jul-18 Cash settled  1,275 50% - 2020-21

50% - 2021-22

 3.11

2015-22 (Series 22) 20-May-19 Cash settled  2,877 30% - 2020-21

30% - 2021-22

40% - 2022-23

 3.66

Scheme 2015-28 (Series 28) 07-Aug-20 Cash settled  940 30% - 2021-22
30% - 2022-23
40% - 2023-24

 3.44

Scheme 2015-28 (Series 31) 07-Aug-20 Cash settled  11,930 50% - 2023-24
50% - 2024-25

 4.11

 As at 31st March, 2020

Scheme Reference 
Grant Date  Method of 

Settlement 
Accounting

No of SARs 
outstanding

Vesting conditions / 
Dates

Contractual life of the 
options 

(Yrs)

2015-9 (Series 9) 15-May-17 Cash settled  2,388 30% - 2018-19

30% - 2019-20

40% - 2020-21

 3.67 

2015-14 (Series 14) 24-Oct-17 Cash settled  2,826 40% - 31 Oct 19
40% - 31 Oct 20
20% - 31 Oct 21

 4.02 

2015-17 (Series 17) 18-May-18 Cash settled  4,319 30% - 2019-20

30% - 2020-21

40% - 2021-22

 3.66 

2015-19 (Series 19) 07-Jul-18 Cash settled  2,551 50% - 2020-21
50% - 2021-22

 3.11 

2015-22 (Series 22) 20-May-19 Cash settled  4,110 30% - 2020-21
30% - 2021-22
40% - 2022-23

 3.66 
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NOTE 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

A. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities:
 The following table shows the carrying amounts of Financial assets and Financial liabilities which are classified as Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), 

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) and Amortised Cost.

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

 FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortised 
cost

 FVTPL  FVTOCI  Amortised 
cost

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  -  -  6,013.46  -  -  41,345.65

Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalent  -  -  21.51  -  -  65,222.13

Receivables:

Trade receivables  -  -  6.43  -  -  6.48

Loans  -  - 2,092,661.37  -  -  2,539,472.03

Investments  17,100.33  431,630.32  127,259.37  31,096.57  212,739.33  79,245.56

Other financial assets  -  -  3,783.78  -  -  4,292.33

Total financial assets  17,100.33  431,630.32 2,229,745.92  31,096.57  212,739.33  2,729,584.18

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments  4,738.99  -  -  8,135.24  -  -

Payables

Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterprises

 -  -  -  -  -  -

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises

 -  -  38,462.19  -  -  15,823.21

Debt securities  -  - 1,123,754.73  -  -  1,257,280.79

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  -  -  620,309.31  -  -  875,033.69

Deposits  -  -  160.21  -  -  165.84

Subordinated Liabilities  -  -  47,957.61  -  -  50,659.06

Other Financial liabilities  -  -  6,946.03  -  -  3,575.61

Total financial liabilities  4,738.99  - 1,837,590.08  8,135.24  -  2,202,538.20

B. Fair value hierarchy:
Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities measured as fair value, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below.

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total

Financial assets

Investments at FVTPL

 - Mutual funds  4,900.20  -  -  4,900.20  -  -  -  -

 - Preference shares  -  -  12,200.13  12,200.13  -  -  11,104.34  11,104.34

Investments at FVOCI

 - Government securities & Tbills  191,122.25  -  191,122.25  -  -  -  -

 - Debentures  -  22,553.45  -  22,553.45  -  21,276.00  -  21,276.00

 - Equity instruments 217,954.62  -  217,954.62  - 191,463.33  -  191,463.33

Total financial assets  196,022.45 240,508.07  12,200.13  448,730.65  - 212,739.33  11,104.34  223,843.67

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments  -  4,738.99  -  4,738.99  -  8,135.24  -  8,135.24

Total financial liabilities  -  4,738.99  -  4,738.99  -  8,135.24  -  8,135.24



Notes
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

88

Annual Report 2020-21

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below. It 
does not include the fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable 
approximation of fair value.

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total

Financial assets

Loans  -  1,485.48 1,985,074.46  1,986,559.94  -  4,166.94 2,316,768.34  2,320,935.28

Investments  - 131,126.26  -  1,31,126.26  -  83,344.96  -  83,344.96

Other financial assets  -  -  162.60  162.60  -  -  149.51  149.51

Total financial assets  - 132,611.75 1,985,237.06  2,117,848.81  -  87,511.90 2,316,917.85 2,404,429.75

Financial liabilities

Debt securities  - 1,138,925.58  -  1,138,925.58  - 1,272,494.90  - 1,272,494.90

Borrowings (Other than 
Debt Securities)

 -  6,20,420.06  -  620,420.06  -  874,784.65  -  874,784.65

Subordinated Liabilities  -  49,704.48  -  49,704.48  -  53,018.07  -  53,018.07

Total financial liabilities  - 1,809,050.12  -  1,809,050.12  - 2,200,297.62  - 2,200,297.62

NOTE 43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

 Carrying Amount  Fair Value  Carrying Amount  Fair Value

Financial assets

Loans

 Vehicle finance loan 1,494,558.59  1,472,416.68 1,620,434.87 1,599,340.01

 Structured loan 444,722.20 441,773.11 601,099.89 593,962.82

 Personal loan 74,421.75 70,884.67 124,045.00 123,465.51

 Lending through Pass Through Certificates (PTC) 1,485.48 1,485.48 4,040.43 4,166.94

Investments

 - Debentures 127,259.37 131,126.26 79,245.57 83,344.96

Other financial assets

 - Lease deposits 190.62 162.60 167.03 149.51

2,142,638.00 2,117,848.81 2,429,032.79 2,404,429.75

Financial liabilities

Debt securities  1,123,754.73  1,138,925.58  1,257,280.79  1,272,494.90 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  620,309.31  620,420.06  875,033.69  874,784.65 

Subordinated Liabilities  47,957.61  49,704.48  50,659.06  53,018.07 

Other Financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities  1,792,021.65  1,809,050.12  2,182,973.54  2,200,297.62 

The carrying amounts of Cash and cash equivalents, Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, CBLO lending, Inter-corporate 
deposits, certificate of deposits, loan to employees, other deposits, other financial assets, trade payables, deposits and other financial liabilities are considered 
to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.
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C. Measurement of fair values
 The fair value of financial instruments have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy 

gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable 
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The categories used are as follows:

 The categories used are as follows:

 Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that the Company has the ability to 
access for the identical assets or liabilities. A financial instrument is classified as a Level 1 measurement if it is listed on an exchange. This includes traded 
bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued 
using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued at the closing NAV.

 Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of 
observable market data either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, for substantially the full term 
of the financial instrument but do not qualify as Level 1 inputs. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable the instrument 
is included in level 2.

 Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based in observable market data, the instruments is included in level 3. That is, Level 3 inputs 
incorporate market participants’ assumptions about risk and the risk premium required by market participants in order to bear that risk. The Company 
develops Level 3 inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances.

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Instrument type

Valuation technique Significant 
unobservable 
inputs

Inter-relationship between 
significant unobservable 
inputs and fair value 
measurement

Investment in equity instruments 
(Classified as level 2)

Comparable Companies Multiple Method: Under 
this method the value of shares/business of a company is 
determined based on market multiples of publicly traded 
comparable companies.

Comparable Transaction multiple method: Under 
this method the value of shares/business of a company is 
determined based on market multiples of publicly disclosed 
transactions in the similar segment as that of the company 
being valued.

Cost Approach : Break Up Value method has been adopted 
for valuation of equity shares.
One or combination of the above has been used for 
valuation of equity instruments.

Not applicable Not applicable

Investment in preference shares 
(Classified as level 3)

The fair values have been calculated using the discounted 
cash flow approach discounted at a rate that reflects the 
credit risk of the counterparty.

Interest rates to 
discount future 
projected cash flows

Significant increase/decrease in 
the discount factor would entail 
corresponding change in the 
valuation of preference shares.

Investment in debentures 
(Classified as level 2)

The fair values of unlisted Debt Securities have been 
calculated using the discounted cash flow approach.

Not applicable Not applicable

Derivative financial instrument 
(Classified as level 2)

The fair values have been calculated based on discounted 
cash flow model. The discount rates are based on tenure 
specific OIS (Overnight Index Swap) rate as published by 
Financial Benchmarks India Private Limited (FIBIL)

Not applicable Not applicable
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Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Type of financial instrument Valuation technique

Loans The fair values of loans that do not reprice or mature frequently are estimated using discounted cash 
flow models using actual or estimated yields and consequently for the purposes of level disclosures 
categorized under Level 3. Fair value of Level 3 loans would decrease/(increase) in value depending 
on increase/(decrease) in discount rate. For impaired loan, the amortised cost is taken as fair value.

Lending through Pass Through Certificates (PTC) The fair values have been calculated using the discounted cash flow approach discounted at a rate 
that reflects the credit risk of various counter parties.

Debt securities, Borrowings other than debt 
securities and Subordinated liabilities

The fair values of the Company’s Debt securities, Borrowings other than debt securities and 
Subordinated liabilities are calculated based on a discounted cash flow model. The discount rates are 
based on risk-free rate plus yield curves appropriate for the remaining maturities of the instruments 
as published by Financial Benchmarks India Private Limited (FIBIL)

Security Deposits  The fair values have been calculated using the discounted cash flow approach discounted at a rate 
from observable inputs i.e. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited MCLR.

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2

There were no significant changes in the classification and no significant movements between the fair value hierarchy classifications of assets and liabilities 
during FY 2020-21.

D. Level 3 fair values measurement
The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Particulars
As at 

April 1, 2020
Purchases Sales/ 

Settlements
Gain/(Loss) 

recognised in 
profit or loss

Gains 
recognised 

in OCI

Transfers 
in/(out)

As at 
31st March, 2021

Investments in Equity Instruments  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Investments in Preference shares  11,104.34  -  -  1,095.80  -  -  12,200.13

 11,104.34  -  -  1,095.80  -  -  12,200.13

Particulars
As at 

April 1, 2019
Purchases Sales/ 

Settlements
Gain/(Loss) 

recognised in 
profit or loss

Gains 
recognised 

in OCI

Transfers 
in/(out)

As at 
31st March, 2020

Investments in Equity Instruments  7,859.87  -  (183.88)  -  2,767.17  (10,443.16)  -

Investments in Preference shares  11,488.23  -  -  (383.89)  -  -  11,104.34

 19,348.10  -  (183.88)  (383.89)  2,767.17  (10,443.16)  11,104.34
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Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

Although the Company believes that its estimates of fair value are appropriate, the use of different methodologies or assumptions could lead to different 
measurements of fair value. For fair value measurements in Level 3, changing one or more of the assumptions used to reasonably possible alternative assumptions 
would have the following effects:-

Particulars

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Profit or loss/OCI Profit or loss/OCI

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Investment in preference shares - FVTPL

If the discount rate lower / (higher) by 100 bps, the fair value 
would increase / (decrease)

 78.59  (77.34)  174.12  (169.85)

E. Financial risk management
 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of risks namely:

	  Credit risk ;

	  Liquidity risk ; and

	  Market risk

 i. Risk management framework

  The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The 
board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee.

  The Risk Management committee of Board exercises supervisory power in connection with the risk management of the Company, developing and 
monitoring risk management policies, monitoring of the exposures, reviewing adequacy of risk management process, ensuring compliance with the 
statutory/regulatory framework of the risk management process.

  The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and 
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market 
conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a 
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

  The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management 
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.
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The note below explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk in its financial statements:-

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit Risk Loans, Investments, 
Trade receivables, Bank 
balances and other 
financial assets

Aging analysis, 
Credit Rating

The Company has setup policies for credit risk management and 
mitigation. 

The company has laid out process for credit evaluation for all its customers. 
For retail business, customer profiles are reviewed/assessed based on 
financial strength, leverage etc. For other than retail business, the lending 
proposals are subjected to through assessment of promoters, group 
financial strength and leverage, operational and financial performance 
track record, cash flows, valuation of collateral.

The exposures are subjected to regular monitoring through various 
parameters i.e. days past due, cash flows, inventory audit, collateral 
cover, value of underlying capital market securities. 

The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on 
the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual customers and 
customer group and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.

Liquidity Risk Debt securities, 
Borrowings other 
than debt securities, 
Subordinated liabilities, 
Trade payables and 
other financial liabilities

Cash flow forecasts Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the Company defines 
its liquidity risk management strategy and sets the overall policy and risk 
tolerances. 

In order to manage/mitigate liquidity risk, in addition to regulatory limits 
on liquidity gaps, the Company has also defined prudential internal limit 
for Liquidity Gap tolerance for its various time buckets, which is approved 
by the ALCO. 

Treasury team is responsible for managing liquidity under the prescribed 
liquidity risk management framework and the same is monitored by 
ALCO.

The Company ensures that there is sufficient liquidity headroom available, 
including liquid assets, at all times to manage any contingency.

Market risk

a. Foreign currency risk Financial liabilities not 
denominated in INR

Cash flow forecasts, 
Sensitivity Analysis

Cross currency swaps

b. Interest rate risk Financial assets and 
liabilities at variable 
rates

Sensitivity Analysis, 
Interest rate movements

Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company is the guiding body for 
management of its interest rate risk and sets the overall policy and risk 
limits.

In order to manage/mitigate interest rate risk, the Company has defined 
Interest Rate Sensitive Gap tolerance limits for each time bucket which 
is approved by the Board. Treasury is entrusted with the responsibility of 
managing interest rate risk within the prescribed overall risk limits and the 
same is monitored by ALCO.

Further, the Company undertakes NII analysis to assess the impact of 
changes in interest rate on the earnings of the Company.

 ii. Credit risk

  Credit risk is the risk of actual or probable financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans and advances now or in future.

  The sanction and renewal of any credit facility to a particular borrower requires appropriate credit approval by concerned authority. The appropriate 
authority has been entrusted with the task of verifying the credentials of the customer as per set processes and guidelines. The Company manages 
and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties and for Group of Counterparties and 
by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. Credit worthiness of borrowers is regularly reviewed and monitored by line credit risk managers, 
who are responsible for maintaining the portfolio quality as per given risk – return targets. Further the Company has established a credit quality 
review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. 
The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take 
corrective actions.
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  The gross carrying amounts of following financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure:-

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

Cash and cash equivalents  6,029.98  41,364.09

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents  21.51  65,234.85

Trade receivables  6.52  6.56

Loans

  - Loans*  2,093,668.92  2,399,178.19

  - CBLO lending  73,483.52  174,874.64

  - Inter corporate deposits  4,000.37  15,116.01

  - Loan to employees  57.97  74.82

  - Lending through Pass Through Certificates (PTC)  1,494.06  4,049.01

Investments  341,941.98  101,080.10

Other financial assets  3,808.37  4,343.66

 2,524,513.20  2,805,321.93

  *Loans do not include undrawn loan commitments (Credit conversion factor) on which impairment loss allowance has been provided for. For details refer Note 43 E(ii)(a)(iii).

 a. Credit quality analysis

 (i) The following table sets out the information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

12-month 
ECL

Lifetime ECL 
not credit-

impaired

Lifetime 
ECL credit-

impaired

Total 12-month 
ECL

Lifetime ECL 
not credit-

impaired

Lifetime 
ECL credit-

impaired

Total

Loans

Vehicle finance

Current 1,317,938.07  22,823.38  542.97  1,341,304.42  1,507,334.86  2,417.83  361.21  1,510,113.90

Past due 1–30 days  58,743.89  6,584.37  1,109.77  66,438.03  54,155.52  9,830.05  303.42  64,288.99

Past due 31–60 days  -  45,730.98  3,317.46  49,048.44  -  28,664.44  517.61  29,182.05

Past due 61–90 days  -  22,340.62  3,379.52  25,720.14  -  15,394.13  713.12  16,107.25

Past due 90 days  -  -  72,253.19  72,253.19  -  -  38,314.81  38,314.81

1,376,681.96  97,479.35  80,602.91  1,554,764.22 1,561,490.38  56,306.45  40,210.17  1,658,007.00

Impairment loss allowance  (7,527.96) (12,106.12)  (40,571.55)  (60,205.63)  (9,315.41)  (7,172.83)  (21,083.90)  (37,572.14)

Carrying amount 1,369,154.00  85,373.23  40,031.36  1,494,558.59  1,552,174.97  49,133.62  19,126.27  1,620,434.86

Structured loans *

Current  421,418.07  18,053.94  -  439,472.01  559,270.86  4,838.36  -  564,109.22

Past due 1–30 days  3,025.95  -  -  3,025.95  10,959.39  -  -  10,959.39

Past due 31–60 days  -  7,280.16  -  7,280.16  -  34,950.57  -  34,950.57

Past due 61–90 days  -  2,288.87  -  2,288.87  -  -  -  -

Past due 90 days  -  -  1,391.93  1,391.93  -  -  1,377.90  1,377.90

 424,444.02  27,622.97  1,391.93  453,458.92  570,230.25  39,788.93  1,377.90  611,397.08

Impairment loss allowance  (5,038.94)  (2,362.36)  (1,335.42)  (8,736.72)  (4,216.59)  (4,759.20)  (1,321.40)  (10,297.19)

Carrying amount  419,405.08  25,260.61  56.51  444,722.20  566,013.66  35,029.73  56.50  601,099.89
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Particulars

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

12-month 
ECL

Lifetime ECL 
not credit-

impaired

Lifetime 
ECL credit-

impaired

Total 12-month 
ECL

Lifetime ECL 
not credit-

impaired

Lifetime 
ECL credit-

impaired

Total

Personal loans

Current  59,221.59  -  11.54  59,233.13  116,131.97  132.95  10.92  116,275.84

Past due 1–30 days  4,853.33  629.67  64.31  5,547.31  4,390.30  410.42  18.49  4,819.21

Past due 31–60 days  -  5,376.29  234.63  5,610.92  -  2,512.80  27.64  2,540.44

Past due 61–90 days  -  3,842.14  442.36  4,284.50  -  1,150.04  24.23  1,174.27

Past due 90 days  -  -  10,769.92  10,769.92  -  -  4,964.35  4,964.35

 64,074.92  9,848.10  11,522.76  85,445.78  120,522.27  4,206.21  5,045.63  129,774.11

Impairment loss allowance  (1,162.65)  (2,085.90)  (7,775.48)  (11,024.03)  (1,280.49)  (919.81)  (3,528.81)  (5,729.11)

Carrying amount  62,912.27  7,762.20  3,747.28  74,421.75  119,241.78  3,286.40  1,516.82  124,045.00

Investments

Current  128,266.28  -  -  128,266.28  79,804.10  -  -  79,804.10

Past due 1–30 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Past due 31–60 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Past due 61–90 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Past due 90 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

 128,266.28  -  -  128,266.28  79,804.10  -  -  79,804.10

Impairment loss allowance  (1,006.91)  -  -  (1,006.91)  (558.54)  -  -  (558.54)

Carrying amount  127,259.37  -  -  127,259.37  79,245.56  -  -  79,245.56

Others**

Current  88,902.30  -  -  88,902.30  305,063.62  -  -  305,063.62

Past due 1–30 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Past due 31–60 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Past due 61–90 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Past due 90 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

 88,902.30  -  -  88,902.30  305,063.62  -  -  305,063.62

Impairment loss allowance  (118.29)  -  -  (118.29)  (304.77)  -  -  (304.77)

Carrying amount  88,784.01  -  -  88,784.01  304,758.85  -  -  304,758.85

  *Structured loan includes loan against securities, commercial real estate loans and other structured loans.
  **Others includes cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, CBLO lending, Inter corporate deposit, Loan to 

employees, Loan given to trust and Other financial assets.
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 (ii)  The following table sets out the information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at Fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

12-month 
ECL

Lifetime ECL 
not credit-

impaired

Lifetime 
ECL credit-

impaired

Total 12-month 
ECL

Lifetime ECL 
not credit-

impaired

Lifetime 
ECL credit-

impaired

Total

Investment in debentures*

Current  214,025.31  -  -  214,025.31  21,032.35  -  -  21,032.35

Past due 1–30 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Past due 31–60 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Past due 61–90 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

Past due 90 days  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

 214,025.31  -  -  214,025.31  21,032.35  -  -  21,032.35

Impairment loss allowance  (251.17)  -  -  (251.17)  (226.08)  -  -  (226.08)

Amortised cost  213,774.14  -  -  213,774.14  20,806.27  -  -  20,806.27

Carrying amount (Fair Value)  213,675.70  -  -  213,675.70  21,276.00  -  -  21,276.00

  * Includes Government Securities

 (iii) The table below shows the credit quality and the exposure to credit risk for loan commitments (Credit conversion factor) :

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
12-month 

ECL
Lifetime ECL 

not credit-
impaired

Lifetime 
ECL credit-

impaired

Total 12-month 
ECL

Lifetime ECL 
not credit-

impaired

Lifetime 
ECL credit-

impaired

Total

Loans
Vehicle finance  43,278.54  1,890.70  -  45,169.23  45,175.46  1,100.64  -  46,276.10 
Structured loans  10,295.21  40.00  -  10,335.21  12,956.83  -  -  12,956.83 

 53,573.75  1,930.70  -  55,504.44  58,132.29  1,100.64  -  59,232.93 

 b. Collaterals held and concentrations of credit risk

  Collaterals held

  The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the customer. Guidelines are in place covering the 
acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral.

  The main types of collateral obtained are, as follows:

  a. For retail lending, hypothecation over vehicles

  b. For automobile dealership lending, charge over real estate properties, inventory and trade receivables

  c. For structured lending, charge over real estate properties, pledge of securities.

  Management monitors the market value of collateral and will request additional collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement. In its 
normal course of business, the Company follows generally acceptable processes (in accordance with law) to get possession of the collateral 
through the agent appointed. The assets so repossessed are sold on behalf of the customers so as to settle the receivables. Any surplus funds are 
returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, the collaterals are not recorded on the Balance Sheet and not treated as non–current 
assets held for sale.



Notes
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

96

Annual Report 2020-21

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

  Quantitative information of Collateral - Credit impaired assets

Loan To Value (LTV) range
Gross value of loan in stage

 As at  
31st March, 2021

 As at  
31st March, 2020

Less than 50% coverage  20,869.43  11,884.45

51 to 70% coverage  22,151.42  10,323.93

71 to 90% coverage  24,027.72  10,643.53

91 to 100% coverage  7,315.63  2,724.42

More than 100% coverage  19,153.40  11,057.37

  Financial assets received as collateral

  Company has received Financial assets as collateral that it is permitted to sell in the absence of default.

  At 31st March, 2021, the fair value of financial assets accepted as collateral against Loan that the Company is permitted to sell or repledge in the 
absence of default was ` 192,844.86 lakhs (31st March, 2020: ` 355,890.96 lakhs).

  During the year ended on 31st March, 2021, the fair value of financial assets accepted as collateral that had been sold was Nil (Year ended on  
31st March, 2020: Nil). The Company adjusts the sales Proceed from carrying amount of loan and is not obliged to return equivalent securities.

  Concentration of credit risk

  The company monitors concentration of credit risk by line of business in India. The following table shows the concentrations of loans as at year end:-

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

Gross carrying amount  2,093,668.92  2,399,178.19 

Concentration by sector

Corporate  453,458.92  611,397.08 

Dealer finance  180,554.35  222,343.18 

Retail

- Vehicle finance  1,374,209.86  1,435,663.82 

- Unsecured lending  85,445.78  129,774.11 

 2,093,668.92  2,399,178.19 

 c. Amounts arising from ECL

 i. Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment

  Inputs considered in the ECL model:

  The objective of the impairment requirements is to recognise lifetime expected credit losses for all assets for which there have been significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition - whether assessed on an individual or collective basis - considering all reasonable and supportable 
information, including that which is forward-looking. At each reporting date, it will be assessed whether there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk (SICR) for assets since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the reporting date and 
the date of initial recognition.

  Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (SICR):

  The credit risk on a financial asset of the Company are assumed to have increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more 
than 30 days past due. Accordingly the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 2, if on the reporting date, it has been past due for more than 30 days. 
In determining whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, Company uses days past due information, Early Warning Signals 
(EWS) in terms of unusual events including incidents and frauds, repossession of an asset, etc. and forecast information to assess deterioration in 
credit quality of a financial asset.

  Assumption considered in the ECL model:

  -  “Probability of default” (PD) is defined as the probability of whether the borrowers will default on their obligations in the future. For 
assets which are in Stage 1, a 12 month PD is required. For Stage 2 assets a lifetime PD is required while Stage 3 assets are considered to 
have a 100% PD.

  -  ”Loss given default” (LGD) is an estimate of loss from a transaction, given that a default occurs.

  -  ”Exposure at default” (EAD) represents the expected exposure in the event of a default.”
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  Forward looking information:

  The Company incorporates forward looking information into both assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly 
since its initial recognition and its measurement of ECL. Based on the consideration of a variety of external actual and forecast information, the 
Company forms a ‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables such as real GDP, Real/Nominal Wages, Domestic Credit, 
real personal disposable income, etc. This process involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative 
probabilities of each outcome. The base case represents a most likely outcome while the other scenarios represent more optimistic and more 
pessimistic outcomes.

  Definition of default

  The Company combines the exposures into smaller homogeneous portfolios, based on a combination of internal and external characteristics of the 
loans. The Company categorises loan assets into stages based on the days past due status.

  - Stage 1: 0-30 days past due

  - Stage 2: 31- 89 days past due & EWS accounts

  - Stage 3: 90 days & above past due

  The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial instrument.

  Further, Company considers following factors to determine staging for corporate loans

  For downgrade from Stage 1 to Stage 2:

	 	 •	 2	notch	downgrade	in	Internal	rating	(wherever	available)	since	initial	recognition	of	loan

	 	 •	 2	notch	downgrade	in	external	rating	(wherever	available)	since	initial	recognition	of	loan

	 	 •	 Wherever	management	thinks	there	is	significant	increase	in	credit	risk	based	on	the	internal	assessment.

  Policy for write-off of Financial assets

  Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the 
Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts.

 ii. An analysis of changes in gross carrying amount as follows:

Particulars
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL not 

credit-impaired
Lifetime ECL 

credit-impaired
Total

Loans

Balance as at 1st April, 2019  2,725,676.05  84,695.08  34,982.25  2,845,353.38

Transfer to/from 12 month ECL  (111,213.74)  91,118.97  20,094.77  -

Transfer to/from Lifetime ECL not credit impaired  11,773.24  (25,352.77)  13,579.53  -

Transfer to/from Lifetime ECL credit impaired  1,134.05  1,042.27  (2,176.32)  -

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  (627,952.23)  (30,781.42)  (10,059.79)  (668,793.44)

New financial assets originated during the year  7,70,195.19  10,685.68  2,287.77  7,83,168.64

Matured or repaid  (512,592.54)  (26,572.14)  (923.01)  (540,087.69)

Write-offs  (4,777.12)  (4,534.08)  (11,151.50)  (20,462.70)

Balance as at 31st March, 2020  2,252,242.90  100,301.59  46,633.70  2,399,178.19

Transfer to/from 12 month ECL  (180,110.61)  127,275.44  52,835.17  -

Transfer to/from Lifetime ECL not credit impaired  15,360.93  (34,962.42)  19,601.49  -

Transfer to/from Lifetime ECL credit impaired  3,164.44  1,087.44  (4,251.89)  -

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  (467,722.25)  (39,410.50)  (9,407.42)  (516,540.17)

New financial assets originated during the year  623,913.96  3,147.01  1,402.27  628,463.24

Matured or repaid  (372,985.61)  (17,017.20)  (1,043.76)  (391,046.58)

Write-offs  (8,662.86)  (5,470.94)  (12,251.97)  (26,385.77)

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  1,865,200.90  134,950.42  93,517.60  2,093,668.92
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 iii. Impairment loss allowance

  The following table shows reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowances:

Particulars
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL not 

credit-impaired
Lifetime ECL 

credit-impaired
Total

Loans

Balance as at 1st April, 2019  7,976.64  4,222.34  19,898.30  32,097.28

Transfer to/from 12 month ECL  (1,003.79)  828.90  174.89  -

Transfer to/from Lifetime ECL not credit impaired  497.98  (1,588.55)  1,090.57  -

Transfer to/from Lifetime ECL credit impaired  424.93  334.31  (759.23)  0.01

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  3,004.85  8,363.30  10,931.08  22,299.23

New financial assets originated during the year  5,473.31  1,311.42  1,298.23  8,082.96

Matured or repaid  (1,516.94)  (275.94)  (432.99)  (2,225.87)

Write-offs  (44.49)  (343.94)  (6,266.74)  (6,655.17)

Balance as at 31st March, 2020  14,812.49  12,851.84  25,934.11  53,598.44

Transfer to/from 12 month ECL  (3,742.42)  1,910.27  1,832.15  -

Transfer to/from Lifetime ECL not credit impaired  2,091.62  (6,105.09)  4,013.46  -

Transfer to/from Lifetime ECL credit impaired  1,606.16  507.77  (2,113.93)  -

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  (3,313.07)  9,931.22  26,995.32  33,613.48

New financial assets originated during the year  4,675.83  580.87  632.95  5,889.65

Matured or repaid  (2,116.23)  (2,303.66)  (864.86)  (5,284.75)

Write-offs  (284.84)  (818.84)  (6,746.74)  (7,850.42)

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  13,729.55  16,554.38  49,682.45  79,966.40

Particulars

Trade 
receivables

CBLO 
lending

Inter 
corporate 

deposit

Loan to 
employees

Loan to 
trust

Investments Other 
financial 

assets

Cash & Cash 
Equivalents

Bank 
Balances 

other than 
Cash & Cash 
Equivalents

Balance as at 1st April, 2019  0.07  0.81  -  0.30  -  1.92  4.75  4.14  27.75
Addition during the year  -  33.29  178.64  0.58  8.58  556.62  46.58  14.30  -

Impairment loss reversed/written back  0.01  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (15.03)

Balance as at 31st March, 2020  0.08  34.10  178.64  0.88  8.58  558.54  51.33  18.44  12.72
Addition during the year  -  (19.77)  (119.88)  (0.03)  (5.45)  448.37  (26.74)  (1.92)  -

Impairment loss reversed/written back  0.01  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (12.72)

Balance as at 31st March, 2021  0.09  14.33  58.76  0.85  3.13  1,006.91  24.59  16.52  -

 (d.) The following table presents the financial assets which has financial assets as collaterals on which the Company has a right to sell/offset in absence 
of default. However the financial assets have not been offsetted with the amount of respective collaterals in the Balance Sheet and captured in the 
below table for the purpose of disclosure.
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 The column ‘maximum exposure’ shows the impact on the Company’s Balance Sheet if all set-off rights are exercised.

Particulars

Effect of offsetting on the Balance Sheet 

Gross amounts Gross amounts set 
off in the Balance 

Sheet 

Net amounts 
presented in the 

Balance Sheet 

Netting potential 
not recognised on 

the Balance Sheet - 
Financial collaterals 

obtained1

Maximum 
exposure

31st March, 2021

Loans

Structured loans*  64,023.97  -  64,023.97  (64,023.97)  - 

31st March, 2020

Loans

Structured loans*  164,882.82  -  164,882.82  (144,305.57)  20,577.25 

 *Structured loan does not include commercial real estate loans and other structured loans.

 1Company obtains financial collateral from its borrowers towards, loans advanced as Loans against securities (LAS) and Margin funding portfoio. Fair value 
of the financial collateral obtained is more than the underlying loans exposure. Accordingly, amounts have been capped to the extent it does not exceed 
the net amount of financial assets presented on the Balance Sheet.

 iii. Liquidity Risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet its financial obligations when they fall due without adversely affecting its financial 
condition. Liquidity risk arises because of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows.

  Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the Company defines its liquidity risk management strategy and sets the overall policy and risk 
tolerances. In order to manage/mitigate liquidity risk, in addition to regulatory limits on liquidity gaps, the Company has also defined prudential 
internal limit for Liquidity Gap tolerance for its various time buckets, which is approved by the ALCO. Treasury is responsible for managing liquidity 
under the prescribed liquidity risk management framework and the same is monitored by ALCO.

  Liquidity risk management strategies and practices are reviewed to align with changes to the external environment, including regulatory changes, 
business conditions and market developments. Actual and anticipated cash flows generated are monitored to ensure compliance with limits.

 Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities

 The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include 
estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Particulars

Carrying 
amount

Total 
contractual 
cash flows

1 Day to 
7 Days

8 Day 
to 14 
Days

15 Day 
to 30/31 

Days (One 
Month)

Over one 
Month to 
2 Months

Over 2 
Months 
upto 3 

Months

Over 3 
Months 
upto 6 

Months

Over 6 
Months 

upto 1 Year

Over 1 
Year upto 3 

Years

Over 3 
Years 

upto 5 
Years

Over 5 
Years

As at 31st March, 2021

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities

Trade and other Payables  38,462.19  38,462.19  -  -  38,462.19  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Debt securities 1,123,754.73 1,217,117.46  -  -  85,920.00 94,000.00 66,142.00 146,110.49 198,779.46 626,165.52  -  -
Borrowings (Other than 
Debt Securities)

 620,309.31  632,066.50 5,000.00  -  37,436.97 80,314.05 32,221.68 136,219.91 287,770.40 53,103.50  -  -

Deposits  160.21  160.21  36.66  -  4.78  -  1.74  -  25.15  82.79  9.09  -
Subordinated Liabilities  47,957.61  55,907.41  -  -  15,125.14  -  3,944.48 10,261.42  1,493.86 11,782.51 1,650.00 11,650.00
Other Financial Liabilities  6,946.03  7,136.61 135.70  - 5,530.61  31.42  30.52  294.59  168.64  590.70  238.46  115.96
Derivative financial 
liabilities

Nifty linked derivative  2,745.00  2,745.00  -  -  -  -  -  - 704.00  2,041.00  -  -
FCNR Term Loan  1,993.99  1,993.99  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,993.99  -  -
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Particulars

Carrying 
amount

Total 
contractual 
cash flows

1 Day 
to 7 

Days

8 Day to 
14 Days

15 Day 
to 30/31 

Days (One 
Month)

Over one 
Month to 2 

Months

Over 2 
Months 
upto 3 

Months

Over 3 
Months 
upto 6 

Months

Over 6 
Months 
upto 1 

Year

Over 1 
Year upto 

3 Years

Over 3 
Years 

upto 5 
Years

Over 5 
Years

As at 31st March, 2021

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities

Trade and other Payables  15,823.21  15,823.00  -  -  15,823.00  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Debt securities 1,257,280.79 1,382,982.00 1,004.00 35,968.00  13,159.00 45,025.00 73,162.00 144,719.00  324,229.00 745,716.00  -  - 
Borrowings (Other than 
Debt Securities)

 875,033.69  915,885.00  - 15,500.00  66,500.00 100,500.00 179,000.00 294,700.00  254,685.00  5,000.00  -  - 

Deposits  165.84  165.84  2.44  -  -  2.91  -  5.22  10.77  112.37  32.13  - 
Subordinated Liabilities  50,659.06  63,493.00  -  -  -  253.00  383.00  1,258.00  5,691.00  37,572.00 5,861.00  12,475.00 
Other Financial Liabilities  3,575.61  3,842.00  74.00  -  1,981.00  38.00  33.00  300.00  221.00  625.00  402.00  168.00 
Derivative financial 
liabilities

Nifty linked derivative  8,135.24  8,135.00  -  -  -  -  -  6,545.00  -  1,590.00  -  - 

 iv. Market Risk

  Market risk is the risk that earnings or the value of its holding of financial instruments will be adversely affected by changes in market variable such 
as interest rate, credit spreads, equity prices etc.

  The Company is primarily exposed to market risk related to interest rate risk and changes in market variables affecting the market value of its 
investments in financial instruments. In order to manage/mitigate market risk in its investment portfolio, the Company has defined comprehensive 
limit-framework including value limit, category limit, holding period limit for its investments, which is approved by the Board.

  Treasury is entrusted with the responsibility of managing market risk within the prescribed policy and the same is monitored by ALCO.

 a. Foreign Currency risk

  The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its derivative financial instrument in foreign currency. The functional currency of the 
Company is Indian Rupee i.e. INR.

  Exposure to currency risk (Exposure in different currencies converted to functional currency i.e INR)

  The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31st March, 2021 and 31st March, 2020 are as below:

Particulars
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

 USD  USD

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  -  -

Trade and other receivables  -  -

 -  -

Financial liabilities

Term Loan  52,865.97

Derivatives financial instruments  1,993.99  -

 54,859.96  -

Particulars
Year-end spot rate

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

USD  73.11  -
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  Sensitivity analysis

  A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against the foreign currencies at 31st March would have affected the 
measurement of financial instruments denominated in foreign currencies and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This 
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Effect in INR
Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31st March, 2021

USD - 1% Movement  548.60  (548.60)  410.53  (410.53)

 548.60  (548.60)  410.53  (410.53)

Effect in INR
Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31st March, 2020

USD - 1% Movement  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  - 

 b. Interest Rate Risk

  Interest rate risk consists primarily of risk inherent in ALM activities and relates to the potential adverse impact of changes in market interest rates 
on future net interest income (NII). Interest rate risk arises from mismatches in re-pricing of interest rate sensitive assets (RSA) and rate sensitive 
liabilities (RSL).

  Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company is the guiding body for management of its interest rate risk and sets the overall policy and risk limits. 
In order to manage/mitigate interest rate risk, the Company has defined Interest Rate Sensitive Gap tolerance limits for each time bucket which is 
approved by the Board. Treasury is entrusted with the responsibility of managing interest rate risk within the prescribed overall risk limits and the 
same is monitored by ALCO.

  Further, the Company undertakes NII analysis to assess the impact of changes in interest rate on the earnings of the Company.

  Exposure to interest rate risk

  The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments is as follows.

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets  23,69,354.00  25,95,186.17

Financial liabilities  (1,828,179.07)  (2,176,704.91)

Variable-rate instruments

Financial assets  309,122.57  378,233.91

Financial liabilities  (14,150.00)  (33,968.53)

Total Net  836,147.50  762,746.64
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  Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

  A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the 
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

Variable rate instruments  2,949.73  (2,949.73)  3,442.65  (3,442.65)

Cash Flow Sensitivity  2,949.73  (2,949.73)  3,442.65  (3,442.65)

  The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation also assumes that the 
change occurs at the Balance Sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are 
not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

NOTE 44 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
As per RBI, NBFCs are required to maintain a minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio (“CRAR”) consisting of Tier I and Tier II capital of 15% of its aggregate 
risk weighted assets. Further, the total of Tier II capital cannot exceed 100% of Tier I capital at any point of time. The capital management process of the 
Company ensures to maintain the minimum CRAR at all the times.

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with capital requirements required by regulator, 
maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities.

Sr. 
No. Particulars

As at 
31st March, 2021**

As at 
31st March, 2020 **

(A) Tier 1 capital  628,911.93  583,089.81

Tier 2 capital  27,454.74  35,532.30

Total Capital funds  656,366.68  618,622.11

Risk weighted assets  2,219,242.28  2,530,607.01

Tier 1 Capital ratio 28.34% 23.04%

Total Capital ratio 29.58% 24.45%

**The unrealised gains on Investments fair valued through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) and fair valued through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) has not been 
considered as part of the regulatory capital. Similarly, carrying value of such investments (net of fair value gains) has been considered to compute net owned 
funds & risk weighted assets.
For dividend on Equity shares - Refer note 22(h)
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NOTE 45 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

Particulars
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

ASSETS

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents  6,013.46  -  6,013.46  41,345.65  -  41,345.65 

Bank Balance other than cash and cash 
equivalents

 0.11  21.40  21.51  65,201.81  20.32  65,222.13 

Receivables  - 

 (I) Trade receivables  6.43  -  6.43  6.48  -  6.48 

Loans  1,035,174.68  1,057,486.69 2,092,661.37  1,381,047.05  1,158,424.98  2,539,472.03 

Investments  198,248.57  377,741.45  575,990.02  49,353.21  273,728.25  323,081.46 

Other Financial assets  3,595.96  187.82  3,783.78  4,127.27  165.06  4,292.33 

Sub total  1,243,039.21  1,435,437.36 2,678,476.57  1,541,081.47  1,432,338.61  2,973,420.08 

Non-financial assets

Current Tax assets (Net)  -  3,493.90  3,493.90  -  2,521.04  2,521.04 

Deferred Tax assets (Net)  -  19,412.90  19,412.90  -  13,459.26  13,459.26 

Property, Plant and Equipment  -  3,423.38  3,423.38  -  3,857.48  3,857.48 

Other intangible assets  -  117.25  117.25  -  156.23  156.23 

Other Non-financial assets  3,372.56  -  3,372.56  3,760.05  -  3,760.05 

Sub total  3,372.56  26,447.43  29,819.99  3,760.05  19,994.01  23,754.06 

Total Assets  1,246,411.77  1,461,884.79 2,708,296.56  1,544,841.52  1,452,332.62  2,997,174.14 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities

Derivatives financial instruments  704.00  4,034.99  4,738.99  6,545.24  1,590.00  8,135.24 

Payables

(I) Trade payables

 (i) total outstanding dues of micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

 (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

 38,462.19  -  38,462.19  15,823.21  -  15,823.21 

Debt securities  541,466.78  582,287.95 1,123,754.73  575,110.76  682,170.03  1,257,280.79 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)  567,443.34  52,865.97  620,309.31  872,533.69  2,500.00  875,033.69 

Deposits  66.50  93.71  160.21  21.35  144.49  165.84 

Subordinated Liabilities  28,398.25  19,559.36  47,957.61  2,710.31  47,948.75  50,659.06 

Other Financial liabilities  6,122.03  824.00  6,946.03  2,557.02  1,018.59  3,575.61 

Sub total  1,182,663.09  659,665.98 1,842,329.07  1,475,301.58  735,371.86  2,210,673.44 

Non-Financial liabilities

Current tax liabilities (Net)  3,902.83  -  3,902.83  3,011.83  -  3,011.83 

Provisions  246.02  475.70  721.72  204.31  678.68  882.99 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net)  -  45,215.72  45,215.72  -  39,340.63  39,340.63 

Other non-financial liabilities  1,576.81  -  1,576.81  925.15  -  925.15 

Sub total  5,725.66  45,691.42  51,417.08  4,141.29  40,019.31  44,160.60 

Total Liabilities  1,188,388.75  705,357.40 1,893,746.15  1,479,442.87  775,391.17  2,254,834.04 
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NOTE 46 SEGMENT REPORTING 
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur expenses, including 
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

All operating segments’ results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), which have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(‘CODM’) of the Company. The Chief Executive Officer, which have been identified as the CODM, regularly review the performance reports and make decisions 
about allocation of resources.

The Company has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the Company’s strategic business units. For each business units the Chief Executive 
Officer regularly reviews the performance reports.

Reportable segments
a. Vehicle Financing - Retail Vehicle finance, Wholesale dealer finance and consumer durable finance

b. Other Lending activities - financing against securities, securitisation, debenture investment / lending in commercial real estate and other loans / 
fee based services

c. Treasury and Investment activities - proprietary trading in shares and strategic investments

A. Information about reportable segments

For the year ended 31st March, 2021

Particulars

Reportable segments

Vehicle 
financing

Other 
lending 

activities

Treasury and 
investment 

activities

Total 
Segments

Unallocated  Eliminations Total

Segment revenue

Revenue  189,019.68  64,505.54  31,036.89  284,562.11  -  284,562.11

Inter-segment revenue  -  -  -  -  -  (25,359.41)  (25,359.41)

Total segment revenue  189,019.68  64,505.54  31,036.89  284,562.11  -  (25,359.41) 259,202.70

Segment results  16,742.34  25,385.69  27,862.70  69,990.73  -  -  69,990.73

Unallocable expenses (net)  -

Profit before tax  69,990.73

Tax expense  18,063.37

Segment profit  51,927.36

Segment assets 1,607,803.52 650,538.95  424,522.50 2,682,864.97  25,431.59  - 2,708,296.56

Segment liabilities 1,057,928.38 580,614.17  204,508.24 1,843,050.79  50,695.36  - 1,893,746.15

Other disclosures

Capital expenditure  213.92  -  -  213.92  -  -  213.92

Depreciation and amortisation  748.62  748.62  -  -  748.62

Other non-cash items (Impairment loss allowance, 
employee benefits, MTM on derivative etc.)

 25,714.56  (1,164.42)  (60.50)  24,489.64  -  -  24,489.64
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(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31st March, 2020

Particulars

Reportable segments
Vehicle 

financing
Other 

lending 
activities

Treasury and 
investment 

activities

Total 
Segments

Unallocated  Eliminations Total

Segment revenue

Revenue  223,771.17  89,609.63  21,381.14  334,761.94  -  334,761.94

Inter-segment revenue  -  -  -  -  -  (14,609.71)  (14,609.71)

Total segment revenue  223,771.17  89,609.63  21,381.14  334,761.94  -  (14,609.71)  320,152.23

Segment results  38,437.36  25,173.87  17,709.48  81,320.71  -  -  81,320.71

Unallocable expenses (net)  -

Profit before tax  81,320.71

Tax expense  22,799.19

Segment profit  58,521.52

Segment assets 1,919,221.96 833,616.97  225,212.47 2,978,051.40  19,122.74  - 2,997,174.14

Segment liabilities 1,458,132.70 735,131.15  18,292.58 2,211,556.43  43,277.61  - 2,254,834.04

Other disclosures

Capital expenditure  372.09  -  -  372.09  -  -  372.09

Depreciation and amortisation  802.19  802.19  -  -  802.19

Other non-cash items (Impairment loss allowance, 
employee benefits, MTM on derivative etc.)

 16,882.15  5,289.03  201.13  22,372.31  -  -  22,372.31

B. Information about major customers
 No revenues from transactions with single external customer amounted to 10% or more of company’s total revenue in the year ended 31st March, 2021 

and 31st March, 2020.

NOTE 47 DISCLOSURES UNDER NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANY - SYSTEMICALLY IMPORTANT NON-DEPOSIT TAKING 
COMPANY AND DEPOSIT TAKING COMPANY (RESERVE BANK) DIRECTIONS, 2016

Note 47.1 Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-banking financial company as required in terms of Para 16 (5) of Non-Banking 
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016

(a) Capital to Risk assets Ratio (CRAR)

(Amount in lakhs)

Items
As at  

31st March, 2021 #
As at  

31st March, 2020 #

(i) CRAR (%)  29.58  24.45 

(ii) CRAR – Tier I Capital (%)  28.34  23.04 

(iii) CRAR – Tier II Capital (%)  1.24  1.41 

# The unrealised gains on Investments measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) and fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) has not 
been considered as part of the regulatory capital. Similarly, carrying value of such investments (net of fair value gains) has been considered to compute net 
owned funds and risk weighted assets.
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(b) Exposure to Real Estate Sector

(Amount in lakhs)

Category
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

(a) Direct Exposure

(i) Residential Mortgages - - -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the 
borrower or that is rented

(ii) Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, 
multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted 
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and 
construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non fund based limits.

 27,946,128,256 (*) 35,254,464,985 (*)

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures - - -

a. Residential

b. Commercial Real Estate

(b) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing 
Finance Companies (HFCs)

- -

* Includes the Company’s exposure to Real Estate sector of ` 2,374,731,076 (previous year ` 37,325,005) which is unsecured.

(c) Asset Liability Management

 Maturity Pattern of Certain items of Assets and Liabilities

(Amount in crores)

Particulars

1 Day to 7 
Days

8 Day to 
14 Days

15 Day 
to 30/31 

Days (One 
Month)

Over one 
Month 

to 2 
Months

Over 2 
Months 
upto 3 

Months

Over 3 
Months 
upto 6 

Months

Over 6 
Months 
upto 1 

Year

Over 1 
Year upto 

3 Years

Over 3 
Years 

upto 5 
Years

Over 5 
Years

Total

Liabilities

Borrowings from 
banks

 -  -  348.00  523.13  320.00  3.13  6.25  528.57  -  -  1,729.07

Market Borrowings  50.00  369.56  1,005.12 1,208.62  645.60  2,524.59  4,079.69  5,810.43  -  100.00  15,793.61
Assets

Advances  1,469.71  148.96  532.31 1,049.23  807.58  2,228.99  4,355.19  7,801.62  2,247.95  386.54  21,028.10
Investments  1,952.72  -  0.62  2.33  2.32  6.80  8.49  1,588.32  -  94.17  3,655.77

Note: The above table has been prepared in accordance with statement of structural liquidity (contractual cash flows) as suggested in the Master Directions 
issued by the RBI. In computing the above information certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the Management for its regulatory 
submission which have been relied upon by the Auditors.
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Note 47.2 Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-banking financial company as required in terms of paragraph 18 of Non-Banking 
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016

(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars
Amount 

Outstanding
Amount Overdue

(1) Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial Company inclusive of interest accrued 
thereon but not paid:

(a) Debentures : Secured  1,123,754.73 NIL

 : Unsecured (TierII: Sub-ordinated debts)  47,957.61 NIL

 (Other than falling within the meaning of Public deposits *)

(b) Deferred Credits NIL NA

(c) Term Loans  54,115.98 NIL

(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing  12,101.61 NIL

(e) Commercial Paper  435,294.77 NIL

(f) Public Deposits* NIL NA

(g) Other Loans

 - Cash credit  34,773.44 NIL

 - Loans repayable on demand from banks  84,000.00 NIL

 - Book overdraft  23.51 NIL

* Please see Note 2  -

(2) Break-up of (1) (f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid)  -

(a) In the form of Unsecured Debentures NA  -

(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall in the 
value of security

NA  -

(c) Other public deposits NA  -

(Amount in lakhs)

Amount 
Outstanding

Assets side

(3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:

(a) Secured  1,866,391.67

(b) Unsecured  306,313.17

(4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities#

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors

 (a) Financial lease NIL

 (b) Operating lease  NIL

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

 (a) Assets on hire NIL

 (b) Repossessed Assets  NIL

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

 (a) Loans where assets have been repossessed NIL

 (b) Loans other than (a) above  NIL

#The Company has not disclosed amount outstanding under assets financing activities under note 4 and included entire loan amount outstanding under note 
3 as RBI has merged Asset Financing Companies, Loan Companies and Investment companies in to a new category “NBFC - Investment and Credit Company” 
vide its circular no. DN BR (PD) CC. No. 097/03.10.001/2018-19 dated 28th February, 2019.
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(Amount in lakhs)

Amount 
Outstanding

(5) Break-up of Investments : $

Current Investments :

1. Quoted :

 (i) Shares : (a) Equity NIL

    (b) Preference NIL

 (ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL

 (iii) Units of mutual funds NIL

 (iv) Government Securities NIL

 (v) Others NIL

2. Unquoted :

 (i) Shares : (a) Equity NIL

    (b) Preference NIL

 (ii) Debentures and Bonds  736.00

 (iii) Units of mutual funds  4,900.20

 (iv) Government Securities  191,122.25

 (v) Others – Commercial paper  -

Long Term investments :

1. Quoted :

 (i) Shares : (a) Equity NIL

    (b) Preference NIL

 (ii) Debentures and Bonds NIL

 (iii) Units of mutual funds NIL

 (iv) Government Securities NIL

 (v) Others NIL

2. Unquoted :

 (i) Shares : (a) Equity  217,954.62

    (b) Preference  12,200.13

 (ii) Debentures and Bonds  149,076.82

 (iii) Units of mutual funds NIL

 (iv) Government Securities NIL

 (v) Others NIL
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(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above

 Please see Note 2

(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars
Amount Net of provisions

Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties **

 a Subsidiaries  NIL NIL NIL

 b Companies in the same group NIL NIL NIL

 c Other related parties NIL NIL  NIL

2. Other Than Related Parties  1,802,035.33  290,626.04  2,092,661.37

Total  1,802,035.33  290,626.04  2,092,661.37

(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted): $

 Please see note 3 below

(Amount in lakhs)

Category
Market Value / Break 

up or fair value or NAV
Book Value (Net of 

Provisions)

1. Related Parties **

 a Subsidiaries NIL NIL

 b Companies in the same group  220,932.74  220,853.99

 c Other related parties  12,321.10  12,321.10

2. Other Than Related Parties  343,743.09  342,814.93

Total  576,996.93  575,990.02

 ** As per Indian Accounting Standard issued by MCA (Please see Note 3)

(8) Other information

(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars Total

i Gross Non-Performing Assets *

 a Related parties  NIL

 b Other than related parties  93,517.29

ii Net Non-Performing Assets *

 a Related parties NIL

 b Other than related parties  49,683.36

iii Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt NIL

 * NPA accounts refer to stage 3 assets. Stage 3 Assets includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date as defined under Ind AS. 90 Days 
Past Due and other qualitative factors has been considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as credit impaired.

 Notes:
 1 As defined in point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter -2 of these Directions.
 2 Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in Indian Accounting Standards by MCA.
 3 All Indian Accounting Standards issued by MCA are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. 

However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break up / fair value / NAV in respect of unquoted investments shall be disclosed irrespective of whether they 
are classified as long term or current in (5) above.
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Note 47.3 Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-banking financial company as required in terms of Para 24 of Non-Banking Financial 
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Disclosure of Restructured Assets

47.3 Particulars (Amount in lakhs)

Sr  
No

Type of Restructuring Other than CDR and SME Debt Restructuring Total

Assets Classification Standard Sub-
Standard

Doubtful Loss* Total Standard Sub-
Standard

Doubtful Loss Total

Details

1 Restructured accounts as 
on April 1 of FY (opening 
figures) (*)

No of borrowers 3  3  -  -  -  3  3

Amount Outstanding 149.65  149.65  -  -  -  149.65  149.65

Provision there on 130.48  130.48  -  -  -  130.48  130.48

2 Fresh Restructuring 
during the year

No of borrowers  501.00  501  -  -  501.00  -  501.00

Amount Outstanding 2,299.47 2,299.47  -  - 2,299.47  - 2,299.47

Provision there on  500.16  500.16  -  -  500.16  -  500.16

3 Upgradations to 
restructured standard 
category during the FY

No of borrowers  -  -  -  -  -  -

Amount Outstanding  -  -  -  -  -  -

Provision there on  -  -  -  -  -  -

4 Restructured standard 
advances which cease 
to attract higher 
provisioning and / or 
additional risk weight 
at the end of the FY 
and hence need not be 
shown as restructured 
standard advances at the 
beginning of the next FY

No of borrowers  -  -  -  -  -  -

Amount Outstanding  -  -  -  -  -  -

Provision there on  -  -  -  -  -  -

5 Downgradation of 
restructured accounts 
during the FY

No of borrowers  -  -  -  -  -  -

Amount Outstanding  -  -  -  -  -  -

Provision there on  -  -  -  -  -  -

6 Write offs of restructured 
accounts during the FY

No of borrowers  -  -  -  -  -  -

Amount Outstanding  -  -  -  -  -  -

7 Restructured Accounts 
as on 31st March of the 
FY (closing figures) (*)

No of borrowers  501  3  504  -  -  501  3  504

Amount Outstanding 2,299.47 146.32 2,445.79  -  - 2,299.47  146.32 2,445.79

Provision there on #  500.16 135.09  635.25  -  -  500.16  135.09  635.25

(*) Excluding the figures of Standard Restructured Advances which do not attract higher provisioning or risk weight (if applicable)
(#) Provision is based on Expected Credit Loss as per Ind-AS reporting requirements
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Note 47.4 Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-banking financial company as required in terms of paragraph 102 of Non-
Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016

(Amount in lakhs)

As at 
31st March, 2021

As at 
31st March, 2020

No./Amount No./Amount

(` in crores) (` in crores) 

1 No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitization transactions  -  - 

2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC  -  - 

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of Balance Sheet

a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures

 First loss  -  - 

 Others  -  - 

b) On-Balance Sheet exposures

 First loss  -  - 

 Others  -  - 

4 Amount of exposures to securitization transactions other than MRR

a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures

 i) Exposure to own securitisations

  First loss  -  - 

  Others  -  - 

 ii) Exposure to third party securitisations

  First loss  -  - 

  Others  -  - 

b) On-Balance Sheet exposures

 i) Exposure to own securitisations

  First loss  -  - 

  Others  -  - 

 ii) Exposure to third party securitisations

  First loss  -  - 

  Others  -  - 

Note 47.5 Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-banking financial company as required in terms of Chapter II paragraph 5 of 
Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 - the frauds detected and reported for the year amounted to  
` 406.28 lakhs (31st March, 2020: ` 208.5 lakhs)
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Note 48 Note to the Balance Sheet of a non-banking financial company as required in terms of Para 70 (2) of Non-Banking Financial 
Company -Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Note 48.1 Capital

(` in crore)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

i) CRAR (%)  29.58  24.45

ii) CRAR – Tier I Capital (%)  28.34  23.04

iii) CRAR – Tier II Capital (%)  1.24  1.41

iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital  479.58  506.58

v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt instruments  -  -

# The unrealised gains on Investments measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) and fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) has not been considered as part 
of the regulatory capital. Similarly, carrying value of such investments (net of fair value gains) has been considered to compute net owned funds and risk weighted assets.

Note 48.2 Investments

(` in crore)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020
(1) Value of Investments
 (i) CRAR (%)
  (a) In India  5,769.97  3,236.40
  (b) Outside India,  -  -
 (ii) Provisions for Depreciation
  (a) In India  10.07  5.59
  (b) Outside India,  -  -
 (iii) Net Value of Investments
  (a) In India  5,759.90  3,230.81
  (b) Outside India,  -  -
(2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
 (i) Opening balance  5.59  0.02
 (ii) Add : Provisions made during the year  10.07  5.59
 (iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year  5.59  0.02
 (iv) Closing balance  10.07  5.59

Note 48.3 Derivatives:

Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap# (` in crore)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

(i) The notional principal of Forward exchange contract / swap agreements  -  -

(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under the agreements  -  -

(iii) Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering into swaps  -  -

(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps  -  -

(v) The fair value of the swap book  -  -

# Cross currency swaps have been included under Currency Derivatives

Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives (` in crore)

Particulars

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument-wise)  -

(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 31st March, 2021 (instrument-wise)  -

(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective” (instrument-wise)  -

(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective” (instrument-wise)  -
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Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

Qualitative Disclosure

(i) The Company has Board approved risk management policy in dealing with foreign currency derivative transactions including Full Currency Swap (FCS), Coupon 
Only Swap (COS), Principal Only Swap (POS), Options and Forwards. The policy provides for use of derivative instruments in managing risks. The Company 
undertakes such derivative transactions for hedging the underlying liability. In case of revaluation of derivative transactions, the same is recognised in the books 
of accounts as per the accounting policies of the Company. Policy provides for monitoring of derivative transactions and reporting to Board on quarterly basis.

Quantitative Disclosures (` in crore)

Particulars
Currency 

Derivatives*
Interest Rate 

Derivatives
(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)  550.00  - 
 For hedging $  550.00 
(ii) Marked to Market Positions [1]
 a) Asset (+)  -  - 
 b) Liability (-)  19.93  - 
(iii) Credit Exposure [2]  74.94  - 
(iv) Unhedged Exposures  -  - 

* Cross currency swaps have been included under Currency Derivatives
$ For accounting refer note no 13

Note 48.4 Securitisation

Sr. 
No. Particulars

No. / Amount in 
 ` crore

1 No of SPVs sponsored by the applicable NBFC for securitisation transactions  -

2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored  -

3 Total amount of exposures retained by the applicable NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of Balance Sheet

a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures

 First loss  -

 Others  -

3.2 b) On-Balance Sheet exposures

 First loss  -

 Others  -

4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR

a) Off-Balance Sheet exposures

 i) Exposure to own securitisation

  First loss  -

  Others  -

 ii) Exposure to third party securitisation

  First loss  -

  Others  -

b) On-Balance Sheet exposures

 i) Exposure to own securitisation

  First loss  -

  Others  -

 ii) Exposure to third party securitisation

  First loss  -

  Others  -
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Note 48.5 Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

(` in crore)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

(i) No. of accounts  -  -

(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC  -  -

(iii) Aggregate consideration  -  -

(iv) Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years  -  -

(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value  -  -

Note 48.6 Assignment transactions

(` in crore)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

(i) No. of accounts  -  -

(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold  -  -

(iii) Aggregate consideration  -  -

(iv) Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years

(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value  -  -

Note 48.7 Non-Performing Financial Assets Purchased

(` in crore)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

1 (a) No. of accounts purchased during the year  -  -

(b) Aggregate outstanding  -  -

2 (a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year  -  -

(b) Aggregate outstanding  -  -

Non-Performing Financial Assets Sold (` in crore)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

1 No. of accounts sold  -  -

Aggregate outstanding  -  -

Aggregate consideration received  -  -

Note 48.8 Exposure to Real Estate Sector

(` in crore)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

Direct Exposure - -

(i) Residential Mortgages - - -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower 
or that is rented

(ii) Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial 
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, 
hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non fund based limits.

 2,794.61 (*)  3,525.45 (*) 

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures - - -

a. Residential

b. Commercial Real Estate

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

* Includes the Company’s exposure to Real Estate sector of ` 237.47 crores (previous year ` 3.73 crores) which is unsecured.
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Note 48.9 Exposure to Capital Market

(` in crore)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020
(i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented 

mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
 2,690.33  2,414.63

(ii) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals## for investment in 
shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

 1,724.69  872.22

(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of 
equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;

 408.69  631.77

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or 
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / 
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;

 -  -

(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers 
and market makers;

 -  -

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean 
basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources;

 -  -

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;  -  -
(viii) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)  -  -
Total Exposure to Capital Market  4,823.71  3,918.62

## includes loans to corporates

Note 49.10 Details of financing of parent company products: Nil

Note 49.11 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the applicable NBFC : Nil

Note 49.12 Unsecured Advances
a. Refer Note no. 7(B)(ii) to the financial statements

b. The Company has not granted any advances against intangible securities (31st March, 2020: Nil).

Note 49.13 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

IRDA registration: License No: CA 0271 (Licence with Kotak Mahindra General Insurance Limited)

License No: CA 0271 (Licence with Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited)

Note 49.14 Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators: Nil

Note 49.15 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Instrument Rating:

CRISIL:

Long term debt instruments and Long term bank facilities: continues to be CRISIL AAA/Stable
Sub-ordinated debt: continues to be CRISIL AAA/Stable
Nifty / Market linked debentures: continues to be CRISIL PP-MLD AAAr/Stable
Short term debt instruments and Short term bank facilities: continues to be CRISIL A1+

ICRA:

Long term debt instruments and Long term bank facilities: continues to be [ICRA]AAA(Stable)
Sub-ordinated debt: continues to be [ICRA]AAA(Stable)
Nifty linked debentures: continues to be PP-MLD[ICRA]AAA(Stable)
Short term debt instruments: continues to be [ICRA]A1+

Note 49.16 Remuneration of Directors and Transactions with non executive directors: 
Refer Note no. 39 to the financial statements
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Note 49.17 Impact of prior period items on current year’s profit and loss : Nil

Note 49.18 Circumstances in which Revenue Recognition has been postponed: Nil

Note 49.19 Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) - Not Applicable

Note 49.20 Provisions and Contingencies

(` in crore)

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head expenses in Statement of 
Profit and Loss

For the year ended 
31st March, 2021

For the year ended 
31st March, 2020

Provisions for depreciation on Investment  -  -

Provision towards NPA #  215.31  53.92

Provision made towards Income tax  180.63  227.99

Provision for Standard Assets ##  -  -

Other Provision and Contingencies

 Provision towards impairment of financial instruments other than provision for stage 3 assets  29.07  164.09

 Provision for Contingencies  -  -

# Provision for Stage 3 assets

## Provision for standard assets is included in provision towards impairment of financial instruments other than provision for stage 3 assets.

Note 49.21 Draw Down from Reserves: Nil

Note 49.22 Concentration of Advances

(` in crore)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers  4,575.84  6,776.78

Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the applicable NBFC 21.06% 26.13%

Note 49.23 Concentration of Exposures

(` in crore)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers  9,305.72  9,305.72

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposures of the applicable NBFC 
on borrowers / customers

19.56% 19.56%

* including Investments

** Exposures refers to higher of sanctioned limits or outstanding. Sanctioned limits are unconditionally cancellable at any time by the company without prior notice.

Note 49.24 Concentration of NPAs

(` in crore)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2021
For the year ended 

31st March, 2020

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts **  49.87  43.69

** NPA accounts refer to stage 3 assets. Stage 3 Assets includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date as defined under Ind AS. 90 Days Past 
Due and other qualitative factors has been considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as credit impaired.
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Note 49.25 Sector-wise NPAs

Sr. 
No. Sector

Percentage of NPAs to Total 
Advances in that Sector

1 Agriculture & allied activities  -

2 MSME  -

3 Corporate borrowers 0.31%

4 Services  -

5 Unsecured personal loans 13.49%

6 Auto loans 5.18%

7 Other personal loans  -

Note 49.26 Movement of NPAs $

(` in crore)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 2.09% 0.82%

(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)

(a) Opening balance  466.33  349.82 

(b) Additions during the year  666.84  202.66 

(c) Reductions during the year  (198.00)  -86.15 

(d) Closing balance  935.17  466.33 

(iii) Movement of Net NPAs

(a) Opening balance  206.98  150.83 

(b) Additions during the year  322.91  75.30 

(c) Reductions during the year  (91.56)  -19.15 

(d) Closing balance  438.34  206.98 

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)

(a) Opening balance  259.35  198.99 

(b) Provisions made during the year  343.93  127.36 

(c) Write-off / write-back of excess provisions  (106.45)  -67.00 

(d) Closing balance  496.83  259.35 

$ NPA accounts refer to stage 3 assets. Stage 3 Assets includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date as defined under Ind AS. 90 Days Past 
Due and other qualitative factors has been considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as credit impaired.

Note 49.27 Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)

Name of the Joint Venture/ Subsidiary Other Partner in the JV Country Total Assets

NA

Note 49.28 Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)

Name of the SPV sponsored Domestic Overseas

NA

Note 49.29 Customer Complaints

No of cases

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year  50

(b) No. of complaints received during the year  3,184

(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year  3,195

(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year  39
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Note 49.30 Disclosure Required by Reserve Bank of India on Liquidity Risk Under Liquidity Risk Management Framework

49.30.01 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) 

(Amount in lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars

Average Q1 2020-21 Average Q2 2020-21 Average Q3 2020-21 Average Q4 2020-21

Total 
Unweighted 

Value

Total 
Weighted 

Value

Total 
Unweighted 

Value

Total 
Weighted 

Value

Total 
Unweighted 

Value

Total 
Weighted 

Value

Total 
Unweighted 

Value

Total 
Weighted 

Value

High Quality Liquid Assets

1.0 Total High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA)  3,623  3,623  4,758  4,758  154,247  154,247  176,491  176,491
Cash Outflow:

2.0 Deposits (for deposit taking companies)  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
2.0 Unsecured wholesale funding  68,400  78,660  77,500  89,125  116,333  133,783  90,190  103,719
4.0 Secured wholesale funding  67,843  78,020  39,043  44,900  60,914  70,051  52,157  59,980
5.0 Additional requirements, of which:  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
(i) Outflows related to derivative exposures 

and other collateral requirements
 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

(ii) Outflows related to loss of funding 
on debt products

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

(iii) Credit and liquidity facilities  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
6.0 Other contractual funding obligations  11,857  13,636  17,509  20,136  30,864  35,493  24,548  28,230
7.0 Other contingent funding obligations  359,958  413,951  3,08,927  355,266  208,270  239,510  182,317  209,665
8.0 Total Cash Outflow  -  584,267  -  509,427  -  478,838  -  401,593

Cash Inflows:

9.0 Secured lending  55,237  41,428  87,911  65,933  73,949  55,461  90,633  67,975
10.0 Inflows from fully performing exposures  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
11.0 Other cash inflows:  73,033  54,774  25,807  19,356  30,808  23,106  77,909  58,432
12.0 Total Cash Inflow  128,269  96,202  113,719  85,289  104,757  78,568  168,542  126,407

Components of HQLA

Cash and Bank Balance  3,623  3,623  4,758  4,758  19,982  19,982  6,924  6,924
Securities (Tbills/ Gsecs SDLs at MTM  -  -  -  -  134,265  134,265  169,568  169,568

 Total 
Adjusted 

Value

 Total 
Adjusted 

Value

 Total 
Adjusted 

Value

 Total 
Adjusted 

Value

13.0 Total HQLA  3,623  4,758  154,247  176,491

14.0 Total Net Cash Outflows  488,065  424,138  400,271  275,186

15.0 Liquidity Coverage Ratio % * 0.7% 1.1% 38.5% 64.1%

*In accordance with the liquidity risk management framework, the company has maintained more than 50% of liquidity coverage ratio with effect from 
December 1, 2020.

49.30.02. Qualitative disclosure around LCR
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has introduced the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) requirement for all deposit-taking NBFCs and non-deposit taking NBFCs with an 
asset size of ` 5,000 crore and above w.e.f. 1st December, 2020. LCR seeks to ensure that the Company has an adequate stock of unencumbered High Quality 
Liquid Assets (HQLA) lasting for 30 calendar days to meet its liquidity needs under a significantly severe liquidity stress scenario.

The Board is responsible for the overall management of liquidity risk. The Board has constituted Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) and Risk 
Management Committee (RMC) for on-going overall risk management including liquidity risk management. Treasury is vested with the responsibility of managing 
liquidity risk within the risk tolerance of the Company.

The Board has approved and adopted Liquidity Risk Management Framework whereby it has prescribed tolerance limits for granular maturity buckets for 
structural liquidity gaps and for stock ratios and has also prescribed Liquidity Stress testing scenarios to assess the Company‘s vulnerability to stressed business 
/ market conditions. The Board has advised metrics for various liquidity risk monitoring parameters including concentration of funding, early warning market 
related indicators, etc for due noting by ALCO.
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The Board has approved the policy on LCR as per the extant RBI guideline for strict adherence by the Company. LCR is aimed at measuring and promoting 
short-term resilience of the Company to potential liquidity disruptions by ensuring maintenance of sufficient HQLAs to survive an acute stress scenario lasting 
for 30 calendar days.

The LCR requirement has been introduced in a phased manner with the Company required to maintain minimum LCR of 50% from 1st December, 2020 
eventually increasing to 100% by 1st December, 2024. The requirement as on 31st March, 2021 is 50% for the Company.

With effect from 1st December, 2020, on a daily basis, as per the extant RBI guideline, the Company maintains a liquidity buffer, by ensuring it has sufficient 
HQLA that can be converted into cash easily and immediately to meet its liquidity needs under a 30 calendar days liquidity stress scenario.

The LCR ratio comprises of HQLAs as numerator and net cash outflows in 30 calendar days as denominator. In order to determine HQLA, the Company 
considers cash and bank balances, investment in government securities (incl. T-bills and state development loans) without any haircut. In order to determine 
net cash outflows in subsequent 30 calendar days, the Company considers total expected cash outflows minus total expected cash inflows. As prescribed 
by the extant RBI guideline, stressed cash flows is computed by assigning a predefined stress percentage to the overall cash inflows and cash outflows. Total 
expected cash outflows (stressed outflows) are calculated by multiplying the outstanding balances of various categories or types of liabilities and off-Balance 
Sheet commitments by 115%. Total expected cash inflows (stressed inflows) are calculated by multiplying the outstanding balances of various categories of 
contractual receivables by 75%. Net cash outflows over next 30 calendar days is computed as stressed outflows less minimum of (stressed inflows or 75% of 
stressed outflows).

For calculation of HQLA, the Company considers cash and bank balances, investment in government securities (incl. T-bills and state development loans) 
without any haircut. Such securities are valued at their market value. Cash outflows under unsecured and secured wholesale funding includes contractual debt 
repayment obligations in the next 30 calendar days. Outflows under other contractual funding obligations includes interest payable and sundry payable in the 
next 30 calendar days. Outflows under other contingent funding obligations includes unutilised uncommitted revocable facilities to borrowers. Cash inflows 
includes contractual inflows from performing exposures in next 30 calendar days. Other Cash inflows includes investments in mutual funds, treps, deposits, 
CPs etc which are maturing within 30 calendar days. Currently, the Company does not have an unhedged foreign currency exposure and resultant there is no 
currency mismatch in LCR.

Note 49.31 Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities

` in crore

Particulars

1 Day to 
7 Days

8 Day to 
14 Days

15 Days 
Up to 
30/31 
Days

Over 1 
Month 
upto 2 

Months

Over 2 
Months 
upto 3 

Months

Over 3 
Months 

& upto 6 
Months

Over 6 
Months 

& upto 1 
Year

Over 1 Year 
& upto 3 

Years

Over 3 
Years & 
upto 5 
Years

Over 5 
Years

Total

Deposits

Advances  1,469.71  148.96  532.31  1,049.23  807.58  2,228.99  4,355.19  7,801.62  2,247.95  386.54 2,1028.08
Investments  1,952.72  -  0.62  2.33  2.32  6.80  8.49  1,588.32  -  94.17  3,655.77
Borrowings*  50.00  369.56  1,353.12  1,731.75  965.60  2,527.72  4,085.94  6,339.00  -  100.00 17,522.69
Foreign Currency assets  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
Foreign Currency liabilities  -  -  -  -  -  528.57  -  -  528.57

NOTE 50 PUBLIC DISCLOSURE ON LIQUIDITY RISK

50.1 Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

Number of Significant Counterparties Amount (` Lakhs) % of Total deposits % of Total Liabilities

 22  1,591,063 NA 84.02%

50.2 Top 20 large deposits (amount in ` lakhs and % of total deposits) N.A.

50.3 Top 10 borrowings (amount in ` lakhs and % of total borrowings)

Amount (` Lakhs) % of Total Borrowings

 422,353  23.57%
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50.4 Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

Number of Instrument/Products Amount (` Lakhs) % of Total Liabilities

 Non Convertible Debenture  1,123,754.73 59.34%

 Commercial Paper  435,294.77 22.99%

 Bank loans  172,912.93 9.13%

 Sub-ordinated Debt  47,957.61 2.53%

50.5 Stock Ratios:

(a) Commercial papers as a

 % of total public funds 24.29%

 % of total liabilities: 22.99%

 % of total assets: 16.07%

(b) Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets: Nil

(c) Other short-term liabilities

 % of total public funds 34.52%

 % of total liabilities: 32.66%

 % of total assets: 22.84%

50.6 Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management
 The Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company has delegated the responsibility for ongoing Balance Sheet Liquidity Risk management to the Asset 

Liability Committee (ALCO).

 In order to manage/mitigate liquidity risk, the Company has defined its liquidity risk management strategy and prudential internal limit for Liquidity Gap 
tolerance for its various time buckets in addition to regulatory limits on liquidity gaps, which is approved by the Board. Treasury is responsible for managing 
liquidity under the prescribed liquidity risk management framework and the same is monitored by ALCO / Board. 

 Liquidity risk management strategies and practices are reviewed to align with changes to the external environment, including regulatory changes, business 
conditions and market developments.

 The Company has adopted liquidity risk management framework as required under RBI regulation.

50.7 Interest on interest calculation
 In accordance with the RBI Circular No. RBI/2021-22/17 DOR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 7th April, 2021 and the methodology for calculation 

of interest on interest based on guidance issued by Indian Banks’ Association, the Company has put in place a Board approved policy to refund / adjust 
interest on interest charged to borrowers during the moratorium period, i.e. 1st March, 2020 to 31st August 31, 2020. Company has estimated the said 
amount and made a provision in the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021. As on 31st March, 2021, Company holds a specific liability 
of ` 9 Cr which is debited to interest income to meet its obligation towards refund of interest on interest to eligible borrowers as prescribed by the RBI.
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NOTE 51 DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RESERVE BANK OF INDIA NOTIFICATION DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.NO.109 /22.10.106/2019-20 
DATED 13TH MARCH, 2020 PERTAINING TO ASSET CLASSIFICATION AS PER RBI NORMS
As at 31st March, 2021

(Amount in lakhs)

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

Asset 
classification 

as per Ind 
AS 109

Gross Carrying 
Amount as per 

Ind AS*

Loss 
Allowances 

(Provisions) as 
required under 

Ind AS 109*

Net Carrying 
Amount

Provisions 
required as per 
IRACP norms @

Difference 
between Ind AS 

109 provisions and 
IRACP norm

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7)=(4)-(6)

Performing Assets

Standard Stage 1  1,997,467.55  14,795.22  1,982,672.33  9,658.34  5,136.88

Stage 2  134,950.42  16,554.38  118,396.04  8,104.85  8,449.53

Subtotal  2,132,417.97  31,349.60  2,101,068.37  17,763.19  13,586.41

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Substandard (A) Stage 3  93,517.60  49,682.45  43,835.15  3,377.54

Doubtful

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3  -  -  -  1,823.78

Doubtful - 1 to 3 years Stage 3  -  -  -  1,572.57

Doubtful - more than 3 years Stage 3  -  -  -  171.18

Doubtful (B)  -  -  -  3,567.52

Loss (C) Stage 3  2,533.33  2,533.33  -  1,573.63  959.70

Subtotal for NPA (A+B+C)  93,517.60  49,682.45  43,835.15  42,672.66  7,009.79

Other items such as guarantees, loan 
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of 
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current 
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and 
Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Stage 1  84,901.93  949.73  83,952.20  -  949.73

Stage 2  -  462.65  (462.65)  -  462.65

Stage 3  -  -  -  -  -

Total Stage 1  2,082,369.48  15,744.95  2,066,624.53  9,658.34  6,086.61

Stage 2  134,950.42  17,017.03  117,933.39  8,104.85  8,912.18

Stage 3  93,517.60  49,682.45  43,835.15  42,672.66  7,009.79

 2,310,837.50  82,444.43  2,228,393.07  60,435.85  22,008.58

@ Represents provision amounts as per Company’s NPA provisioning policy which is in compliance with the IRACP norms and also includes general provision of ` 9,035.44 lakhs created 
against standard assets in accordance with RBI’s Covid-19 relief package
*Investment measured at FVOCI has not been considered above in gross carrying amount and loss allowance. The fair value of the investment is ` 213,675.70 lakhs and loss allowance 
is ` 251.17 lakhs.
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NOTE 52 DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RESERVE BANK OF INDIA CIRCULAR DOR.NO.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2020-21 DATED 17TH APRIL 
2020 PERTAINING TO ASSET CLASSIFICATION AND PROVISIONING IN TERMS OF COVID19 REGULATORY PACKAGE

(Amount in lakhs)

Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2021
As at 

31st March, 2020

Amounts in SMA/overdue categories as at 29th February 2020, where the moratorium/deferment was extended #  56,425.90  99,803.80 

Amount where asset classification benefits is extended  -  17,668.26 

Provision made *#  12,953.90  11,992.63 

Provision adjusted during the period against slippages *#  9,163.06  - 

Residual provisions *#  3,790.83  11,992.63 

*Provision as per IND AS 109- The Company being NBFC, has complied with INDAS and guidelines duly approved by the Board for recognition of the impairments.
#Balances reported as per respective reporting date

NOTE 52 DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SEBI CIRCULAR SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 DATED 26TH NOVEMBER, 2018 FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

Annexure A
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Details

1 Name of the Company  Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

2 CIN  U67200MH1996PLC097730

3 Outstanding borrowing of Company as on 31st March, 2021  
(` in cr)

 17920.22

4 Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY along with name of the 
Credit Rating Agency

CRISIL:
Long term debt instruments and Long term bank facilities: continues to be 
CRISIL AAA/Stable
Sub-ordinated debt: continues to be CRISIL AAA/Stable
Nifty linked debentures: continues to be CRISIL PP-MLD AAAr/Stable
Short term debt instruments and Short term bank facilities: continues to be 
CRISIL A1+.

ICRA:
Long term debt instruments and Long term bank facilities: continues to be 
[ICRA]AAA(Stable)
Sub-ordinated debt: continues to be [ICRA]AAA(Stable)
Nifty linked debentures: continues to be PP-MLD[ICRA]AAA(Stable)
Short term debt instruments: continues to be [ICRA]A1+

5 Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid, in case of 
shortfall in the required borrowing under the framework

BSE
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We confirm that we are a Large Corporate as per the applicability criteria given under the SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated 26th November, 2018.

Annexure B1
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Details

1 Name of the Company  Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited

2 CIN  U67200MH1996PLC097730

3 Report filed for FY  2020-21

4 Details of the borrowings (all figures in ` crore):

i. Incremental borrowing done in FY (a)  3,175

ii. Mandatory borrowing to be done through issuance of debt securities (b) = (25% of a)  793.75

iii. Actual borrowings done through debt securities in FY (c)  3,175

iv. Shortfall in the mandatory borrowing through debt securities, if any (d) = (b) - (c)

{If the calculated value is zero or negative, write ""nil""}

 Nil

v. Reasons for short fall, if any, in mandatory borrowings through debt securities NA

Note: Incremental borrowing done in FY and actual borrowings done through debt securities in FY, do not include inter corporate borrowings between a parent and its subsidiary

NOTE 53 DISCLOSURE REGARDING RESOLUTION FRAMEWORK FOR COVID-19-RELATED STRESS

` in lakhs

Type of Borrower

Number of 
accounts where 

resolution plan has 
been implemented 
under this window

Exposure to 
accounts mentioned 

at (A) before 
implementation of 

the plan"

Of (B), aggregate 
amount of debt 

that was converted 
into other 
securities

Additional funding 
sanctioned, if any, 
Including between 

Invocation of plan & 
implementation

Increase in provisions 
on account of the 
implementation 

 of the 
resolution plan***

(A) (B) (C) (D) (E)

Personal Loans  317.00  1,553.97  -  -  202.52

Corporate persons*  3.00  39.38  -  -  8.02

Of which, MSMEs  -  -  -  -  -

Others  3.00  39.38  -  -  8.02

Total  320.00  1,593.35  -  -  210.54

* Personal loan represents loans to individual

**As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

***ECL Provision as per INDAS 109



Notes
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

124

Annual Report 2020-21

NOTE 54 DISCLOSURES UNDER LISTING AGREEMENT FOR DEBT SECURITIES

Note Particulars

a Disclosure under Regulation 53(e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Debenture Trustees:

IDBI Trusteeship Services Ltd.

Asian Building, Ground Floor,

17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai - 400 001

Tel. : 022-40807000

Fax : 022-66311776

Email : itsl@idbitrustee.com

b Disclosure under Regulation 53(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(` in lakh) 

Related Party transactions 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries  -  -

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates  -  -

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested  19,220.84  -

Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and subsidiary company, when the 
company has made a loan or advance in the nature of loan

 -  -

c Disclosure under Regulation 54(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Asset cover

The Debentures are secured by way of a first and pari passu mortgage in favour of the Security Trustee on the Company’s immovable property 
of ` 18.07 lakhs and further secured by way of hypothecation/mortgage of charged assets such as receivables arising out of loan, lease and hire 
purchase, book debts, current assets and investments (excluding strategic investments of the Company which are in the nature of equity shares) 
with an asset cover ratio of minimum 1.00 time value of the debentures during the tenure of the debentures.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vyomesh Kapasi 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07665329 

Devarajan Kannan 
Director 
DIN: 00498935 Sharad Agarwal

Partner
Membership No. 118522

Bharat Thakkar
Chief Financial Officer

Kiran Tangudu 
Company Secretary 

 Date and Place: 15th June, 2021, Mumbai  Date and Place: 15th June, 2021, Mumbai
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